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‘Enriching Life' is more than a theme; it is the essence of our purpose, driving us to create t‘“
solutions that improve health, elevate quality of life and inspire a brighter future.

Every initiative and partnership we embark on is rooted in this mission, ensuring that our
impact reaches far beyond medicine.

Through our community programs and commitment to quality, we strive to make a
meaningful difference in people's lives.

From offering healthcare solutions to supporting initiatives that empower individuals,
our efforts are guided by a deep sense of responsibility and purpose.

Every step we take is driven by the belief that true progress is measured by the well-being
of the people we serve.
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u Highnoon Laboratories Limited

Our Credo

Our purpose — enriching life —inspires us and guides us to consistently
deliver quality products. We enrich life by providing innovative disease
management solutions.

Our responsibility is to the healthcare providers and to the patients who
trust our products. We meet the expectations, and to do so, we employ
the best people and invest in their continuous development; we raise our
standards and challenge ourselves; we improve our processes, and we
adapt new technologies.

Our purpose to enrich life requires us to expand our offering and our
reach. We are committed to deepen and widen our portfolios and
maximise our coverage. We seek to balance patient welfare with our
financial output. We keep our costs low to reduce the disease burden
on the patient and generate adequate profits for our long-term viability.

Teaf o

Tausif Ahmad Khan
Chairman




Our Core Values

» Reliability » Courage » Compassion
> Integrity » Customer Focus » Perseverance

Our Aspiring Values

» |Innovation
» Passion




Transforming Visions

into Reality

Through dedication, innovation and unwavering
commitment, we have transformed bold visions

into tangible realities. Our achievements sta
a testament to our relentless pursuit of e
guiding us towards a future filled with:
and possibility.




Enriching Life with
Fawad Khan

At Highnoon, success isn't just about career
milestones—it's about living a fulfilling life.

To reinforce this, we launched an inspiring
campaign featuring Fawad Khan, encouraging
individuals to set wellness goals alongside
professional ambitions.

The campaign garnered over

6 million views

1 million
impressions

sparking meaningful conversations

about prioritizing well-being.

PESA Award

For the second consecutive year,
Highnoon has been honoured with
the Pharma Export Award at the
7* Pharma Export Summit and
Awards (PESA 2024).

The award, presented by Yousuf
Raza Gillani, Chairman of the
Senate of Pakistan, recognized
our significant contributions to
boosting pharmaceutical exports
and enhancing Pakistan's global
footprint.

This accolade reaffirms our
unwavering focus on growth and
our core mission of improving and
enriching lives.

———

PP XIS T
: P

»

Highnoon

Enriching Life

Annual Report 2024 -



Celebrated 1 Billion Mark

A moment of pride for Highnoon as our
products achieved the 1 billion mark.
This incredible milestone

reflects the trust of healthcare
professionals and patients in our
commitment to excellence.

Highnoon Partners with IFC to
Drive Digital Transformation

In a bold step towards redefining
the future of healthcare,
Highnoon has collaborated with
the International Finance
Corporation (IFC), and kicked off
this partnership with a
groundbreaking Digital
Transformation Goal-Setting
Workshop.

This initiative aligns seamlessly
with Highnoon's broader mission
to enrich lives, delivering better
healthcare outcomes for patients
and stakeholders alike. By
integrating technology into its
DNA, Highnoon is not just keeping
pace with global advancements
but solidifying its position as a
forward-thinking leader in the
pharmaceutical industry.
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Expanding Access to
Quality Healthcare

Highnoon continues to advance its mission with the launch of 15+ high-quality products
across key therapeutic areas. Committed to excellence, we prioritize rigorous standards

to ensure effective disease management solutions that improve patient outcomes.

Through innovation and quality, we empower healthier lives and drive progress in healthcare.
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Highnoon Officially Becomes
ICAP’s Approved Training Organization
Outside Practice (TOoP)

Highnoon has been recognized as an
ICAP-approved Training Organization
Outside Practice, reinforcing our
commitment to talent development
and professional growth.

This milestone enables us to provide
CA trainee students with hands-on
experience in the pharmaceutical
industry, equipping them with the
skills to excel in their careers.

Expanding Horizons:
Highnoon Launches in Somalia

Highnoon has officially launched
in Somalia. This milestone was
achieved through partnerships
with leading healthcare
professionals and renowned
medical societies.

By combining groundbreaking
insights from BMJ and fostering
impactful collaborations with
SIMA and SSC, we are creating
new opportunities for
transformative healthcare.

This initiative reflects our shared
vision of building a healthier
tomorrow. Together,

we continue our mission of
enriching life.

- JI’l Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Expanding Healthcare
Access Across Africa

Highnoon has collaborated
with Dafra Pharma, a leading
European pharmaceutical
company to distribute quality
products in 29 countries
across Africa.

This partnership marks an
important step towards
improving healthcare access
and advancing our shared
mission to enrich lives
worldwide.

Partnering with Exphar to
Strengthen Global Reach

Highnoon signed an
agreement with Exphar,
Belgium, for the supply of
products to 24 African markets
under their brands.

This strategic partnership marked
a significant step forward in our
international expansion.

Additionally, Exphar expressed
interest in manufacturing products
at the Highnoon plant to support
their future growth in European
markets, particularly Belgium.
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Anticoagulant Academy
Foreign Speaker Programs

Highnoon, in partnership with the
Pakistan Society of Internal Medicine,
hosted impactful Anticoagulant
Academy Foreign Speaker Programs

in Lahore and Islamabad. Drawing over
780 physicians from prominent institutes,
the sessions were broadcasted on 6
satellite stations nationwide.

Nebix Lifestyle — Active Heart

Highnoon, in collaboration with the Pakistan Cardiac Society (Karachi Chapter), organized

Nebix Lifestyle — Active Heart at Port Grand, Karachi, promoting heart health through an active lifestyle.
The event featured an early morning yoga session, cycling and fitness activities, with 45 renowned
cardiologists participating. It reinforced the importance of staying active for overall well-being.
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Hyper-Line:
Advancing Medical
Excellence

In collaboration with the Aga Khan University,
Highnoon launched Hyper-Line to enhance
the skills of healthcare practitioners for better
patient care. With over 4,500 doctors enrolled,
this initiative focuses on capacity building and
continuous professional development,

M
Hyper-Line

Linking Health and Technology through Collaboration

7|

International Diabetes Excellence Academy

Inits continued dedication to improving Pakistan's healthcare sector, Highnoon hosted
IDEA 24 - International Diabetes Excellence Academy. This certified course, supported by Weill
Cornell Medicine Qatar, International Society of Endocrinology (ISE) and Pakistan Endocrine Society
(PES), brought together respected national and international faculty members.
Their combined expertise shed light on advanced strategies in diabetes management,
providing healthcare professionals with valuable insights.

- T Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Creating a Healthier
Tomorrow

Our commitment to public wellness shines through our initiatives.
We spread the vital messages of healthy living and proactive

healthcare. By educating and empowering communities,
we strive to foster a culture of well-being.

Annual Report 2024
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Diabetes Da #A
For World Diabetes Day, we once again went big. With the renowned

Pakistani artist Sanam Saeed as the face of our campaign, we

launched a massive social media campaign to educate and inspire action
against diabetes. Alongside her, leading doctors shared insightful video
messages, providing expert advice on prevention, management and the
importance of a healthy lifestyle.
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Let’s put well-being at the
heart of diabetes care and
start the change towards
a better life with diabetes.
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World Thalassaemia Day

On World Thalassaemia Day, Highnoon, in collaboration with the Pakistan Red Crescent Society,
organized a blood donation drive at its office and JTK Thalassaemia Centre. The overwhelming
response highlighted our collective dedication to supporting those in need.

RespiTalks: Podcast Series

Our podcast series, RespiTalks, brought expert pulmonologists to discuss key aspects of respiratory
health and overall well-being. Designed to educate and inform, RespiTalks explored crucial topics
such as lung care, disease prevention and the latest advancements in pulmonology. Through
insightful conversations with medical experts, we aimed to empower listeners with valuable
knowledge, helping them make informed health decisions.




Enriching Life
iIn Ramzan

During Ramzan, we launched a dedicated social media campaign to
educate people with diabetes on managing their health while fulfilling
their religious obligations. Through informative posts and expert-led
videos, we shared essential tips to help individuals fast safely, avoid
complications and prioritize their well-being.




May Measure
Month

As the official partner of May Measure Month, Highnoon
once again launched a nationwide campaign dedicated to
cardiovascular health. We organized free screening camps
across Pakistan, where individuals had their blood pressure
checked to promote early detection and prevention of
hypertension. Alongside the on-ground efforts, we also ran
a comprehensive digital campaign to raise awareness about
cardiovascular health.
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World
Heart Day

For World Heart Day, we leveraged social media to promote a
healthier lifestyle. We shared informative content and expert insights
to inspire positive health choices. Our efforts to promote heart health
were acknowledged by the World Heart Federation, reinforcing our
commitment to global heart health advocacy.

Highnoon Laboratories Limited




Antimicrobial Resistance Week

Under the Keep Antibiotics Working
initiative, we raised awareness about the
dangers of medication misuse and overuse.
Further more, Highnoon partnered with
PKLI, MMIDSP and PSIM to host sessions on
responsible antimicrobial use, engaging over
180 healthcare professionals to foster
awareness and strengthen efforts against
antimicrobial resistance.

WORKING

EDUCATE | ADVOCATE | ACT NOW

: KEEP
.= [l ANTIBIOTICS

GERD Awareness Week

During GERD Awareness Week,
Highnoon Gastroenterology
launched the ‘Enriching Gut
Health' campaign.

In collaboration with over 50
institutes and key opinion
leaders nationwide, we promoted
awareness and encouraged
healthier lifestyle choices.

Mental Health Week

On World Mental Health Day, we reaffirmed our commitment to mental
well-being by raising awareness and fostering open conversations.

Mental Health is for
Everyone

What's one thing you wish people
knew about mental health?

Let’s break the stigma and talk openly about mental health!
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World
Hepatitis Day

We launched a social media campaign to raise awareness about hepatitis prevention.
We urged people to get tested and vaccinated. Through impactful messaging, we
encouraged proactive health measures. Our efforts gained global recognition as the
World Hepatitis Alliance reshared our post on their social media page, acknowledging
our efforts to fight against hepatitis.

It'stimeto take action

wor LIOR
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Connecting for a

Healthier Future

We believe collaboration drives progress. Through industry events,
partnerships and knowledge-sharing, we connected for a healthier
future. By fostering innovation, engaging with experts and employees,
we continue to make a meaningful impact.




Pakistan Single Country Exhibition-Uzbekistan

Highnoon proudly represented Pakistan at the Pakistan Single Country Exhibition in Tashkent, showcasing our
high-quality pharmaceutical products. The event provided a key platform to strengthen connections in the local
market and reinforce Pakistan's presence in the global pharmaceutical landscape. Our participation highlighted
Highnoon's commitment to expanding international reach and driving pharmaceutical exports.

Highnoon at Pak Pharma Expo 2024

Highnoon proudly sponsored Pak Pharma Expo 2024.
The event provided a dynamic platform to showcase
our diverse product portfolio to industry
professionals. Our stall garnered significant
attention, reinforcing our commitment to innovation
and the advancement of the pharmaceutical sector.

- FZ3 Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Business Aspiration 2024

As we wrapped up Quarter 1, Business Aspiration 2024 brought together reflection, strategy
and ambition to shape our future. The event served as a platform to align our vision, reinforce goals
and set the momentum for the year ahead.

25



. . Marklnnova 25
®

. EnrichingInnovation
®

The Marklnnova25 event in Antalya was a
defining moment for Highnoon, bringing
together our teams to shape a transformative
marketing strategy for 2025 and beyond.
Through collaboration, creativity and a shared
vision, we mapped out an ambitious path
forward, fueled by collective energy and
purpose. The event was more thanjust a
strategy session—it was an inspiration to
push boundaries and redefine possibilities

for the future.

Annual Operating Plan

The three-day AOP workshop focused on reviewing achievements, addressing challenges and refining strategies
for future success. It reinforced a culture of continuous improvement, innovation and teamwork through engaging
team-building activities, ensuring alignment and collaboration as we move forward with renewed focus

and a shared vision for growth.

- M Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Building Trust Through
Precision

By ensuring every detail is meticulously attended to and every
standard rigorously upheld, we build trust through precision.

Our dedication to excellence guarantees that we consistently
deliver superior outcomes, fostering confidence and reliability
in every endeavour.
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Major Revamp Projects

Our commitment to staying ahead means investing in the latest
technology and best practices. Because for us, progress is not just
an option; it's a promise.

Online 2D Printing

Extension in Enhanced Automation
Dispensing Area in Blister Packing

Automationin
Syrup Filling

High Speed Tablet
Production Manesty - UK

RELIABILITY

New Packaging Area

Solar Extension 500KW

- r @ Highnoon Laboratories Limited




Building a Thriving

At the heart of our success lies a deep commit
By nurturing talent, promoting well-being and
of continuous growth, we empower our emplo
excellence. Their dedication and passion are t
behind our collective progress and innovation.




We celebrated
special occasions

with unity and
appreciation.




Training and Development

Our training programs ensure a skilled, knowledgeable team, always
ready to innovate and uphold excellence in everything they do.

® EHS Workshop ® Situational Leadership Training ® Organizational Development
e Lead with Intent ® Critical Thinking Training e JE Workshop
e Train the Trainer o The Art of Effective Communication e Quality Culture Workshop
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Financial
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Sales

Increased by

2024:Rs. 23.20 billion
2023:Rs. 19.42 billion

Total

Assets
Grew by

2024:Rs. 16.06 Billion
2023:Rs. 14.03 Billion

Profit

After Tax

up by

2024:Rs. 3.25 billion
2023:Rs. 2.4 billion

Gross Profit
Margin

Increased by

2024:Rs. 11.929 billion
2023:Rs.9.254 billion

Earnings
Per Share

Increased by

2024:Rs.61.41
2023:Rs.45.35

EBITDA

up by

2022:Rs. 5.5 billion
2021:Rs. 3.7 billion

Equity

Increased by

2024:Rs. 11.2 billion
2023:Rs. 9.6 billion

Break-up

Value

Per Share Increased by

2024:Rs.212
2023:Rs. 181




STATEMENT OF VALUEADDITIONANDITS
DISTRIBUTION

2024 2023
Rs.in 000 Rs.in 000
Value Added
Sales 23,195,152 19,424,255
Material & Services (COS+AIl Operating Cost Less Cost Explicitly Mentioned Below) 13,982,909 12,592,472
Other Income 432,259 185,459
9,644,502 7,017,242
Distribution
Employees
Salaries Wages & Benefits 3,441,351 | 2,929,577
Workers Profit Participation Fund 259,133 178,811
3,700,484 3,108,388
Government
Income Tax 1,585,958 899,571
Sales Tax 331,939 173,254
Central Research Fund 50,367 38,336
Workers Welfare Fund 84,067 63,655
2,052,331 1,174,816
Society
Donation(Admin Exp) 3,613 1,580
Provider of Finances
To Shareholder as Cash dividend-(Last Year dividend payment) 1,589,501 837,682
To Banks as financial charges (Markup on LT,ST Loans & Bank Charges) 324,167 83,208
1,913,668 920,890
Retained in Business
Depreciation and amortization 310,406 246,236
Retained Profit 1,664,000|| 1,565,332
1,974,406 1,811,568
9,644,502 7,017,242

Year 2024

Year 2023
21%
B Emplyees Remuneration 38% B Emplyees Remuneration
B Govt as taxes B Govt as taxes
W Shareholders as dividends 3% 1 Shareholders as dividends
B Lenders as financial charges M Lenders as financial charges
B Retained within business M Retained within business

17%

21%

1%

12%

26%

17%
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SIXYEARS AT AGLANCE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Rupeesin (‘000’)

Summary of Balance Sheet

Share Capital 529,834 529,834 418,841 380,764 346,149 314,681
Reserves 10,691,332 9,066,866 7,026,396 5,381,858 4,140,050 3,126,880
Operating Fixed Assets 3,346,875 3,516,226 2,058,612 1,516,181 1,456,763 1,118,266
Non Current Assets 335,683 312,459 351,318 321,006 290,627 270,714
Current Assets 12,379,734 10,197,147 8,230,171 6,315,231 4,879,193 3,239,590
Current Liabilities 3,840,387 2,874,893 2,439,744 1,713,151 1,291,099 680,525
Net Working Capital 4,362,483 7,322,253 5,790,427 4,602,081 3,588,094 2,559,066
Non-current Liabilities 1,000,739 1,554,239 755,121 676,645 856,580 88,825

Summary of Profit and Loss Account

Sales - Net 23,195,152 19,424,255 15,815,937 13,000,780 10,697,634 9,047,693
Gross Profit 11,929,615 9,254,464 8,030,084 6,415,593 5,121,176 4,161,593
Earning Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation 5,543,758 3,685,295 3,589,462 2,538,619 2,076,388 1,483,477
(EBITDA)

Operating Profit 4,801,093 3,244,267 3,094,917 2,245,423 1,842,161 1,279,784
Profit Before Tax 4,839,459 3,302,585 3,345,504 2,372,144 1,921,732 1,341,086
Net Profit After Tax 3,253,501 2,403,014 2,417,172 1,808,033 1,420,736 971,012

Summary of Cash Flow Statement

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 4,243,694 1,695,172 (487,186) 1,733,087 1,333,188 700,853
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (1,286,848) (1,268,840) 346,712 (1,033,416) (1,290,307) (162,583)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Acitivites (2,288,082) (208,707) (851,462) (712,080) (79,321)  (459,350)
Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents 668,763 217,624  (986,955) (11,148) (35,698) 78,920
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Year End 709,207 40,444  (174,947) 812,049 823,198 858,895

Financial Performance/Profitability Analysis

Sales Growth % 19.41% 22.81% 21.65% 21.53% 18.24% 20.59%
Gross Profit Margin % 51.43% 47.64% 50.77% 49.35% 47.87% 46.00%
EBITDA to Sales Margin 23.90% 18.97% 22.70% 19.53% 19.41% 16.40%
Operating Profit Margin % 20.70% 16.70% 19.57% 17.27% 17.22% 14.14%
Profit Before Tax Margin % 20.86% 17.00% 21.15% 18.25% 17.96% 14.82%
Profit After Tax Margin % 14.03% 12.37% 15.28% 13.91% 13.28% 10.73%
Return on Equity % 28.99% 25.04% 32.47% 31.38% 31.67% 28.21%
Return on Capital Employed % 42.82% 30.84% 41.46% 37.40% 36.4% 35%

Operating Performance/Liquidity Analysis

Inventory Turnover Days 143 169 140 123 128 117.4
Debtors Turnover Days 35 32.4 23.4 14.3 12.2 13.6
Creditors Turnover Days 76 64.9 62.9 51.5 41.8 35.1
Cash Operating Cycle Days 102 136.1 104.7 85.3 97.9 95.8
Assets Turnover Ratio Times 1.44 1.57 1.68 1.62 1.61 1.95
Return on Assets % 20% 19% 26% 24% 21% 21%
Current Ratio Times 3.22 3.55 3.37 3.69 3.78 4.76
Quick Ratio Times 2.15 1.91 1.80 2.33 2.15 2.13

- @ Highnoon Laboratories Limited



SIXYEARS AT AGLANCE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Rupees in (‘000')
Distribution Analysis
Pay out-Proposed
Cash Dividend per share Rs. 40 30 20 20 15 13
Bonus % - 15 10 10 10 10
Payout Ratio (after tax) % 65.14 66.15 34.66 42.12 36.55 42.13
Dividend Yield % 4.36 3.96 3.70 3.19 2.50 2.42
Earnings Per Share (after tax) Rs./share 61.41 45.35 45.62 43.17 37.31 30.86
Price Earning Ratio Times 14.95 11.13 9.36 14.52 16.05 17.41
Number of Shares (in Millions) 52.98 52.98 41.88 38.08 34.61 31.47
Break-up Value of Share( Including Rs. 211.79 181.13 177.76 151.34 129.60 109.37
surplus on Revaluation)
Market Value of Share
Year End Rs. 918.22 504.6 540 627 599 537.26
Highest Rs. 1,000.00 566.54 615 680 650 590
Lowest Rs. 500 328.19 496.36 580 408 220
Market Capitalization (in Millions) 48,650 26,735 22,617 23,874 20,734 16,907
Profitablilty Margins Shareholders' Equity, Assets and Return
= GP Margin s EBITDA Margin s Operating Profit Margin == NPBT—@—NPAT ROA & ROE % ROA === ROE
B0.00% [~ 2000% ol
50.00% 30.00%
15.00%
40.00% 25.00%
30.00% T1000% 0%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

5.00%

0.00%

15.00%

10.00%

5.00%

0.00%

2024 2023

2022

2020 2019 2018
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

STATEMENT OF 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
FINANCIAL POSITION Rs.in 00 % Rs.in 00 % Rs.in 00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 %
Summary of Balance Sheet
Share Capital 529,834 0 529,834 26 418,841 10 380,764 10 346,149 10 314,681 10
Revenue Reserves 9,825,907 20 8,167,526 23 6,659,682 33 4,990,532 33.9 3,726,121 34.5 2,770,544 25.1
Surplus on Revaluation of fixed Assets 865,425 -4 899,339 145 366,714 -6 391,326 -5.5 413,929 16.2 356,336 -3.8
11,221,166 17 9,596,699 29 7,445,236 29 5,762,622 28 4,486,199 30 3,441,561 20

Non Current Liabilities
Long term loan - secured 318,820 -51 647,716 4095 15,439 0 - -100 165,410 100 - 0
Long term lease liabilities 70,063 -73 255,017 39 183,934 54 119,758 -8 129,566 112 61,215 38
Long term advances - 0 - 0 - -100 10,240 -69 33,267 20 27,610 -37
Deffered Tax Liabilities 208,064 70 122,735 0 - 0]

Deferred liabilities 403,793 -24 528,771 0 530,660 -3 546,646 3 528,330 26 417,662 12
Total Non Current Liabilities 1,000,739 -36 1,554,239 113 730,033 8 676,644 -21 856,573 69 506,487 9
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 2,621,068 27 2,055,833 32 1,561,824 32 1,179,435 74 679,007 14 598,034 75
Unclaimed Dividend 210,194 52 138,561 40 98,853 54 64,337 45 44,471 46 30,556 51
Unpaid Dividend - -100 111,300 75 63,475 0

Provision for Taxation - 0 - -100 124,622 -39 205,243 -31 296,237 854 31,054 -18
Current Portion of Long Term Liabilities 196,306  -43 342,116 331 79,289 -66 230,887 19 194,533 836 20,779 -44
Contract Liabilities 62,819 -1 63,189 -13 72,264 117 33,249 -57 76,852 100 - -
Short - term borrowings 750,000 358 163,894 -65 464,505 0
Total Current Liabilities 3,840,387 34 2,874,893 17 2,464,831 44 1,713,151 1,291,100 680,524

16,062,292 15 10,640,101 32 10,640,101 31 8,152,417 50 6,633,872 43 4,628,572 23

Non Current Assets

Property,plant and equipments 3,346,875 -5 3,516,226 71 2,058,612 36 1,516,181 4 1,456,763 30 1,118,266 15
Intangible assets 46,867 45 32,286 -10 35,835 69 21,189 100 - 0 - 0
Long Term Investment 200,000 0 200,000 0 200,000 0 200,000 0 200,000 0 200,000 0
Long Term deposits 24,917 4 23,943 -50 48,177 321 11,443 -47 21,443 1 21,183 51
Long Term advances 63,900 14 56,230 72 32,774 -6 34,787 -7 37,353 35 27,673 -6
Deferred tax asset - 0 - -100 34,531 -36 53,587 37 39,126 79 21,858 100
Total Non Current Assets 3,682,558 -4 3,828,685 59 2,409,930 31 1,837,187 5 1,754,685 26 1,388,980 14
Current Assets
Stock In Trade 4,135,825 -12 4,713,751 23 3,835,095 66 2,315,936 10 2,106,011 18 1,790,211 32
Trade Recievables 2,311,740 9 2,120,419 59 1,330,337 92 694,687 115 322,554 -18 391,163 39
Advances, trade deposits and prepayments 535,985 -7 575,539 -41 971,808 165 366,761 467,924 182,943
Other Recievables 148,511 21 122,545 287 31,698 18 26,860 -26 36,520 1016 3,273 -13
Loan to Subsidiary - -100 10,000 0 10,000 0 10,000 0 10,000 0 10,000 -50
Short Term Investment 3,638,851 68 2,168,794 62 1,338,887 -35 2,059,740 88 1,093,84635106 3,107 -59
Tax Refunds due from Government 149,615  -47 281,760 -34 425,022 1356 29,197 53 19,135 100 - 0
Cash & Bank Balances 1,459,207 614 204,338 -29 287,324 -65 812,049 -1 823,197 -4 858,895 10
Total Current Assets 12,379,734 21 10,197,146 24 8,230,171 30 6,315,230 29 4,879,187 51 3,239,592 27
TOTAL Assets 16,062,292 15 14,025,831 32 10,640,100 8,152,417 6,633,872 4,628,572

Equity and Liabilities Assets
=@ Equity === Non-Current liabilities ==®== Current liabilities «=e== Non-current assets «=o== Current assets
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

STATEMENT OF 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
FINANCIAL POSITION Rs.in00 % Rs.in 00 % Rs.in 00 % Rs.in 00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 %
Share Capital 529,834 3.3 529,834 3.8 418,841 3.9 380,764 4.7 346,149 5.2 314,681 6.8
Revenue Reserves 9,825,907 61.2 8,167,526 58.2 6,659,682 62.6 4,990,532 61.2 3,726,121 56.2 2,770,544 59.9
Surplus on Revaluation of fixed Assets 865,425 5.4 899,339 6.4 366,714 3.4 391,326 4.8 413,929 6.2 356,336 7.7

11,221,166 69.9 9,596,699 68.4 7,445,236 70.0 5,762,622 70.7 4,486,199 67.6 3,441,561 74.4

5,342,779 80.5

Non Current Liabilities
Long term loan - secured 318,820 2.0 647,716 4.6 15,439 0.1 - 0.0 165,410 2.5 - 0.0
Long term lease liabilities 70,063 0.4 255,017 1.8 183,934 1.7 119,758 1.5 129,566 2.0 61,215 1.3
Long term advances - 00 - 0.0 - 00 10,240 0.1 33,267 0.5 27,610 0.6
Deffered tax Liabilities 208,064 1.3 122,735 0.9 - 00 - 00 - 00 - 0.0
Deferred liabilities 403,793 2.5 528,771 3.8 530,660 5.0 546,646 6.7 528,338 8.0 417,662 9.0
Total Non Current Liabilities 1,000,739 6.2 1,554,239 11.1 730,033 7.1 676,644 8.3 856,580 12.9 506,487 10.9
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 2,621,068 16.3 2,055,833 14.7 1,561,824 14.7 1,179,435 14.5 679,007 10.2 598,034 12.9
Unclaimed Dividend 210,194 1.3 138,561 1.0 98,853 0.9 64,337 0.8 44,471 0.7 30,556 0.7
Unpaid Dividend - 00 111,300 0.8 63,475 0.6 - 00
Mark up Accrued - 00 - 00 - 00 - 00 - 0.0 101 0.0
Provision for Taxation - 0.0 - 00 124,622 1.2 205,243 2.5 296,237 4.5 31,054 0.7
Current Portion of Long Term Liabilities 196,306 1.2 342,116 2.4 79,289 0.7 230,887 2.8 194,533 2.9 20,779 0.4
Contract Liabilities 62,819 0.4 63,189 0.5 72,264 0.7 33,249 0.4 76,852 1.2 - 0.0
Short - term borrowings 750,000 4.7 163,894 1.2 464,505 4.4 - 0.0
Deffered Tax Liabilitites - 0.0
Total Current Liabilities 3,840,387 23.9 2,874,893 20.5 2,464,831 23.2 1,713,151 21.0 1,291,100 19.5 680,524 14.7
Total Equity & Liabilities 16,062,292 100 14,025,831 100 10,640,101 100 8,152,417 100.0 6,633,879 100 4,628,572 100
Property,plant and equipments 3,346,875 20.8 3,516,226 25.1 2,058,612 19.3 1,516,181 18.6 1,456,765 22.0 1,118,269 24.2
Intangible assets 46,867 0.3 32,286 0.2 35,835 0.3 21,189 0.3 - 00 - 0.0
Long Term Investment 200,000 1.2 200,000 1.4 200,000 1.9 200,000 2.5 200,000 3.0 200,000 4.3
Long Term deposits 24,917 0.2 23,943 0.2 48,177 0.5 11,443 0.1 21,443 0.3 21,183 0.5
Long Term advances 63,900 0.4 56,230 0.4 32,774 0.3 34,787 0.4 37,353 0.6 27,673 0.6
Deferred tax asset - 00 - 00 34,531 0.3 53,587 0.7 39,126 0.6 21,858 0.5
Total Non Current Assets 3,682,558 22.9 3,828,685 27.3 2,409,930 22.6 1,837,187 22.5 1,754,687 26.5 1,388,983 30.0
Stock In Trade 4,135,825 25.7 4,713,751 34 3,835,095 36 2,315,936 28.4 2,106,011 31.7 1,790,211 38.7
Trade Recievables 2,311,740 14.4 2,120,419 15 1,330,337 13 694,687 8.5 322,554 49 391,163 8.5
Advances 535,985 3.3 971,808 9 316,746 3.9 421,964 6.4 148,027 3.2
Trade Deposits 50,015 0.6 45,960 0.7 34,916 0.8
Advances, trade deposits and prepayments 535,985 3.3 575,539 971,808 9 366,761 4.5 467,924 182,943
Other Recievables 148,511 0.9 122,545 31,698 0 26,860 0.3 36,525 0.6 3,271 0.1
Loan to Subsidiary - 00 10,000 0 10,000 0 10,000 0.1 10,000 0.2 10,000 0.2
Short Term Investment 3,638,851 22.7 2,168,794 15 1,338,887 13 2,059,740 25.3 1,093,846 16.5 3,107 0.1
Tax Refunds due from Government 149,615 0.9 281,760 2 425,022 4 29,197 0.4 19,135 0.3 - 0.0
Cash & Bank Balances 1,459,207 9.1 204,338 1 287,324 3 812,049 10.0 823,197 12.4 858,895 18.6
Total Current Assets 12,379,733.86 77.1 10,197,147 72.7 8,230,170.88 77.4 6,315,230.00 77.5 4,879,192 73.5 3,239,590 70.0
Total Assets 16,062,291.70 100.0 14,025,831 100.0 10,640,100.48 8,152,417.00 6,633,879 4,628,573

Assets
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

STATEMENT OF 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
PROFIT OR LOSS Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % ||Rs.in00 %
Sales-Net 23,195,152 19.4 19,424,255 22.8 15,815,937 21.7 13,000,780 21.5 10,697,634 18.2 9,047,693 20.6
Cost of Sales 11,265,537 10.8 10,169,790 30.6 7,785,853 18.2 6,585,187 18.1 5576458 14.1 4,886,100 22.1
Gross Profit 11,929,615 28.9 9,254,464 15.2 8,030,084 25.2 6,415,593 25.3 5,121,176 23.1 4,161,593 18.9

Distribution, Selling & Promotional Expenses 5,807,788 17.4 4,945,905 24.0 3,988,456 16.7 3,416,349 29.1 2,645,474 10.8 2,386,789 16.3

Admin & General Expenses 796,247 11.6 713,348 16.1 614,629 15.8 530,888 18.5 448,034 21.2 369,802 14.1
Research & Development Expenses 9,471 -36.9 15,020 41.3 10,631 22.6 8,673 36.0 6,378 27.2 5,013 32.0
Other Operating Expenses 515,016 57.7 326,591 1.6 321,451 50.0 214,260 19.6 179,129 49.0 120,206 35.6

7,128,522 18.8 6,000,865 21.6 4,935,167 18.3 4,170,170 27.2 3,279,015 13.8 2,881,810 16.7
Operating Profit 4,801,093 47.6 3,253,599 5.1 3,094,917 37.8 2,245,423 21.9 1,842,161 43.9 1,279,783 24.1
Other Operating Income 432,259 133.1 185,459 -39.2 304,988 87.5 162,649 56.9 103,681 21.7 85,223 157.9
Finance Cost 393,894 188.6 136,474 150.9 54,400 51.4 35,929 49.0 24,110 0.8 23,921 185.2
Profit Before Tax 4,839,459 46.5 3,302,585 -1.3 3,345,504 41.0 2,372,144 23.4 1,921,732 43.3 1,341,086 27.0
Tax 1,585,958 76.3 899,571 -3.1 928,332 64.6 564,111 12.6 500,996 35.4 370,073 12.0
Profit After Tax 3,253,501 35.4 2,403,014 -0.6 2,417,172 33.7 1,808,033 27.3 1,420,736 46.3 971,012 33.8

Sales and cost of sales
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

STATEMENT OF 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
PROFIT OR LOSS Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % Rs.in00 % ||Rs.in00 %
Sales-Net 23,195,152 100 19,424,255 100.0 15,815,937 100.0 13,000,780 100.0 10,697,634 100.0 9,047,693 100.0
Cost of Sales 11,265,537 49 10,169,790 52.4 7,785,853 49.2 6,585,187 50.7 5576458 52.1 4,886,100 22.1
Gross Profit 11,929,615 51 9,254,464 47.6 8,030,084 50.8 6,415,593 49.3 5,121,176 47.9 4,161,593 18.9

Distribution, Selling & Promotional Expenses 5,807,788 25 4,945,905 25.5 3,988,456 25.2 3,416,349 26.3 2,645,474 24.7 2,386,789 16.3

Admin & General Expenses 796,247 3 713,348 3.7 614,629 3.9 530,888 4.1 448,034 4.2 369,802 14.1
Research & Development Expenses 9,471 0 15,020 0.1 10,631 0.1 8,673 0.1 6,378 0.1 5,013 32.0
Other Operating Expenses 515,016 2 326,591 1.7 321,451 2.0 214,260 1.6 179,129 1.7 120,206 35.6

7,128,522 31 6,000,865 30.9 4,935,167 31.2 4,170,170 32.1 3,279,015 30.7 2,881,810 16.7
Operating Profit 4,801,093 21 3,253,599 16.8 3,094,917 19.6 2,245,423 17.3 1,842,161 17.2 1,279,783 24.1
Other Operating Income 432,259 2 185,459 1.0 304,988 1.9 162,649 1.3 103,681 1.0 85,223 157.9
Finance Cost 393,894 2 136,474 0.7 54,400 0.3 35929 0.3 24,110 0.2 23,921 185.2
Profit Before Tax 4,839,459 21 3,302,585 17.0 3,345,504 21.2 2,372,144 18.2 1,921,732 18.0 1,341,086 27.0
Tax 1,585,958 7 899,571 4.6 928,332 5.9 564,111 4.3 500,996 4.7 370,073 12.0
Profit After Tax 3,253,501 14.0 2,403,014 12.4 2,417,172 15.3 1,808,033 13.9 1,420,736 13.3 971,012 33.8

Operating Expenses

Finance Cost

Other Operating
Research & Development
Administrative Expenses

Distribution Expenses
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2024 82021 W2020% 20190 &=

REVENUES

Sales M Other Income

2019 9,047,693 23

2020 10,697,634 681

2021 13,000,780 649

2022 15,815,937 88

2023 19,424,255 59

2024 23,195,152 9
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION

EPS, Dividend and Payout %
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Market Capitalization (Millons)
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COMPANY INFORMATION
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE BOARD
COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

determination of appropriate measures to
safeguard the Company's assets.

review of annual and interim financial
statements of the Company, prior to their
approval by the Board of Directors, focusing
on:

(i) majorjudgmental areas.

(i) significant adjustments resulting from the
audit.

(iii) going concern assumption.

(iv) any changes in accounting policies and
practices.

(v) compliance with applicable accounting
standards.

(vi) compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements; and

(vii) all related party transactions.

review of preliminary announcements of
results prior to external communication and
publication.

facilitating the external audit and discussion
with external auditors of major observations
arising from interim and final audits and any
matter that the auditors may wish to highlight
(in the absence of management, where
necessary);

review of management letter issued by
external auditors and management’'sresponse
thereto.

ensuring coordination between the internal
and external auditors of the Company.

review of the scope and extent of internal
audit, audit plan, reporting framework and
procedures and ensuring that the internal
audit function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the Company;

consideration of major findings of internal
investigations of activities characterized by

i

k)

m)

n)

o)

p)

fraud, corruption and abuse of power and
management'’s response thereto;

ascertaining that the internal control
systems including financial and operational
controls, accounting systems for timely and
appropriate recording of purchases and sales,
receipts and payments, assets and liabilities
and the reporting structure are adequate and
effective;

review of the Company's statement on
internal control systems prior to endorsement
by the Board of Directors and internal audit
reports;

instituting special projects, value for money
studies or other investigations on any
matter specified by the Board of Directors, in
consultation with the Chief Executive Officer
and to consider remittance of any matter to
the external auditors or to any other external
body;

determination of compliance with relevant
statutory requirements;

monitoring compliance with the regulations
and identification of significant violations
thereof;

review of arrangement for staff and
management to report to audit committee in
confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or
potential improprieties in financial and other
matters and recommend instituting remedial
and mitigating measures;

recommend to the Board of Directors the
appointment of external auditors, their
removal, audit fees, the provision of any
service permissible to be rendered to the
Company by the external auditors in addition
to audit of its financial statements. The Board
of Directors shall give due consideration to
the recommendations of the audit committee
and where it acts otherwise it shall record the
reasons thereof.

consideration of any other issue or matter as
may be assigned by the Board of Directors.
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HUMAN RESOURCE &
REMUNERATION (HR &R)
COMMITTEE

The Terms of reference of Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee are;

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

(iv)

recommends to the Board for consideration
and approval a policy framework for
determining remuneration of Directors (both
executive and non-executive directors and
members of senior management).

undertaking annually a formal process of
evaluation of performance of the Board as a
whole and its committees either directly or by
engaging external independent consultant.

recommending human resource management
policies to the Board;

recommending to the Board the selection,
evaluation, development, compensation

- LI Highnoon Laboratories Limited

(v)

(vi)

(including retirement benefits) of Chief
Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit;

consideration and approval on
recommendations of Chief Executive Officer
onsuchmattersforkeymanagementpositions
who report directly to Chief Executive Officer
or Chief Operating Officer; and

where human resource and remuneration
consultants are appointed, their credentials
shall be known by the Committee and a
statement shall be made by them as to
whether they have any other connection with
the Company.



SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Environmental:

Ourcommitmenttowards minimizingourenvironmental
footprint and promoting environmental stewardship
includes:

(i) Climate Change: Assessing and mitigating
the risks and opportunities associated with
climate change.

(i) Energy and Emissions: Reducing greenhouse
gas emissions through energy efficiency,
renewable energy, and other measures.

(iii) Sustainable Resource Management: Efficiently

using natural resources and reducing waste.

(iv) Pollution Prevention: Preventing pollution and

minimizing environmental impacts from our

operations.

(v) Biodiversity and Land Use: Protecting

biodiversity and responsibly managing land

use.

Collaboration: Collaborate with stakeholders
to support environmental stewardship and
participate in industry-wide sustainability
initiatives.

(vi)

Social:

Our commitment towards making a positive impact
on society by promoting social equity, diversity, and
community well-being includes:

(i) Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DE&I):
Fostering a diverse and inclusive workplace
across all levels of the organization where all
employees are treated with respect and have
equal opportunities.

(i) Employee Well-being: Ensuring a safe, healthy,
and supportive work environment for our
employees and community engagement.

(iii) Employee engagement: Oversee initiatives
related to employee development, workplace
safety, and human rights.

Community Engagement: Support community
development programs and corporate social
responsibility (CSR) initiatives to create
positive societal impact.

(iv)

Actively engaging with and supporting the
communities where we operate.

(v) Collaboration: Engage with internal and

external stakeholders to address social
concerns and ensure responsible business
practices.

Governance:

Our commitment towards maintaining strong

governance practices that promote transparency,
accountability, and ethical behavior includes:

() Ensure the integration of sustainability
principles into the company's business
strategy and decision-making processes.

(i) Monitor compliance with SECP's ESG
Disclosure Guidelines and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

(iii) Review and update sustainability-related

policies to align with global best practices.

(iv) Advise the Board on sustainability risks,
opportunities, and performance metrics.
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Gender Pay
Gap Statement

Highnoon Laboratories Limited is firmly committed to enriching the lives of its employees through equity and inclusivity,
striving to create a workplace where all employees are valued and rewarded fairly. The gender pay gap calculation for
the year ended 31 December 2024, is presented in accordance with the circular issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

p Mean Gender Pay Gap: 13.28%
(The mean pay for menis 13.28% higher than that of women).

» Median Gender Pay Gap: -40.93%
(The median pay for women is -40.93% higher than of men).

p Our gender pay gap reflects workforce composition rather than pay inequity.
Women hold strong mid-to-senior management roles, earning competitively,
with a mean pay gap of just 0.84% when excluding Executive Committee salaries.
Their significant presence in higher-paying roles results in a negative median
pay gap, underscoring our commitment to inclusion and merit-based growth.

h=L

Dr Adeel Abbas Haideri
Chief Executive Officer

—




Highnoon

Laboratories Limited

Prides itself on its steady and unequivocal
enforcement of code of conduct in all its
workplaces to ensure a safe and healthy
working environment where human rights
play at the forefront.



Code of Conduct

The ethical standards and professional
behaviour expected from employees.

Disciplinary Actions
e Strict enforcement of Code of Conduct.

® Vijolations of the Code of Conduct and its results:
penalties or termination.

Whistleblowing

® Employees to report any unethical behaviour,
while being protected against retaliation.

Data Protection and
Confidentiality

e Safeguarding company data and respecting
privacy policies.

e Prohibition of unauthorized disclosure
of sensitive information.

Equal Opportunity and
Non-Discrimination
® Promoting diversity and inclusion.

e Deliberate effort to keep workplace free from
discrimination and harassment.

- LIl Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Compliance with
Laws and Regulations

e Employees must adhere to all applicable local and international laws.

® Regulatory compliance is essential to maintain corporate integrity.

Workplace Ethics and
Professional Conduct

® Employees to maintain honesty, fairness, confidentiality
and accountability.

Conflict of Interest

e Avoidance of involvement in business decisions
that may interfere personalinterests.

e Disclose any potential conflicts to management.

Anti-Bribery and Corruption

e Prohibition from offering or accepting bribes, gifts
or favors that influence decisions.

® Mandatory compliance with anti-corruption laws.

Health, Safety and
Environment (HSE)

e Commitment to safe and healthy workplace practices
to prevent workplace hazards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

to the members of Highnoon Laboratories Limited

Review report on the statement of compliance contained in Listed Companies (code of corporate governance)
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the en closed Statement of issue Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Highnoon
LaboratoriesLimited for the year ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36
of theRegulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of theCompany's personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with theRegulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of theaccounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risksand controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporategovernance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of theAudit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related partytransactions. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of theapproval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the AuditCommittee.

Based on ourreview, nothinghas come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with therequirements contained
in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31,

2024.

Further, We highlight paragraph 18 and 19 of statement of compliance where instances of non compliancewith the
requirements of the Regulations are stated

Boof;»,&.;u‘

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Lahore Chartered Accountants
March 29%, 2025 Engagement Partner: Sajjad Hussain Gill
UDIN: CR202410087iBDrRv0Ozc
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: HIGHNOON LABORATORIES LIMITED
Year ended: December 31, 2024

Highnoon Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) has complied with the requirements of Listed Companies Code
of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019 (the “Regulations”) in the following manner:

1. Thetotal number of directors are 7 as per the following:

a. Male 6
b. Female 1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
a) Independent Directors 2

i. TariqgWajid
ii. Romesh Alexander Iddomalgada Elapata*

For Board comprising of seven members, One third of the directors equate to 2.33.Two independent directors
have been appointed, however, the fraction of 0.33 in such one third is not rounded up as one since the fraction
is below half (0.5). Furthermore, the two independent directors’ have the requisite skills, knowledge and are capable
of protecting the interest of minority shareholders.

*Romesh Alexander Iddomalgada Elapata has resigned on January 01, 2025 and his casual vacancy, thus created
has been filled up by appointment of Dr. Amanuallah Khan as Independent Director with effect from January 15th
2025.

b) Non-Executive Directors: 04

i.  Tausif Ahmad Khan
ii. Taufig AhmedKhan
iii. Taugir Ahmed Khan
iv. Tehmina Saeed Chudhary

c) Executive Directors: 01
i.  Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri

3. Thedirectors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout
the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. TheBoard has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with their dates of approval oramendment
has been maintained.
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6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect

to frequency, recording, and circulating minutes of the meeting of the Board.

8. The Board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. Six(06) out of seven (07) Directors are duly Certified or Exempted from the Directors’ Training Program.

10. The Board has approved the appointment of Company Secretary, including the remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment, and complied with relevant requirements of the regulations.

11. ChiefFinancial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

1.  TarigWajid Chairman
2.  Taquir AhmedKhan Member
3. TehminaSaeed Chudhury Member

b) HumanResource and Remuneration (HR & R) Committee

1. Tarig Wajid Chairman
2. Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Member
3. Tehmina Saeed Chudhury Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented, and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half-yearly/ yearly) of the committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committee
b) HRandR Committee 1

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function and the internal auditors of the Company are suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and fully conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory ratingunder the
quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, That They
and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firminvolved in the audit are not close relative (Spouses, Parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the
Chief Executive officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit , Company Secretary or Directors of the
Company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
exceptinaccordance with the Act, these regulations, or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.
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18. Mandatory requirement non compliance:

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied

with except for the following:

Romesh Alexander Iddomalgada Elapata has been appointed as independent director for the forth termin Extra
Ordinary General Meeting dated September 03, 2024 in non-compliance of Section 166(2(g)) of the Companies
Act, 2017. However Romesh Alexander Iddomalgada Elapata has vacant the office with effect from January 15,
2025 and casual vacancy has been filled by Dr. Amanuallah Khan.

19. Explanation of non compliance requirement which are non mandatory other regulation 3, 6,7,8,32,33and 36 are

as follow;

Non-Mandatory Requirements

RegulationNo.

Explanation

to address Sustainability Risks and
Opportunities:

The Board is responsible for setting the
Company's sustainability strategies,
priorities and targets to create long
term corporate value. The Board may
establish a dedicated sustainability
committee.

Directors’ Training: 19 (i) Currently, 6 out of 7 directors have acquired
It is encouraged that by June 30, 2022, the certification under Directors’ Training
all directors on the Board have acquired Programme or are exempted. One Director will
the prescribed certification under acquire certification in coming year.

any Directors’ Training Program (DTP)

offered by institutions, local or foreign,

that meet the criteria specified by the

Commission and approved by it.

Nomination Committee 29(i) The Company has Human Resource &
The Company has not formed Remuneration Committee which is performing
Nomination Committee the function of this Committee.

Risk Management Committee 30(i) The Company has Audit Committee which is
The Company has not formed Risk performing the function of this Committee.
Management Committee

Role of the Board and its members 10A Subsequent to the end December 31, 2024,

The Board has approved the constitution of
the separate Sustainability Committee. The
Committee will ensure that the Company
has addressed sustainability related risk
and opportunities. Also, it will ensure that
Company's sustainability and DE&l related
strategies are periodically reviewed and
monitored in future.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri
Chief Executive Officer

Taufig Ahmed Khan
Director
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Guiding the Way

With strategic foresight and a commitment to exce
our management drives innovation, empowers -
and shapes a future of growth and success. Their
ensures we stay agile, purpose-driven and ready for t

challenges ahead.




Board of Directors

Tausif Ahmad Khan

Chairman/Non-Executive Director

Tausif Ahmad Khan has served

as a Director on the Board of High-
noon Laboratories Limited since
1988 and as the Chairman of the
Board since 2010.

Tausif Ahmad Khan has served in key
advisory roles with the Pakistan
Pharmaceutical Manufacturers
Association (PPMA). He has also
influenced policy formulation by
participating in forums of the
Ministry of Health, Government of
Pakistan, particularly in the
implementation of the TRIPs
Agreement (WTO) and the
establishment of the Regulatory
Authority. He advises on healthcare
service efficiency and medicine
accessibility as part of the President
of Pakistan’s Task Force on
Pharmaceuticals.

Tausif Ahmad Khan also serves on
the Board of Directors of Route 2
Health (Pvt) Limited and Curexa
Health (Pvt) Limited. As a member
of the International Chamber of
Commerce, he remains engaged
in global trade and industry
advancements.

Tausif Ahmad Khan holds a degree in
Economics from the University of
Oregon, USA.
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Dr Adeel Abbas Haideri
CEO/Executive Director

Dr Adeel Abbas holds the portfolio
of Vice Chairman and CEO since
December 2024. He has a career
spanning 27 years, leading senior
commercial roles across prominent
names in the pharmaceutical
industry.

He previously served as Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Operating
Officer and Director of Strategic
Planning at Highnoon Laboratories
Limited.

He is a medical graduate of Dow
Medical College, Karachi.

Taufig Ahmed Khan

Non-Executive Director

Taufig Ahmed Khan has served as a Director
on the Board of Highnoon Laboratories
Limited since October 2010. He also holds
the portfolio of Chief Executive Officer of
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited, whichis a
wholly owned subsidiary of Highnoon
Laboratories Limited.

Taufig Ahmed Khan is a business graduate
from the University of Exeter, London.

Tauqir Ahmed Khan

Non-Executive Director

Taugir Ahmed Khan is one of the major
shareholders of Highnoon Laboratories
Limited. He brings fresh perspectives
and a strong commitment to fostering
innovation and growth.

With a focus on delivering innovative
solutions at the intersection of health
and technology, he is dedicated to
developing ideas that address critical
challenges and drive meaningful
change.

Driven by a passion for leveraging
technology to improve health
outcomes, he remains committed to
making a significant impact on the
healthcare landscape of Pakistan.



Tariq Wajid

Independent Director

Tariq Wajid holds the privilege

of having led several mainstream
multinational and local
pharmaceutical companies in
Pakistan.

In the recent past, he served

as Vice Chairman of the American
Business Council Pharmaceutical
Committee, Hong Kong and as
Chairman of the Pharma Bureau,
Overseas Investors Chamber of
Commerce and Industry. He has
remained a member of the Advisory
Boards of Lahore University of
Management Sciences (LUMS) and
the Institute of Business
Administration (IBA) Karachi.

He holds an MBA from Boston
University, Massachusetts, which
he earned as a USAID Scholar
(1988-89), and an MBA from the
University of Karachi.

Tehmina Saeed Chaudhury

Non-Executive Director

Tehmina Saeed Chaudhury

is an entrepreneur with extensive
experience across multiple
industries.

Since 1999, she has led the Data
Group, a specialized security
consultancy and vehicle fabrication
company, as its CEO. She has
previously served on the Boards of
the Parks & Horticulture Authority
and the Punjab Mineral Company.
She has also represented Finland'’s
commercial interests in Pakistan as
a Commercial Representative for the
Honorary Consulate of Finland.

Akey figure in the Lahore Chamber
of Commerce & Industry, she has
served as Executive Committee
Member and Convener of various
Standing Committees.

She also founded and helmed HCC
Technology Foundation, along with
being the Vice Chair of various NGOs
dedicated to art, education and
research.

She holds a Master of Science
(Honours) from the University of
the Punjab.

Dr Aman Ullah Khan

Independent Director

Dr Amanullah Khan is a seasoned
professional with over 30 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical
industry. He formerly served as
General Manager at IQVIA. His
expertise spans strategic leadership,
business intelligence and healthcare
market dynamics.

Beyond his corporate contributions,
he remains actively engagedin
various organizations, leveraging
his expertise to support industry
advancements and societal
development.

He holds an MBBS degree from Dow
Medical College (DOW) and an MBA
from Shaheed Zulfigar Ali Bhutto
Institute of Science and Technology
(SZABIST).
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

DELIVERING VALUE AND ENRICHING LIVES

Pakistan's macroeconomiclandscapein 2024 exhibited encouraging trends and signs of positive progress, contributing
to increased stability and laying the foundation for potential growth. Strategic reductions in interest rates and a
notable decline in inflation started alleviating pressures for businesses and consumers, creating a more conducive

environment.

Notwithstanding prevailing economic challenges, the
Company concluded another successful fiscal year,
exceedingindustry performance with an exceptional 29%
return on equity—one of the highest among
pharmaceutical stocks. With a consistent 65% payout
ratio, Highnoon continues to be the leading
pharmaceutical stock. This outstanding achievement
underscores the unwavering confidence of healthcare
professionals in the Highnoon brand and the steadfast
dedication, resilience, and adaptability of our employees.

IQVIA's 2024 results recognized Highnoon's commitment
to providing affordable, quality healthcare, noting its
volume-driven growth in the Chronic Disease Sector,
contrasting with industry trends of price-focused
expansion.

In 2024, Highnoon Laboratories Limited reaffirmed its
dedication to enriching lives. This dedication is
manifested through initiatives such as launching more
than 15 new products, organizing blood donation drives,
providing platforms for healthcare professionals,
promoting active lifestyles to enhance longevity, and

- 'l Highnoon Laboratories Limited

cultivating a diverse, inclusive, and development-focused
environment for our employees.

The aforementioned success was driven by Highnoon
Laboratories Limited's impressive ability to synergise
strategic planning, operational efficiency, and a robust
supply chain. Our proactive approach and flexibility in
maintaining a diverse therapeutic portfolio,
encompassing both essential and non-essential drugs,
yielded some relief when the Government announced
new pricing policy for non-essential drugsin 2024.

BOARD PERFORMANCE AND EFFECTIVENESS

The Board remained committed to guiding the Company
through a dynamic and evolving business environment
while ensuring compliance with statutory responsibilities
for the benefit of all stakeholders. As an apex governing
body, the Board exercised objective judgment in
overseeingthe Company's strategic direction, corporate
governance, and risk management.

At Highnoon Laboratories Limited, we recognize our
responsibility to operate sustainably and ethically,



enriching lives through our commitment to
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles.
A committee has been formed by the Board to oversee
sustainability initiatives and reporting. This is integral to
ensuring we create value for all stakeholders while
minimizing our environmental footprint and fostering a
positive social impact.

In line with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, an annual evaluation of
the Board of Directors was conducted to assess its
performance and effectiveness against the Company's
strategic objectives. For the financial year ended
December 31,2024, the Board's overall performance was
assessed as Satisfactory, with continuous improvements
forming part of its ongoing agenda.

The assessment considered key areas such as vision,
mission, and values; engagement in strategic planning;
policy formulation; oversight of business activities and
financial resources; effective fiscal management;
equitable treatment of employees; and efficiency in
executing Board responsibilities.

The Board of Directors received agendas, supporting
materials, and follow-up documentation in a timely
manner before meetings. Furthermore, Board meetings
were held with sufficient frequency to ensure effective
governance, with non-executive and independent
directors actively participating in key decisions.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

With the economy showing signs of stabilization after a
prolonged period of volatility, the outlook appears
promising. Global monetary easing and strategic
governance policies have helped mitigate previous
economic shocks.

Despite persistent economic challenges such as inflation
and stringent fiscal policies, the Company remains
resilient, leveraging agility, portfolio diversification,
economies of scale, and a robust value chain. The
Government's recent amendments to the pricing
framework for non-essential drugs has opened the
horizons for a more diverse portfolio.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | extend my deepest
gratitude to our stakeholders for their confidence and
unwavering support for our initiatives.

I commend my fellow directors for their strategic
oversight and commitment to steering the Company
towards sustainable growth and value creation.

lalso acknowledge the Government's efforts to establish
amore equitable pricing strategy for non-essential drugs
and encourage continued reforms that support business
easeinlight of the challenges faced by the pharmaceutical
industry.

Most importantly, | extend my sincere appreciation to
Highnoon employees —the true driving force behind our
success. Their dedication, passion, and hard work have
been instrumental in delivering value. On behalf of the
Board, | sincerely thank them for their loyalty and
contribution to our shared mission of Enriching Lives
globally

f{‘_“_if{’ﬂﬁfa/ %ﬂh.

Chairman
March 26, 2025
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors are pleased to present their report, together with the audited financial statements of the Company,
for the year ended December 31, 2024. This report has been prepared in accordance with Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019.

Your Company stands among the well-established healthcare companies of Pakistan, focused on enriching lives and
patient facilitation through manufacture, import, sale and marketing of pharmaceutical and related consumer

products.

The Company has been listed at the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited since 1995, with its registered office situated

at 17.5 km, Multan Road, Lahore.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

During the year under review, Pakistan's challenging
economic condition was marked by a relatively steady
growth of 2.5% in GDP, inflation comingdown to 13.13%
due to easing global prices, stable exchange rate,
monetary easing, and fiscal consolidation.

The aboverecent stability in macro-economicindicators
has provided some relief to the pharmaceutical sector,
which has beenunderimmense pressure due to economic
uncertainties and ever-changing regulations.

The government-led initiative of deregulation of prices
of medicines not categorized as "essential” by World
Health Organization ['WHO'], coupled with stable macro-
economic, acted as a major incentive for innovative
healthcare solutions. This encouraged companies to
diversify their product portfolio, embracing production
of non-essential medicines to meet the patients’ needs.

Consequently, the industry marked the sales exceeding
one trillion rupees in secondary market, marking a
21.45% year-on-year increase, with local manufacturers
outpacing MNCs by 2.13%, in growth (21.99% vs
19.86%).

Pakistani pharmaceutical landscape saw dominance by
indigenous manufacturers, primarily generic drug
manufacturers, with domestic manufacturers meeting
approximately 75.27% of national demand. The balance
being carried by the localized operations of multinational
corporations (MNCs) (24.7%). The above continues to
reinforce the powerful competitive advantage of
domestic entities sourcing local raw material, in face of
ever volatile exchange rate parity that Pakistani rupee
faces.

- YA Highnoon Laboratories Limited

OPERATING RESULTS

2024 2023
Key Financial Highlights (Rupees in Millions)
Sales 23,195 19,424
Gross Profit 11,929 9,254
Gross Profit % 51% 48%
Operating Profit 4,801 3,244
Operating Profit % 21% 17%
Finance Cost (393) (136)
Profit after tax 3,253 2,403
Other comprehensive Income-
net of tax (39) 587
Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year 3,213 2,989
Un-appropriated profit
brought forward 9,597 7,445
Appropriations
Profit available for appropriation 12,811 10,434
Final cash dividend @ Rs. 20
Per share FY 2023 837.68
Final cash dividend @ Rs. 30
Per share FY 2024 1,589.5
Un-appropriated
brought forward 11,221 9,597
Earning Per Share 61.41 45.35

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Highnoon has managed to sustainits ranking of 12th, its
market share rose to 2.63% with 4-year CAGR of 24.49%
versus industry average 17.79% as per IQVIA's report
'MAT December 2024'.

Net sales surged by 19.4%, primarily driven by optimal
product mix, volume expansion and price increase.
Further, a regulatory shift by the Drug Regulatory
Authority of Pakistan (DRAP), allowing greater pricing



flexibility for non-essential drugs, provided some relief.
Highnoon leveraged its diversified portfolio to enhance
pricing strategies, further strengthening its market
positioning.

Consequently, Gross Margins expanded from 48% to
51%, reflectinga 28.9% year-on-year growth from 2023.
Operating expenses grew in line with inflationary
pressures as well asinvestment madein the new business
portfolio.

Despite challenges being faced by Pharma Industry,
Highnoon effectively mobilized operational and strategic
efficiencies, capitalized on regulatory pricing shifts, and
maintained strong market intelligence. This enabled the
company to not only sustain but enhance profitability,
achieving a 14% profit-to-sales ratio and reflecting a
growth of 35% in profit after taxes since last year.

Highnoon has always strived to aim high and on
achievement thereof, to aim higher. For gauging its
performance, the Company makes use of various
indicators like peer’s position in relevant therapeutic
class, industry growth and the impact of changesinlaws/
regulation on Company's performance. Targets are then
formulated so remedial actions can be taken in case of
any variance with the actual performance after regular
intervals.

RECOGNITIONS
INTERNATIONAL

Transparency International assesses the ‘Corporate
Reporting’ of 100 emerging market multinationals in
respective countries. This year, Highnoon has, due to its
impressive market performance and capitalization, been
named among the top 69 public listed companies in
Pakistan.

NATIONAL

For the second consecutive year, Highnoon has
reaffirmedits commitment to excellence on the national
stage by strengthening Pakistan's pharmaceutical
exports and contributing to foreign exchange reserves.
In recognition of these achievements, Highnoon was
once again honored with the prestigious Pharma Export
Award by the Prime Minister of Pakistan at the 7th Pharma
Export Summit & Awards 2024 (PESA Awards).

Furthermore, the Company continues to strive to add
value to its country through timely and impressive
contributions towards the national exchequer, as part of
its fiscal contributions.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Based on audited account, Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)
for the year ended December 31,2024 isRs.61.41(2023:
Rs. 45.35).

DIVIDEND ANNOUNCEMENT

TheBoardis pleased to announce a final cash dividend of
400% (2023:300 %) i.e.Rs. 40 per share (2023:Rs. 30 per
share) for the financial year ended December 31, 2024,
subject to the approval by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 29* April, 2025. However,
bonus shares at the rate of NIL percent (0%), i.e. NIL
shares for every 100 shares (2023: 15%) were issued and
settled with proper Board approvals during the year.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUERS

Your Company has contributed Rs.2,401 million (2023:
Rs. 2,280 million) to the Government on account of
various Govt. levies including Taxes, Custom Duties,
WPPF, CRF, EOBI, Social Securities and donations.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

One of our key strategic priorities is to operate as a
conscious and responsible business. We embody this
commitment through the intersection of three focus
areas: making everyday health more inclusive, reducing
our environmental impact, and upholding ethical,
responsible, and transparent behaviors and standards of
conduct. During the period under review, the Company
embarked onvarious initiatives as a part of its responsible
business strategy to demonstrate its commitment to
social welfare and environmental causes, including
sustaining support for Thalassemia patients, donations
to various foundations such as The Care Foundation,
Fatimid Foundation, SOS Children’s Villages of Pakistan
and spearheading various patient facilitation programs.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company carried out transactions
withits related parties. Details of these transactions are
disclosed in Note 49 to the standalone financial
statements on pages 149 to 150 of the Annual Report.

AUDITORS

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants have audited
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2024.

The Board has agreed with the Audit Committee’s
recommendation to reappoint BDO Ebrahim & Co.
Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditors of the
Company for the upcoming financial year 2025 and has
forwarded the proposal for approval at the Annual
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General Meeting. This decisionaligns withthe Company’'s  ®  Proper books of accounts of the Company have
dedication to upholding the paramount standards of been maintained.

governance. Continuing with the prior year’s auditors

would foster enhancements in the firmness of our ® Appropriate accounting policies have been

auditing practices, internal governance and risk consistently applied in the preparation of financial
management procedures. This re-appointment awaits statements. Accounting estimates are based on
ratification by the Members at the upcoming Annual reasonable and prudent judgment.

General Meeting.

® International Financial Reporting Standards,
COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, ITS as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
COMMITTEES & MEETINGS in preparation of financial statements and any
departure there from has been adequately

During the year under review, the Directors of the ) .
disclosed and explained.

Company completed their tenure in office and election
of directors was held on September 02,2024, and seven
directors (six male directors and one female director)
were elected for aterm of three yearsin terms of section
159 of Companies Act, 2017.

e The Company maintains a sound internal control
system which gives reasonable assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The internal control
system is regularly reviewed.

The Board comprises seven (07) directors, including the
Chief Executive Officer and boast a diverse mix of gender,
knowledge, and expertise to enhance its effectiveness.

* We affirm the Company'’s ability to continue as a
going concern. There has been no departure from
the best practices of corporate governance.

The attendance of members at the meetings is

summarized as under: e Key operating and financial data for the last six

years is summarized and annexed in report.

Sr. Member No. of BOD Meetings . .
No. Attended e Outstanding taxes, statutory charges, and duties,
1 Tausif Ahmad Khan 6 if any, have been duly disclosed in the financial
2 Dr.Adeel Abbas Haideri 6 statements.

3 TaufigAhmedKhan 6 L L . .

4 Ghulam Hussain Khan* 5 e Significantdeviationsfromlastyearinthe operating
5 Zainub Abbas* 5 results of the Company have been highlighted and
6 Romesh Alexander explained.

lddomalgada Elapata
Tariq Wajid

8 Tehmina Saeed Chudhury
9 Taugir Ahmed Khan

e OQutstanding debts, if any, have been duly disclosed
in the financial statements.

~
= = 0N

* The management of the Company is committed to
good corporate governance, and appropriate steps

Leave of absence was granted to the members not . !
are taken to comply with best practices.

attending the Board meetings.

® Therelated party transactions of the Company are
approved and / or ratified by the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors.

*Ghulam Hussain Khan and Zainab Abbas retired during
theyear.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS, 2019

As mandated by the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, the Directors
are pleased to state as follows:

TRADING OF SHARES BY DIRECTORS, CFO, CEO AND
COMPANY SECRETARY ETC.

All'the tradesin the shares of the company, if any carried
out by the directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretory,
Executives & their spouses are also annexed in detail

e The financial statements prepared by the
management of the Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity.
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3‘:’. Name Transaction si\:\:r:i,
GhulamHussainKhan Purchase 421
2 HumaHussainKhan Purchase 18
(Spouse of GHK)
3 GhulamHussainKhan Sale 27,000
TariqWajid Sale 126
5 TariqWajid Purchase 126

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding and categories of
shareholders as of December 31,2024, as required under
the Pakistan Stock Exchange Regulations, have been
annexed herewith.

CODE OF CONDUCT

As per the Corporate Governance guidelines, the
Company has prepared a Code of Conduct, summarized
on page 50 of the Annual Report.

CREDIT RATINGS

Highnoon Laboratories Limited received a long-term
rating of A+ and a short-term rating of the Company at
A1, on January 24, 2025. The ratings reflect a strong
business profile of the Company on the back of a
diversified product mix and very low expectation of credit
risk emanating from a very strong capacity for timely
payment of financial commitments.

STATEMENT AS TO THE VALUE OF INVESTMENT OF
PROVIDENT FUND

The value of the investment of the provident fund is Rs.
651.517 million in accordance with the audited financial
statements of Highnoon Laboratories Limited
Employees’ Provident Fund for the year ended December
31,2024

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit functionis effectively operating within the
framework set outin Code of Corporate Governance and
the charter defined by the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors, to provide an independent and objective
evaluation on the effectiveness of governance, risk
management and control activities.

The Internal Audit function is progressing from a
conventional function into a business partner and
advisory role by following a proactive approach towards
effective corporate governance through risk mitigation,
adding value within the business process and creating
synergies at the group level.

The Board relies on the inputs and recommendations of
the Internal Audit Function throughits Audit Committee
on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controlsin
the organization and takes appropriate measures. The
function effectively utilizes risk control matrices,
prioritizing and developing the annual plan and
strengthening the internal controls through periodic
reviews of all the functions / processes in the
organization. Internal Audit also emphasizes the
importance of Business Continuity and completeness of
Risk Controlmeans to have seamless operations at entity
level that is currently being implemented. Further,
Internal Audit also ensures the implementation of
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework as per
COSO standards, through a dedicated ERM section.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration policy for the Board of Directors has
been deigned based on market trends and reflects the
competencies, efforts and unique set of responsibilities
the directors shoulder.

The remuneration of the Executive Directorsis approved
by the Board. However, in accordance with the Code of
Corporate Governance, it is ensured that no director
takes partin deciding his own remuneration.

To keep transparency, the Board shall observe the
following principles while determining the remuneration
of any Director:

® The remuneration package shall encourage value
creation within the company.

® The remuneration package shall be appropriate to
attract and retain directors needed to govern the
company successfully.

e Levels of remuneration shall not be at a level
that could be perceived to compromise their
independence.

e The Board shall give due consideration to the
recommendations of the HR & R Committee.

e No Director shall participate in a part of the
meeting in which his/her own remunerationis to be
determined.

e A detailed disclosure on the remuneration of the
Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executives
for the subject year has been given under Note No.
44 of the annexed standalone financial statements,
reference to page 130 of the Annual Report.
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OFFICES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER:

In compliance with good governance practices, the
position of Chairman of the Board of Directors and the
office of Chief Executive Officer are held by separate
persons with clear duties and responsibilities.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE

An annual evaluation of the Board is carried out on the
basis of a self-assessment questionnaire to ensure that
the Board's overall performance and effectiveness is
measured. and benchmarked against expectationsinthe
context of objectives set by the Company. The evaluation
provides the Board with an opportunity to review the
balance skills, experience, diversity and perspectives. The
size and composition of the Board is adequate to govern
the Board procedures.

The criteria used in evaluating the performance is as
under:

e Board Composition and Organization;

e Terms of Reference;

e Skills and Expertise of Board Members strategic
planning;

e Availability of guideline to the Management;

e Efficiency of board meetings and decision-making

process;

e Regular follow up to measure the impact of Board's
decisions;

e Communication between the Board and the
Management;

e Constitution of Board Committees with members
possessing adequate technical knowledge and
expertise;

¢ Dividing the roles of Chairman and the CEO Quality
of Management reports received from Board
Committees;

Board & CEO effectiveness; and
Risk Mitigation.

INVESTOR GRIEVANCE POLICY

The Company continuously engages with its investors
andresponds to their queries, concerns and grievances.
The Shares Registrar is responsible to address the
investor's grievances.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

The Company recognizes the importance of ESG and is
committed to adhering to SECP's regulatory guidelines
on ESG disclosure. We strongly believe that ESG factors
have significantimpact oninvestor confidence, financial
stability and overall business viability. We are integrating
sustainability considerations into our operations which
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will help to mitigate risks, enhance reputation and offer
sustainable products and services. This approach
ultimately creates long-term value for all stakeholders.
The Company has also formed a Sustainability Committee
post year end and also in process of developing policies
as suggested by SECP inits recent guideline.

DIVERSITY, EQUITY & INCLUSION VISION STATEMENT

Creatingawork environment and impacting communities
where Diversity Thrives, Equity Prevails, and Inclusion
Unites. Nurturing a work culture that embraces all
generations, values broad spectrum of ideas and
integrates them within the organization.

HEALTH SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

The Company is well aware of its responsibility to the
environment beingaresponsible environment protecting
corporate citizen. During the year, HSE performance of
allthe segments remained excellent. Strongcommitment
of Plant team has enabled it to achieve all HSE standards.
Comprehensive monitoring and self-auditing regimes
remainedin focus backed by internal and external audits.
Management Safety Audits, Emergency Response, Plant
Reliability Enhancement Program, Occupational Health
& Industrial Hygiene and Customized Housekeeping
audits are few to be named.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
CUREXA HEALTH (PRIVATE) LIMITED

A separate Directors’ Report is annexed to the
Consolidated Financial Statements with its wholly owned
subsidiary.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company have taken place
between the end of the year and the date of thisreport.

OUTLOOK

Pakistanis at a crossroads where, decisive, multi-faceted
reforms and visionary leadership is needed to unlock
economic potential and build resilience.

Pakistan’'s macroeconomic outlook reflects cautious
optimism, underpinned by fiscal consolidation and
external sector stabilization.

Nonetheless, there are challenges posed by the
regulatory landscape due to its complexity and lack of
transparency which underscores the need for a
consistent policy framework and streamlined regulatory
procedures to ensure the sector’s optimal contribution
towards the well-being of the people of Pakistan.



Highnoon's focus on operational efficiencies, strategic
portfolio diversification, and market expansion will be
instrumental in sustaining profitability amid an evolving
economic landscape.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board of Directors extends its sincere gratitude to
all employees for their unwavering dedication and
exceptional contribution throughout the year. Their
commitment has been instrumental in achieving our
strategic objectives and driving sustainable growth. We
also acknowledge the invaluable support of our
shareholders, customers, and partners including
Government of Pakistan and its entities such as Special
Investment Facilitation Council ['SIFC'], whose trust and
collaboration have been pivotal to our success. Looking
ahead, we remain committed to upholding the highest
standards of corporate governance and deliveringlong-
term value to all our stakeholders.

AUTHORIZATION

The Board, in compliance with the requirement of Section
227(5) of Companies Act 2017, authorized the Chief
Executive Officer and a director to sign the Directors’
Report on behalf of the Board.

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director
Lahore

March 26, 2025
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at December 31,2024

------ Shareholdings------
Serial No. No. of Shareholders Total Shares Held
1

1 1604 100 46,693
2 1288 101 500 319,613
3 483 501 1,000 360,677
4 724 1,001 5,000 1,670,973
5 97 5,001 10,000 700,743
6 39 10,001 15,000 482,570
7 23 15,001 20,000 403,264
8 12 20,001 25,000 268,092
9 12 25,001 30,000 335,139
10 11 30,001 35,000 358,584
11 4 35,001 40,000 153,585
12 3 40,001 45,000 131,222
13 5 45,001 50,000 239,198
14 7 50,001 55,000 370,644
15 1 55,001 60,000 55,885
16 1 60,001 65,000 63,202
17 4 65,001 70,000 275,722
18 4 70,001 75,000 294,682
19 2 80,001 85,000 167,837
20 2 85,001 90,000 174,267
21 2 95,001 100,000 196,719
22 2 100,001 105,000 205,941
23 4 105,001 110,000 425,687
24 1 120,001 125,000 120,283
25 2 135,001 140,000 277,164
26 1 140,001 145,000 144,049
27 1 155,001 160,000 160,000
28 1 160,001 165,000 160,600
29 1 165,001 170,000 168,829
30 1 175,001 180,000 176,222
31 1 190,001 195,000 190,468
32 1 195,001 200,000 200,000
33 1 210,001 215,000 213,550
34 1 220,001 225,000 223,152
35 1 225,001 230,000 228,784
36 1 235,001 240,000 238,079
37 1 245,001 250,000 245,123
38 2 250,001 255,000 500,367
39 1 260,001 265,000 261,999
40 1 280,001 285,000 282,509
41 1 285,001 290,000 298,785
42 1 295,001 300,000 301,558
43 1 300,001 305,000 313,809
44 1 355,001 360,000 356,551
45 2 375,001 380,000 755,395
46 1 385,001 390,000 388,485
47 1 390,001 395,000 395,000
48 1 490,001 495,000 493,729
49 1 535,001 540,000 540,000
50 1 565,001 570,000 569,500
51 1 605,001 610,000 607,239
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No. ofSharehoIders

Total Shares Held

From

1 700,001 705,000 702,850

1 770,001 775,000 774,542

54 1 825,001 830,000 827,163
55 1 1,110,001 1,115,000 1,110,346
56 1 1,480,001 1,485,000 1,483,092
57 1 1,500,001 1,505,000 1,504,176
58 1 1,880,001 1,885,000 1,884,907
59 1 2,315,001 2,320,000 2,318,940
60 1 2,860,001 2,865,000 2,861,953
61 1 3,385,001 3,390,000 3,387,836
62 1 3,955,001 3,960,000 3,959,560
63 1 4,415,001 4,420,000 4,416,242
64 1 4,980,001 4,985,000 4,984,500
65 1 6,255,001 6,260,000 6,255,088
TOTAL 4379 52,983,363

Categories of shareholders Shares Held

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children 17,806,281 33.6073%
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties. (Parent Company) 5,036,700 9.5062%
NIT and ICP 607,789 1.1471%
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions. 2,556,808 4.8257%
Insurance Companies 3,316,623 6.2597%
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 2,495,602 4.7102%
Shareholders holding 10% or more 6,269,314 11.8326%
General Public

a. Local 15,324,529 28.9233%
b. Foreign 986,820 1.8625%
Others (to be specified)

- Government Holding 577,032 1.0891%
- Joint Stock Companies 1,893,782 3.5743%
- Pension Funds 316,988 0.5983%
- Foreign Companies 1,815,203 3.4260%
- Others 249,206 0.4703%
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Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):

1  Pharmatec Investments Limited (CDC) 4,416,242 8.3351%
2 Route 2 Health (Private) Limited (CDC) 238,079  0.4493%
3 Trustee-Highnoon Laboratories Limited Staff Provident Fund (CDC) 213,550 0.4031%
4 Highnoon Employees Welfare Trust (CDC) 168,829 0.3186%

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

1  CDC - Trustee ABL Stock Fund (CDC) 34,700 0.0655%
2 CDC - Trustee AKD Index Tracker Fund (CDC) 6,977 0.0132%
3  CDC - Trustee Al Habib Islamic Stock Fund (CDC) 160,600 0.3031%
4  CDC - Trustee Al Habib Stock Fund (CDC) 46,000 0.0868%
5 CDC - Trustee Al Meezan Mutual Fund (CDC) 48,000 0.0906%
6  CDC - Trustee Al-Ameen Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (CDC) 15,090 0.0285%
7  CDC - Trustee Al-Ameen Shariah Stock Fund (CDC) 377,195 0.7119%
8 CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund (CDC) 14,219 0.0268%
9  CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Dedicated Equity Fund (CDC) 3,800 0.0072%
10 CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund (CDC) 1,384 0.0026%
11 CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Islamic Stock Fund (CDC) 51,213  0.0967%
12 CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Stock Fund (CDC) 54,851  0.1035%
13 CDC - Trustee APF-Equity Sub Fund (CDC) 16,038 0.0303%
14 CDC - Trustee APIF - Equity Sub Fund (CDC) 27,248 0.0514%
15 CDC - Trustee Atlas Islamic Dedicated Stock Fund (CDC) 14,026  0.0265%
16 CDC - Trustee Atlas Islamic Stock Fund (CDC) 105,301 0.1987%
17 CDC - Trustee Atlas Stock Market Fund (CDC) 261,999  0.4945%
18 CDC - Trustee Faysal Asset Allocation Fund (CDC) 330 0.0006%
19 CDC - Trustee Faysal Islamic Stock Fund (CDC) 17,457  0.0329%
20 CDC - Trustee Faysal Stock Fund (CDC) 811 0.0015%
21 CDC - Trustee JS Islamic Fund (CDC) 17,739  0.0335%
22 CDC - Trustee JS Islamic Pension Savings Fund-Equity Account (CDC) 1,990 0.0038%
23 CDC - Trustee JS Large Cap. Fund (CDC) 70,000 0.1321%
24 CDC - Trustee JS Pension Savings Fund - Equity Account (CDC) 3,700 0.0070%
25 CDC - Trustee Lakson Equity Fund (CDC) 86,420 0.1631%
26 CDC - Trustee Lakson Islamic Tactical Fund (CDC) 2,528 0.0048%
27 CDC - Trustee Lakson Tactical Fund (CDC) 2,254  0.0043%
28 CDC - Trtustee Mahaana Islamic Index Excnaged Traded Fund (CDC) 2,644  0.0050%
29 CDC - Trustee MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund (CDC) 140,000 0.2642%
30 CDC - Trustee Meezan Asset Allocation Fund (CDC) 1,000 0.0019%
31 CDC - Trustee Meezan Balanced Fund (CDC) 15,350 0.0290%
32 CDC - Trustee Meezan Islamic Fund (CDC) 228,784 0.4318%
33 CDC - Trustee UBL Asset Allocation Fund (CDC) 6,871 0.0130%
34 Cdc - Trustee UBL Retirement Savings Fund - Equity Sub Fund (CDC) 54,494  0.1029%
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Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

35 CDC - Trustee UBL Stock Advantage Fund (CDC) 356,551 0.6729%
36 CDC - Trustee Unit Trust Of Pakistan (CDC) 44,500 0.0840%
37 CDC Trustee - Meezan Dedicated Equity Fund (CDC) 2,320 0.0044%
38 CDC-Trustee Al-Ameen Islamic Ret. Sav. Fund-Equity Sub Fund (CDC) 63,202 0.1193%
39 MCFSL - Trustee JS Growh Fund (CDC) 99,500 0.1878%
40 MCBFSL - Trustee ABL Islamic Stock Fund (CDC) 38,200 0.0721%
41 MCBFSL Trustee ABL Islamic Dedicated Stock Fund (CDC) 200 0.0004%

Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise):

1  Tausif Ahmad Khan (CDC) 3,961,554  7.4770%
2 Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri 1,282 0.0024%
3 Taufig Ahmed Khan (CDC) 5,230,533  9.8720%
4 Tauqir Ahmad Khan 6,269,314 11.8326%
5 Romesh Alexander Iddomalgada Elapata 1,037  0.0020%
6  Tehmina Saeed Chaudhary (CDC) 23,495 0.0443%
7  Tarig Wajid (CDC) 126  0.0002%
8  Zainub Abbas W/O Tausif Ahmad Khan(CDC) 2,318,940 4.3767%
Executives - -

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 6,190,535 11.6839%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:
Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise)

1  Taugir Ahmed Khan 6,269,314 11.8326%
2 Taufig Ahmed Khan 5,230,533 9.8720%
3 PharmatecInvestments Limited 4,416,242 8.3351%
4 Tausif Ahmad Khan 3,961,554 7.4770%
5 Nosheen Riaz Khan (CDC) 3,689,386  6.9633%
6  State Life Insurance Corp. Of Pakistan (CDC) 2,861,953 5.4016%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Highnoon Laboratories Limited
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Highnoon Laboratories Limited (the Company),
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement
of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
unconsolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated
statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 0f 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2023 and
of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Unconsolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters

Following is the key audit matter:
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Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue from contracts with customers

As disclosed in note 3.7 to the accompanying financial
statements, revenue from sale of goods is recognized
whenthe controlofgoodsis transferred which generally
coincides with the delivery of goods. For the year ended
on31December 2023, the Company hasrecorded total
net revenue from contracts with customers amounting
to Rs. 19,424 million as compared to Rs. 15,816 million
during the previous year, which represents an increase
of approximately 22% as compared to previous year
(refer to Note 31).

When identifying and assessing the risk relating to
revenue recognition, our focus was whether the
revenue recorded by the management actually
occurred during the year and were properly recorded in
the correct accounting period.

Considering the aforementioned reasons together
with growth in revenue during the year, we have
identified this area as a key audit matter.

We performed arange of audit procedures withrespect
to revenue from customers which included, amongst
others:

¢ Obtained an understanding of the process
relating to revenue recognition from contract with
customersandtestingthe design,implementation,
and operating effectiveness of internal controls.

e Obtained an understanding of pricing mechanism
of Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP)
and tested, on sample basis, selling prices of
regulated pharmaceutical products to ensure
compliance with the pricing policies of DRAP.

¢ Reviewed contracts with customer to obtain an
understanding of terms particularly relating to
timing and transfer of control of the products
and assessed the appropriateness of revenue
recognition policies and practices followed by the
Company.

*  Performed substantive audit procedures including
analytical procedures and test of details over
revenue transactions along with review of related
supporting documents, including dispatch/deliver
related documents, bill and hold requests and
custumer acknowledgment on test basis.

e Performed cut-off procedures to ensure that the
revenue is recognized in the correct accounting
period.

*  Performed journal entry testing using a risk-based
criterion, on a sample basis, relating to revenue
transactions recorded by the Company and
reviewed underlying documentation and business
rationale of such journal entries.

e Assessing the adequacy of related disclosure
made in the unconsolidated financial statementsin
accordance with the applicable financial reporting
standards and Companies Act, 2017.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the informationincludedin
the Annual Report but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion onthe unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the otherinformation and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
onthe work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in
accordance with the accounting andreporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal controlas management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Inpreparing the unconsolidated financial statements, managementis responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability
to continue as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
fromfraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of anauditinaccordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentifyand assess therisks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due
tofraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'sinternal control.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during our
audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company'’s business; and

d) zakatdeductible at source underthe Zakatand Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1980), was deducted by Company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Omer Chughtai.

BDDQB-,&;%(_‘

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Lahore Chartered Accountants
March 29, 2025 Engagement Partner: Sajjad Hussain Gill

UDIN: AR2024100878pfEZirgL
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Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 8 3,346,874,631 3,516,225,615
Intangible assets 9 46,866,785 32,285,579
Long term investment 10 200,000,000 200,000,000
Long term deposits 11 24,916,894 23,943,429
Loan to employees 12 63,899,529 56,230,067

3,682,557,839 3,828,684,690

Current assets
Inventories 13 4,135,824,753 4,713,751,445
Trade receivables 14 2,311,740,481 2,120,418,793
Advances, trade deposits and prepayments 15 535,985,033 575,539,494
Other receivables 16 148,510,886 122,545,109
Loan to subsidiary 17 - 10,000,000
Short term investments 18 3,638,850,646 2,168,794,002
Tax refunds due from the Government 19 149,615,092 281,759,987
Cash and bank balances 20 1,459,206,965 204,337,732
12,379,733,856 10,197,146,562
TOTAL ASSETS 16,062,291,695 14,025,831,252
Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital 21 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 21 529,833,630 529,833,630
Capital reserve
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - netoftax 22 865,425,008 899,339,441
Revenue reserves
Accumulated profit 9,825,907,063 8,167,526,233
Total Equity 11,221,165,701 9,596,699,304
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 23 70,062,585 255,016,794
Long term loan - secured 24 318,819,789 647,716,085
Deferred taxliabilities 25 208,063,654 122,734,865
Deferred liabilities 26 403,793,433 528,770,871

1,000,739,461 1,554,238,615

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 27 2,621,067,508 2,055,832,586
Contract liabilities 28 62,819,114 63,189,035
Unclaimed dividend 210,193,857 138,561,386
Unpaid dividend - 111,299,848
Current portion of long term liabilities 29 196,306,054 342,116,387
Short term borrowings 30 750,000,000 163,894,091

3,840,386,533 2,874,893,333
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,062,291,695 14,025,831,252
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 31

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers- net 32 23,195,152,022 19,424,254,601
Cost of revenue 33 (11,265,537,055) (10,169,790,282)
Gross Profit 11,929,614,967 9,254,464,319
Distribution, selling and promotional expenses 34 (5,807,788,004) (4,945,905,242)
Administrative and general expenses 35 (796,246,505) (713,348,343)
Research and development expenses 36 (9,470,982) (15,020,445)
Other operating expenses 37 (515,016,183) (326,590,836)

(7,128,521,674)  (6,000,864,866)
Profit from operations 4,801,093,293 3,253,599,453
Otherincome 38 432,258,886 185,459,364
Finance cost 39 (393,893,657) (136,474,100)
Profit before income tax and levy 4,839,458,522 3,302,584,717
Levy 40 (19,902,052) (17,634,232)
Profit before income tax 4,819,556,470 3,284,950,485
Taxation 41 (1,566,055,769) (881,936,581)
Profit for the year 3,253,500,701 2,403,013,904
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 42 61.41 45.35

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form anintegral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri
Chief Executive Officer

Taufig Ahmed Khan
Director

Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Financial Officer

- L/l Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Unconsolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Profit for the year 3,253,500,701 2,403,013,904
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 22 - 664,092,846
Related deferred tax on revaluation surplus 22 - (114,269,159)
Effect of deferred tax due to change in effective tax rate 22 (7,711,645) (7,163,751)
(7,711,645) 542,659,936
Remeasurement loss or gain on gratuity - net 26.2.3 (52,166,835) 68,944,791
Related deferred tax 25.1 20,345,066 (25,474,135)
(31,821,769) 43,470,656
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods - -
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (39,533,414) 586,130,592

Total comprehensive income for the year

3,213,967,287

2,989,144,496

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri
Chief Executive Officer

Taufig Ahmed Khan
Director

Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Financial Officer
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Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 43 6,671,837,325 2,975,964,057
Income tax paid (1,440,862,409) || (1,056,274,457)
Gratuity paid (61,708,571) (36,831,974)
Finance cost paid (417,489,800) (136,474,368)
Workers' Welfare Fund paid (37,691,307) -
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid (439,932,183) 8,534,372
Loan to employees received / (paid) - net 5,374,942 (23,455,739)
Central Research Fund paid (35,833,877) (36,290,287)

(2,428,143,205)  (1,280,792,453)
Net cash generated from operating activities A 4,243,694,120 1,695,171,604
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (199,593,050) (769,980,967)
Purchase of intangible assets (25,417,036) (4,494,980)
Long term deposits - net (973,465) 24,233,160
Short terminvestments - net (1,391,423,109) (807,945,295)
Return on deposit 72,261,078 21,011,724
Loan repaid by subsidiary 10,000,000 -
Realised income on short term investment 79,159,430 -
Dividend income on short term investment 71,972,605 77,310,177
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 8.3.2 97,165,062 191,025,794
Net cash flows used in investing activities B (1,286,848,485)  (1,268,840,387)
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Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lease liabilities 23 (392,517,755) (168,248,340)
Repayment of long term loan 24.1 (266,396,296) (3,896,296)
Long term loan received 24.1 - 700,000,000
Dividend paid (1,629,168,260) (750,148,158)
Net cash flows used in financing activities Cc (2,288,082,311) (222,292,794)
Net foreign exchange difference D - 13,585,346
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) 668,763,324 217,623,769
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 40,443,641 (177,180,128)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 20.2 709,206,965 40,443,641

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan

Ashfaq P. Alidina

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Capital
Reserves Revenue reserves
Share Revaluation
" Surplus on Total
capital operating General Unappropriated
fixed assets reserve profit Sub total
-net of
deferred tax
Rupees

Balance as at January 01, 2023 418,840,820 366,714,040 114,000,000 6,545,681,588 6,659,681,588  7,445,236,448
Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity
Issuance of bonus shares @ 10% 41,884,080 - - (41,884,080) (41,884,080) -
Issuance of bonus shares @ 15% 69,108,730 - - (69,108,730) (69,108,730) -
Final dividend @ Rs. 20 per share for the year

ended December 31, 2022 - N N (837,681,640) (837,681,640)  (837,681,640)
Total comprehensive income for the year

ended December 31,2023
Profit for the year - - - 2,403,013,904 2,403,013,904 || 2,403,013,904
Other comprehensive income for the year - 542,659,936 - 43,470,656 43,470,656 586,130,592

- 542,659,936 - 2,446,484,560  2,446,484,560  2,989,144,496

Surplus transferred to accumulated profit
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus

onrevaluation - net of tax - (8,849,326) - 8,849,326 8,849,326 -
Transfer of surplus on revaluation on

disposal of operating fixed assets - net of tax - (1,185,209) - 1,185,209 1,185,209 -
Balance as at December 31, 2023 529,833,630 899,339,441 114,000,000 8,053,526,233 8,167,526,233  9,596,699,304
Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final dividend @ Rs. 30 per share for the year

ended December 31,2023 - - - (1,589,500,890) (1,589,500,890) (1,589,500,890)
Total comprehensive income for the year

ended December 31, 2024
Profit for the year - - - 3,253,500,701 3,253,500,701 || 3,253,500,701
Other comprehensive income for the year - (7,711,645) - (31,821,769) (31,821,769) (39,533,414)

- (7,711,645) - 3,221,678,932 3,221,678,932  3,213,967,287

Surplus transferred to accumulated profit
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus

onrevaluation - net of tax - (26,202,788) - 26,202,788 26,202,788 -
Transfer of surplus on revaluation on

disposal of operating fixed assets - net of tax - - - - - -
Balance as at December 31, 2024 529,833,630 865,425,008 114,000,000 9,711,907,063 9,825,907,063 11,221,165,701
The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Highnoon Laboratories Limited (“the Company”) was incorporatedin Pakistan under the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) (“the Act”) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX) since November 1994. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture, import, sale
and marketing of pharmaceutical and related consumer products.

2. GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

The registered office of the Company is situated at 17.5 km, Multan Road, Lahore.

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company'’s business units including production facilities
are as under:

Business Units Geographical Location Address
Manufacturing facility Lahore 17.5 KM, Multan Road, Lahore
ffice# 901 Tri t tre,
Corporate Office Lahore ¢ _ ce ricon Corporate Centre
Jail Road, Lahore.
. 202 Anam Empire, Block 7/8 KCHS,
Sales Office Karachi Shahrah e Faisal, Karachi
Sales Office Lahore 14-G, Block L, Gulberg - lll, Lahore
132 Hali Road, Westridge - I, Pesh
Sales Office Rawalpindi airoa estridge eshawar

Road, Rawalpindi

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved
accountingandreporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accountingand reporting standards
comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and
IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

3.2 Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for:
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

- the measurement of certain items of property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts;
- recognition of employee retirement benefits at present value; and

- certain foreign currency translation adjustments.

3.3 Separate financial statements

These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company
in which investment in subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any; consolidated financial statements are presented separately.

The Company has following investment:

Company name Country of incorporation |Percentage of shareholding Nature of business
Subsidiary
Curexa Health (Private)  Pakistan 100% The principal ~ object is

to carry out business as
manufacturer and dealer of
all kinds of pharmaceuticals.

Limited

3.4 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (“Rs"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

4. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

During the year, the Company change its accounting policy of recognizing the portion of income tax paid or
payable for the year under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, not based on the taxable profit of the Company,
as a Levy under IFRIC 21/1AS 37 instead of current income tax for the year under |IAS-12.

The management believes that the new policy provides reliable and more relevant information to the users
of the unconsolidated financial statements.

The change in accounting policy has been implemented, and last year's figures have been reclassified.
However,thechangehasnotbeenappliedretrospectivelybecauseitsimpactontheprioryearunconsolidated
financial statements is immaterial and disclosed in note 40.

The Company has opted approch (b), which state that the final tax not based on taxable profit are recogized
as levy in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

5. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

5.1 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended
December 31, 2024
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

5.2

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended December
31,2024. These standards,amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company'’s
operations or did not have significant impact on the unconsolidated financial statements other than

certain additional disclosures.

Effective date:
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Supplier
finance arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 16 ’‘Leases’ - Amendments to clarify how a
seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendmends to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

Amendmends to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
Non-current liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows'
Supplier finance arrangements

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and
interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company'’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date:
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

AmendmentstolFRS 7 'FinancialInstruments: Disclosures’ - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ -
Amendments regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that are
often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs)

Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding
nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as
power purchase agreements (PPAs)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and IASs.

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’ has been issued by IASB
effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements’ has been issued by IASB effective
from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures’ has been issued by IASB effective
from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 17 - ‘Insurance contracts’ has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However, SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption of
IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026.

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these unconsolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented in these
unconsolidated financial statements except as stated in note 4:

6.1 Leases

Company as lessee

The Company enters into lease arrangements principally in respect of plant and machinery, space for
its operations and vehicles. The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for Short
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The Company determines the lease
term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to
extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. After the commencement date,
the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate. The Company has used it incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases where
rate is not readily available.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use asset and
lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. The lease payments associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

6.2  Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and areliable estimate of the amount canbe
made. Provisions have been reviewed at reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.
Where the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, a contingent liability is
disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.

6.3 Staffretirement benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all of its permanent employees who have
joined on or before March 19, 2013, under which benefits are paid on cessation of employment subject
to a minimum qualifying period of service. This valuation is carried out by an independent actuary as at
December 31, 2024 using the project unit credit method.

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting
that amount. The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. The latest valuation was carried out on December 31, 2024.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest
expense onthe net defined benefitliability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit
liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result
of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plan are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Past service costs are immediately
recognized in statement of profit or loss.
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

6.4  Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, buildings on freehold land and plant and
machinery are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and identified impairment loss. Freehold
land is stated at revalued amount carried out by independent valuers by reference to its current
market price (less any identified impairment loss). Buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery
are stated atrevalued amount carried out by independent valuers by reference to current market price
less accumulated depreciation (and any identified impairment loss). Cost in relation to property, plant
and equipment comprises acquisition and other directly attributable costs. Revaluation is carried out
every three years or earlier as necessitated.

Surplus on revaluation has been recognized by restating gross carrying amounts of respective assets
being revalued, proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due to revaluation. The
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation was also adjusted to equal difference between
gross carryingamounts and the carrying amounts of the assets after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment has been
recognizedin other comprehensiveincome andaccumulatedinequity underthe heading of revaluation
surplus. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset charged to the statement of profit or loss, and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is
transferred to retained earnings. Upon disposal, revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets
being sold has been transferred to retained earnings. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred tax.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment, except freehold land is charged to unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss on the reducing balance method so as to write-off the depreciable
amount of an asset over its remaining estimated useful life after taking into account the impact of
their residual value, if considered significant. The assets’ residual values and useful lives have been
reviewed at financial year-end.

6.5 Inventories
Stock in trade

Stock of raw and packing materials, work-in-process and finished goods, except for those in transit,
have been valued by the Company principally at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost in
relation to raw and packing materials has been measured at moving average cost. Work-in-process
andfinished goods have been measured by the Company at weighted average cost and cost comprises
direct materials, labour and appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Stock in transit have been stated at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the
reporting date.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts, and loose tools are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method.
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

6.6 Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at cost.
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances
at banks, short term investments and outstanding balance of short term running finances.

6.7 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company is in the business of providing (a) pharmaceutical products and (b) toll manufacturing
services for pharmaceutical products to other pharmaceutical sector companies. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred which generally
coincides with the delivery of the goods to the customer for local sales at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Export
goods are considered dispatched when bill of lading / airway bill is prepared for shipment to customers.
The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because
it typically controls the goods before transferring them to the customer. The Company considers
whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price
for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of
significant financing components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer
(ifany).

Billand hold arrangement

Billand hold arrangements are those in which the Company bills customer for a product that it retains
physical possession of until it is shipped to the customer. This means that, although the customer
has been billed, delivery is postponed at the request of the customer. In accordance with applicable
accounting and financial reporting framework, the Company has recognized revenue fromiits bill and
hold arrangements upon fulfilment of all of the following criteria:

- The reason for the bill and hold arrangement is substantive. This means that it has a practical
necessity, such as the customer’s lack of available space for the product or the customer’s request
for delayed delivery.

- The productis identified separately as belonging to the customer.
- The product currently is ready for physical transfer to the customer.
- The entity cannot use the product or direct it to another customer.

Accordingly, the Company's customer have taken control of the product, even as the Company has
retained physical possession.

Toll manufacturing

There are contracts with customers to manufacture, on their behalf, the pharmaceutical products
using raw material provided by the customer. The performance obligation is satisfied upon receipt
of the finished goods by the customer and payment is generally due within 45 days from delivery.
No significant financing component exist for these contracts. The Company concluded that it
transfers control over its toll manufacturing services at a point in time, upon receipt of the product
by the customer, because this is when the customer benefits from the Company’s toll manufacturing
services.
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Refund liabilities and right to return

The Company'srefundliabilities arise from customers' right of return. Arefund liability is the obligation
to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured
at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company
uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned because this method
best predicts the amount of consideration to which the Company will not be entitled. The Company
updates its estimates of refund liabilities at the end reporting period. In general, the contracts for
sales of goods provides a customer with a right to return near expiry products. For products that are
expected to be returned, the Company recognizes a provision under refund liability netting off with
trade receivables and a corresponding adjustment in sales return.

6.8 Taxation
a) Current Tax

Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The current tax charge is calculated using the
applicable tax rates or the rates expected to apply to the year's profit if enacted, after considering
available tax credits, rebates, and exemptions, if any. It also includes adjustments, where necessary,
for prior years' tax provisions based on assessments finalized during the year.

b) Deferred Tax

For entities subject to normal tax and falls under approach (b), deferred tax is measured using the
enacted or notified tax rate as per the application guidance on "IAS 37/IFRIC 21-1AS 12 — Accounting
for Minimum and Final Taxes". Given the variability of the effective income tax rate, the Company
reassesses its estimates for measuring deferred taxes in future periods, even if the enacted income
tax rate remains unchanged.

6.9 Levy

The amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate is recognized as current income
tax expense for the year in statement of profit or loss. Any excess of expected income tax paid or
payable for the year under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 over the amount designated as current
income tax for the year, is then recognized as a levy.

6.10 Financialinstruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company have been initially recognized when the
Company became a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

6.10.1 Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Company initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profitorloss,transaction costs. Tradereceivables that donot containasignificant financingcomponent
. or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price.

- 74l Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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6.10.2 Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

The Company'’s financial assets are measured subsequently at amortized cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held withinabusiness model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, short term loans,
security deposits, trade and otherreceivables and short terminvestments (i.e. Term deposit receipts).

Financial assets — Business model assessment

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

Financial liabilities

The Company has classified all of its financial liabilities at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings
and, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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The Company'’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, long term and short term
borrowings and accrued markup.

6.10.3 Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
unconsolidated statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

Financial liability have been derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss.

6.10.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the netamountis reportedinthe unconsolidated
statement of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

6.10.5 Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognizes expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost. The
Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Loss allowances for financial
assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts
due.
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Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

6.11 Dividend

Dividend to shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved.

6.12 Deferred grants

Deferred grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income
in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at
nominal amounts and released to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal
annual installments.

6.13 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

6.14 Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Pakistani Rupees at the foreign
currency rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange approximating those at the
reporting date. Exchange differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

6.15 Borrowing cost

Finance cost onlong term liabilities / lease liabilities which are specifically obtained for the acquisition
of qualifying assets i.e. assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use, are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective asset. All other interest, mark-up
and expenses are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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6.16 EarningPer share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

6.17 Research and development Cost

The research and development costs are recogned as expenses as they are incurred, including costs
related to salaries, materials, testing, and regulatory approvals. If development activities demonstrate
technicalfeasibility and the potential to generate future economic benefits, related costs is capitalized
and amortized over their useful life.

7. SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS AND OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
7.1  Significant estimates and judgements

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates, associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if revision affects only that
period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to Company’s unconsolidated
financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as

follows:
Note

- Leases 23and 6.1

-  Staffretirement benefits 26and 6.3

- Expectedcreditloss 14.1and 6.10.5
- Taxation 41and 6.8

- Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 22 and 6.4

- Refund liability 27 and 6.7
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2024 2023
8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rupees
Operating fixed assets

Right of use assets 8.3 3,080,711,613 2,229,754,900
Capital work in progress 8.3 89,084,423 564,445,677
8.4 177,078,595 722,025,038
3,346,874,631 3,516,225,615

8.1 Depreciation charge has been allocated as under:
Cost of sale 33 177,465,641 131,312,351
Distribution, selling and promotional expenses 34 91,890,320 59,524,867
Administrative and general expenses 35 30,214,180 47,353,900
299,570,141 238,191,118

8.2  Thelatest revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery was carried
outonDecember 31,2023 by M/S Surval (Valuer on the approved list of Pakistan Banking Association)

which resulted in a surplus of Rs. 664.092 million over the net carrying value of assets.

2024 2023

8.2.1 Had the assets not beenrevalued, the carrying values would have

been: Rupees Rupees

een:

Land - freehold 328,334,371 13,989,289

Building on freehold land 310,269,679 128,773,785

Plant and machinery 8.2.2 814,965,035 609,739,773

1,453,569,085 752,502,847

8.2.2 Below is the reconciliation of carrying value without impact of

revaluation surplus:

Carrying value of assets: 968,840,082 654,495,000

Land - freehold 431,831,654 265,029,000

Building on freehold land 1,069,324,112 892,361,000

Plant and machinery
Less: Revaluation surplus

Less: Related deferred tax

2,469,995,848
(865,425,008)
(151,001,755)

1,811,885,000
(899,339,441)
(160,042,712)

(1,016,426,763)

(1,059,382,153)

Carrying value without revaluation surplus

1,453,569,085

752,502,847
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

8.3.2 Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Description Rg\:lzéd AcculeJIaFed Net Book Sales Gain Mode of Sale Particulars of
amount Depreciation Value Proceeds Purchasers
Rupees

Building Equipment Reg.No
Alto-1- Fin-Auc-Ve001 ABV 592 1,335,000 485,940 849,060 986,806 137,746 As per the Company policy  Fazal Akbar
Suzuki Cultus Vxr LE-19A-7325 1,745,000 1,202,356 542,644 1,117,555 574,911 As perthe Company policy M. Shahab
Suzuki Alto AFM 624 1,368,155 606,366 761,789 965,572 203,783 As perthe Company policy  Shakir Ali
Suzuki Alto (ACB 471) 1,433,000 758,917 674,083 1,098,574 424,491 As perthe Company policy M. Rizwan
Suzuki Alto (ABF 341) 1,433,000 772,674 660,326 981,289 320,963 As perthe Company policy Ayaz Khan
Suzuki Cultus LEA-20-6706 1,745,000 1,074,920 670,080 1,141,200 471,120 As perthe Company policy Alamzaib Khan
Suzuki Alto AFU 686 1,368,155 593,232 774,923 978,204 203,281 As perthe Company policy Jawad Sohail
Suzuki Cultus LEA-20-7488 1,745,000 1,076,161 668,839 1,254,132 585,293 As perthe Company policy ~M.Tahir Mehmood
Suzuki Alto AFU 285 1,368,155 593,232 774,923 974,389 199,466 As perthe Company policy Waheed Ahmed
Suzuki Alto AAC970 1,398,000 807,485 590,515 945,821 355,306 As perthe Company policy Baqir Fayaz
Suzuki Alto AFR 467 1,335,000 485,940 849,060 914,331 65,271 As perthe Company policy M Attiq
Suzuki Alto AFS 195 1,368,155 606,366 761,789 950,943 189,154 As perthe Company policy M Ahmad
Suzuki Motor Car ADW 345 1,394,881 726,578 668,303 1,087,348 419,045 As perthe Company policy Hazrat Ali
Suzuki Motor Car ADX 641 1,394,881 590,190 804,691 2,210,000 1,405,309 Market Sale Moin Akram
Suzuki Alto AMW 962 1,986,000 423,680 1,562,320 2,350,000 787,680 Market Sale Muhammad Naeem
Toyota Fortuner Sigma AFD-261 14,188,695 1,770,442 12,418,253 14,800,000 2,381,747 Market Sale Amir Doger
Suzuki Alto AFU 524 1,368,155 521,480 846,675 2,165,000 1,318,325 Market Sale Moin Akram
Suzuki Motor Car ADW 260 1,729,743 731,873 997,870 2,797,000 1,799,130 Market Sale Malik Irfan
Suzuki Alto AFS 468 1,368,155 634,581 733,574 2,121,000 1,387,426 Market Sale Agha Ali Jaffari
Suzuki Cultus AMW 956 2,774,000 850,693 1,923,307 2,757,000 833,693 Market Sale Agha Ali Jaffari
Suzuki Alto ALD 433 1,553,500 566,164 987,336 1,800,000 812,664 Market Sale Reliance Insurance
Suzuki Wagon-R VxI AQK 421 3,432,000 257,400 3,174,600 3,432,000 257,400 Market Sale Naseer Autos
Suzuki Wagon-R Vx| AQH 161 3,432,000 257,400 3,174,600 3,432,000 257,400 Market Sale Naseer Autos
Suzuki Wagon-R VxI AQH 862 3,432,000 257,400 3,174,600 3,432,000 257,400 Market Sale Naseer Autos
Toyota Fortuner AKC 705 15,500,000 - 15,500,000 16,700,000 1,200,000 Market Sale Mohsin Gujjar
Suzuki Alto LEB-20-7754 1,398,000 850,431 547,569 1,553,500 1,005,931 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AKQ 391 1,553,500 585,152 968,348 1,553,500 585,152 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AKQ 260 1,553,500 585,152 968,348 1,553,500 585,152 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AKX 676 1,553,500 585,152 968,348 1,553,500 585,152 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto APM 392 2,622,000 579,025 2,042,975 2,622,000 579,025 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto APM 254 2,622,000 579,025 2,042,975 2,622,000 579,025 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto ANV 347 1,986,000 522,980 1,463,020 1,986,000 522,980 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto ALD 620 1,553,500 585,152 968,348 1,553,500 585,152 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AAC 872 1,398,000 840,291 557,709 1,405,500 847,791 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto ADW 613 1,729,743 867,178 862,565 1,744,743 882,178 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AAK 845 1,398,000 820,011 577,989 1,405,500 827,511 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Cultus AEM 833 1,766,920 837,755 929,165 1,744,743 815,578 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto ABC 481 1,433,000 819,753 613,247 1,440,500 827,253 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Items having NBV less than
Rs.500,000 each 2,905,700 1,586,572 1,319,128 3,034,412 1,715,284

2024 96,668,993  (27,295,100) 69,373,894 97,165,062 27,791,168

2023 232,101,125 (54,857,597) 177,243,528 191,025,794 13,782,266
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8.3.3 Particulars ofimmovable assets of the Company are as follows:

Location and address Usage of immovable property

Land area (kanal)

Coverage area (sqr.ft)

Land: Situated at 17.5 KM

Multan Road Hadbast
. . . ... Manufacturing facilit 43.6 237,402
Mouza Kanjra, Tehsiland District 9 y
Lahore.
Land: Situated at Plot No.
173-B, 186-B  and187-B, Land purchased for new 96.0 432,547
Quaid-e-Azam Business Park, Manufacturing facility. ’ ’
Sheikhupura.
8.4 Capital work in progress
Movement in capital work in progress is as follows:
Land Plant and Machinery Others Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 269,416,665 162,666,666 40,855,392 5,199,134 411,752,981 255,564,218 722,025,038 423,430,018
Additions during the year 44,928,417 106,749,999 101,303,393 248,358,065 90,352,559 853,847,335 236,584,369 1,208,955,399
Transferred to owned assets /
reclassification to advances (314,345,082) - (141,700,623) (212,701,807) (325,485,107) (697,658,572) (781,530,812) (910,360,379)
- 269,416,665 458,162 40,855,392 176,620,433 411,752,981 177,078,595 722,025,038

This include transfer of advance against solar power equipment related to Curexa Health (Private) Limited to other

receiveable amounting to Rs. 11.574 million.

2024 2023
9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees
Intangible assets 9.1 46,866,785 32,285,579
9.1 2024
Cost Accumulated amortization
Book value
Particulars Asat Additions Asat Asat For the Asat asat31 Rate
01 January 31 December| 01 January year 31 December
December
---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ==========memmm e
Registration and trademark
(9.1.1) 154,434,175 - 154,434,175 154,434,175 154,434,175 - 10%
ERP software (9.1.2) 42,066,480 25,417,036 67,483,516 9,780,901 10,835,830 20,616,731 46,866,785 20%
196,500,655 25,417,036 221,917,691 164,215,076 10,835,830 175,050,906 46,866,785
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2023
Cost Accumulated amortization

Book value

Particulars Asat Additions Asat Asat For the Asat asat31 Rate
01 January 31 December| 01 January year 31 December
December
---------------------------------------------------- Rupees =========mm oo oo

Registration and trademark
(9.1.1) ERP 5°';;Wfr§ - 154,434,175 154,434,175 - 154,434,175 - 10%
ERP software (18.1.2) 37,571,500 4,494,980 42,066,480 1,736,104 8,044,797 9,780,901 32,285,579 20%

192,005,675 4,494,980 196,500,655 156,170,279 8,044,797 164,215,076 32,285,579

9.1.1

9.1.2

This represents registration and trademarks of brands named as “Tres Orix Forte", “Skilax Drops”
and "Blokium". These are fully amortized and are still in use.

ERP software represents the cost incurred on the implementation of IT software SAP S/4 HANA and

fee for license paid to Systems Limited for the period of 5 years.

2024 2023
9.2  Amortization charge has been allocated as under: Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sale 33 6,304,470 5,464,541
Distribution, selling and promotional expenses 34 775,562 122,633
Administrative and general expenses 35 3,755,798 2,457,623
10,835,830 8,044,797
10 LONG TERM INVESTMENT
Subsidiary Company - unlisted
Curexa Health (Private) Limited 10.1 200,000,000 200,000,000

10.1

This represents 100% (2023: 100%) shares in the Company'’s subsidiary Curexa Health (Private)
Limited, a private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2017 which has a
principal objective to carry out business as manufacturer and dealer of all kinds of pharmaceuticals.
Theregistered office and manufacturing facility of the Company is situated at 517 - Sundar Industrial
Estate, Raiwind, Lahore. The Company's interest in Curexa Health (Private) Limited is recorded at
cost in these unconsolidated financial statements.

2024 2023
11 LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note Rupees Rupees
Bank guarantee margin 1,602,710 1,602,710
Deposits with vendors 11.1 23,314,184 22,340,719
24,916,894 23,943,429
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11.1 Deposits with vendors are non-adjustable and are refundable after the contract with the service
providers are concluded. The impact of initial recognition of long term deposits at fair value under
IFRS 9 is not significant to these unconsolidated financial statements.

2024 2023
12 LOAN TO EMPLOYEES Rupees Rupees
Loan to employees - secured 12.1 73,832,905 79,207,847
Less: current portion 15 (9,933,376) (22,977,780)
63,899,529 56,230,067
12.1  These represent loan given to employees against the purchase of vehicles as per the Company'’s
policy. These loans are for maximum period of 5 years. These loans are secured against the final
settlement amount of employees. The loans carry an effective interest rate of 0% (2023: 0%) per
annum and are repayable in cash in accordance with predefined repayment schedule. Present value
adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ arising in respect
ofloan to employees is considered insignificant by the management at the financial statements level,
hence not recognized.
2024 2023
13 INVENTORIES Note Rupees Rupees
Raw materials
In hand 1,987,657,055  2,190,159,412
In transit 158,618,913 611,931,551
With third party 158,952,120 133,122,397
2,305,228,088 2,935,213,360
Packing material 748,530,418 718,868,006
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 81,173,502 63,451,738
Work in progress 451,785,182 252,216,352
Finished goods
Trading - in hand 81,276,281 143,427,588
Manufactured 661,955,592 788,181,310
13.2 743,231,873 931,608,898
Provision for slow moving and obsolete items 13.1 (194,124,310)  (187,606,909)

4,135,824,753

4,713,751,445
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
13.1 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Opening provision 187,606,909 120,468,378
Charge for the year 73,693,481 91,159,156
Reversal during the year (67,176,080) (24,020,625)
Closing provision 194,124,310 187,606,909

13.2  The finished goods are recorded at lower of cost and net realisable value which has resulted in
impairment loss amounting to Rs. 17.49 million (2023: Rs. 36.3 million) recorded in cost of sales.

2024 2023
14 TRADE RECEIVABLES Note Rupees Rupees
Export Sales 120,550,269 865,189

Local Sales

2,248,836,211

2,141,926,411

2,369,386,480

2,142,791,600

Less: allowance for expected credit losses 14.1 (57,645,999) (22,372,807)
14.2 2,511,740,481 2,120,418,793

14.1 Allowance for expected credit losses:
Opening balance 22,372,807 52,085,768
Charge / (reversal) during the year 37 35,273,192 (29,712,961)

57,645,999 22,372,807

14.2  Tradereceivables become due after 30 to 45 days of the invoice date. Generally, balances outstanding
for more than 360 days are treated as default.

2024 2023
15 ADVANCES, TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Rupees Rupees

Advances to staff

- against expenses 15.1 30,479,190 142,431,648

- against salary 15.2 26,014,292 8,219,698

- current portion of advances against vehicles 12 9,933,376 22,977,780

66,426,858 173,629,126

Advance to suppliers against goods and services 373,078,601 227,938,803

Margin against letter of credit 32,845,782 115,513,286

Trade deposits 23,831,298 25,618,887

Prepayments 39,802,494 32,839,392

535,985,033 575,539,494
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15.1 Advances to staff provided to meet business expenses are settled as and when the expenses are
incurred.

15.2  Advances to staff are interest free and settled againstimmediate salary. These advances are secured
against final settlement of staff provident fund. Present value adjustment in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ arising in respect of loan to employees is considered
insignificant by the management at the financial statements level, hence not recognized.

2024 2023
16 OTHER RECEIVABLES Note Rupees Rupees

Receivable from:

Curexa Health (Private) Limited (subsidiary company) 16.1 11,574,290 2,575,244

11,574,290 2,575,244

Interest accrued 16.2 19,979,979 8,937,542

Sales tax recoverable 111,687,167 107,401,766

Others 5,269,450 3,630,557

148,510,886 122,545,109

16.1 This represent receivable against transfer of Solar 50 Kw during the year. The maximum amount due
during the year was Rs. 11.574 million (2023: Rs. 2.575 million) as disclosed in note 8.4.

16.2  This includes mark up amounting to Rs. nil (2023: Rs. 1.05 million) receivable from the subsidiary
company against loan. The maximum amount due during the year was Rs. 1.36 million. The interest

accrued has been received during the year.

2024 2023
17 LOAN TO SUBSIDIARY Note Rupees Rupees
Loan to subsidiary 17.1 - 10,000,000

17.1  The loan has been provided to Curexa Health (Private) Limited (subsidiary company) for working
capital requirement of its cephalosporin unit. The loan carries a mark up of 6 months KIBOR plus
1.25%. A promissory note representing loan is delivered as security. The maximum aggregate
amount due from the subsidiary calculated with reference to month end balances was nil (2023: Rs.
10 million). The tenure of this one year loan ended and has been repaid during the year.

2024 2023
18 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Note Rupees Rupees
Mutual funds - fair value through profit and loss 18.1 3,471,920,933 1,699,124,325
Term deposit receipts - at amortized cost 18.2 166,929,713 469,669,677

3,638,850,646 2,168,794,002
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Note

2024

Rupees

2023

Rupees

18.1 Theseinvestments are measured at fair value through profit and loss:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Redemption during the year

Realized gain / (loss) on redemption of

1,699,124,325
4,383,230,301

(2,847,386,088)

1,193,596,924
2,387,312,516
(1,900,167,715)

investments during the year 38 79,159,430 (3,578,879)
Unrealized gain on remeasurement of

investments during the year 38 157,792,965 21,961,479
Closing fair value of short term investment 3,471,920,933 1,699,124,325

Units Fair Value
2024 2023 2024 2023
18.1.1 Mutual fund wise detail is as follows: Numbers Numbers Rupees Rupees
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund 4,836,803 519,111 520,888,356 51,438,071
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund - 832,445 - 100,101,725
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 1,934,218 846,453 215,329,898 86,119,069
Faysal Money Market Fund 2,283 2,283 303,365 262,238
NBP Money Market Fund 47,882 31,494 522,825 315,194
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund 10,542,234 9,673,984 122,532,634 103,093,716
UBL Money Market Fund 2,334,503 - 256,261,836 -
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund 1,186 1,233,476 130,968 125,279,559
UBL Government Securities Fund - 1,277,198 - 150,136,405
UBL Income Opportunity Fund - 4,150,410 - 509,258,223
UBL Al Amin Shariah Fund 7 - 2,944 -
NIT Social Impact Fund 40,583,318 - 450,313,164 -
NIT Government Bond Fund 52,329,614 - 575,819,378 -
NIT Income Fund 4,492,565 - 50,000,000 -
NIT Money Market Fund - 10,608,361 - 103,139,785
Pak Qatar Income Plan 3,458,519 - 385,598,185 -
HBL Money Market Fund 5,506 4,669 618,572 531,713
ABL Government Securities Funds B 11 - 124 -
ABL Fixed Rate Plan VIII 10,000,000 - 105,783,000 -
Units Fair Value
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2024 2023 2024 2023
Numbers Numbers Rupees Rupees

ABL Fixed Rate Plan XII 53,148,656 - 538,395,881 -
ABL Special Savings - 10,548,675 - 117,724,267
ABL Cash Fund 3,675 41,029 -
Atlas Money Market Fund - 199,611 - 102,148,457
JS Cash Fund 515 63,251 53,277
AL Habib Income Fund 1,069,540 980,325 119,084,173 100,055,094
Lakson Money Market Fund - 1,015,046 - 105,612,054
Lakson Income Fund 1,154,350 408,898 130,231,350 43,855,478

185,945,385 42,332,954 3,471,920,933 1,699,124,325

18.2 These represents investments in term deposit receipts. They carry average profit at the rate of
ranging from 11.25% to 21% (2023: 16% - 22%) with maturity up to August 2025.

2024 2023
19 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT Note Rupees Rupees
Sales tax refundable - net 222,497,425 239,319,151
Provision against sales tax refundable 19.1 (88,092,012) -
134,405,413 239,319,151
Income tax refundable - net 15,209,679 42,440,836
149,615,092 281,759,987
19.1 Provision against sales tax refundable
Opening balance - -
Charge for the year 37 88,092,012 -
88,092,012 -
20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cashin hand
Balance with banks 630,394 4,656,752
Current accounts
-Local currency 1,035,137,688 101,099,550
-Foreign currency 75,337,262 68,930,604
Saving accounts 20.1 348,101,621 29,650,826
1,458,576,571 199,680,980
1,459,206,965 204,337,732
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20.1 These represents savings accounts which carries average profit at the rate of ranging from 9.21% to

20.10% (2023: 7.51% to 20.51%).

20.2 Cashand cash equivalents

The above figures of cash and bank balances reconcile to the amount of cash and cash equivalents
shown in the statement of cashflows at the end of financial year as follows:

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances 1,459,206,965 204,337,732
Short - term borrowings 30 (750,000,000) (163,894,091)
Cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cashflows 709,206,965 40,443,641
21 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized share capital
100,000,000 (2023: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
21.1 Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

5,905,000 (2023: 5,905,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10

each fully paidin cash 59,050,000 59,050,000

95,000 (2023: 95,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

issued for consideration other than cash 21.1.1 950,000 950,000

46,983,363 (2023: 46,983,363) ordinary shares of Rs. 10

eachissued as bonus shares 469,833,630 469,833,630

529,833,630 529,833,630

21.1.1 This represents the issuance of shares against the transfer of plant and machinery and other assets.

21.1.2 Reconciliation of issued share capital:

2024 2023 2024 2023
Number Number Rupees Rupees
Balance as at January 01, 2024 52,983,363 5,000,000 529,833,630 50,000,000
Bonus shared of Rs. 10 each as
at 01 January - 36,884,082 368,840,820
Issuance of bonus shares of Rs. 10 each - 11,099,281 110,992,810
Balance as at December 31, 2024 52,983,363 52,983,363 529,833,630 529,833,630
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21.3 Allordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares
are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
general meetings of the Company. The shareholders of the Company do not have any agreements

for voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal, and block voting.

2024 2023

22. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON OPERATING FIXED ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees
Opening balance of gross surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets 1,059,382,153 410,958,473
Addition during the year - 664,092,846
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets relating to
disposal of plant and machinery - transferred to
unappropriated profits - (1,634,068)

Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on revaluation of

fixed assets - transferred to unappropriated profits

(42,955,390)

(14,035,098)

Less related deferred tax liability on:

1,016,426,763

1,059,382,153

Balance at the beginning of the year 160,042,712 44,244,433

Related deferred tax on additions during the year - 114,269,159

Effect of deferred tax due to change in effective tax rate 7,711,645 7,163,751

Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets relating to

disposal of plant and machinery - transferred to

unappropriated profits - (448,859)

Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on revaluation

of operating fixed assets - transferred to unappropriated profits (16,752,602) (5,185,772)
151,001,755 160,042,712

Closing balance of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 22.1 865,425,008 899,339,441

22.1 The latest revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery was carried
out on December 31,2023 by M/S Surval (Valuer on the approved list of Pakistan Banking Association)
which resulted in a surplus of Rs. 664 million. The surplus on revaluation of freehold land, building on
freeholdland and plantand machineryis notavailable for distributionto the shareholdersinaccordance
with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017. For details of related fair value determination, refer to
Note 48.2 of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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2024 2023
23 LEASE LIABILITIES Rupees Rupees
Present value of lease payments 136,042,610 528,560,365
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (65,980,025) (273,543,571)
70,062,585 255,016,794

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

2024
Rupees
Building Vehicles Npllaacnr:cira];jy Total
As at January 01, 182,553,545 233,374,726 112,632,094 528,560,365
Additions - 67,224,550 37,000,000 104,224,550
Accretion of interest 16,533,888 43,593,946 9,599,182 69,727,016
Payments (148,284,241) (292,253,804) (125,931,276) (566,469,321)
As at December 31, 50,803,192 51,939,418 33,300,000 136,042,610
2023
Rupees
Building Vehicles r\z;acn}:i:zgy Total
As at January 01, 124,841,368 41,497,713 91,675,000 258,014,081
Additions 90,267,333 235,895,465 112,632,094 438,794,892
Accretion of interest 13,193,742 29,770,022 10,302,444 53,266,208
Payments (45,748,898) (73,788,474) (101,977,444) (221,514,816)
As at December 31, 182,553,545 233,374,726 112,632,094 528,560,365

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

2024 2023
23.1 Maturity analysis of lease liabilities: Rupees Rupees
Within one year 82,484,990 197,327,913
After one year but not more than five years 84,450,783 446,666,984
More than five years - 32,562,370
Finance cost (30,893,163) (147,996,902)
Total lease liabilities 136,042,610 528,560,365
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23.2 Salient features of the leases are as follows:

- Discounting factor 8.94% -23.84%  8.94% -23.65%
- Lease term 24to 120 Months 24 to 120 Months
Note 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

23.3 Amountrecognised in statement of profit or loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities 39 69,727,016 53,266,208
Expenses related to short term leases 107,976,674 41,037,823
Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 177,703,690 94,304,031

24 LONG-TERM LOAN - SECURED
Long termloans 24.1 447,716,085 714,112,381
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 29 (128,896,296) (66,396,296)
318,819,789 647,716,085

24.1 The movement oflongterm loanis as follows:

Opening balance as at 01 January 24.1.2 714,112,381 18,008,677
Loan obtained during the year 24.1.1 - 700,000,000
Principal payments made during the year (266,396,296) (3,896,296)
447,716,085 714,112,381

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (128,896,296) (66,396,296)
Closing balance as at 31 December 318,819,789 647,716,085

24.1.1 Theloans include two facilities amounting to Rs. 200 million and Rs. 500 million with maturity date of
October 23, 2028 and June 05, 2028. These loans were obtained during 2023 from Meezan Bank Lim-
ited to meet the long term financing needs and carries markup at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 0.1%
per annum, repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments commenced after a grace period of one year.
However the facility of Rs. 200 million has been early settled during the year. This facility is secured
against first pari passu charge over all present and future plant and machinery.
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24.1.2 Thisincludesloan obtained from MCB Bank Limited with maturity date of June 10, 2029 under facility
for setting up solar based power project under SBP financing scheme for renewable energy having
sanctioned limit of Rs. 50 million (2023: Rs. 50 million) and carries markup at the rate of 2% + 0.5%
per annum payable quarterly (2023: 2% + 0.5%) whereas principal is repayable in 27 equal quarterly
instalments starting from December 10, 2022. This facility is secured against lien on mutual funds
up to Rs. 67 million placed in MCB Investment Management Limited. The loan has been measured
at its fair value in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) using effective interest rate of 3M
KIBOR at respective draw down date. The difference between fair value of loan and loan proceeds
has been recognised as deferred grant as per requirements of IAS 20 (Accounting for Government
grants and disclosure of Government assistance) and as per circular 11/2020 issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

24.1.3 Facilities obtained from Meezan Bank Limited comprise of letters of credit (sight/ usance) individually
amounting to Rs. 500 million (2023: Rs. 500 million), Trust receipt finance amounting to Rs. 500
million (2023: Rs. 500 million) and DOC delivered against acceptance amounting to Rs. 500 million

(2023: Rs 500 million)

2024 2023
25 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax liabilities - net 25.1 208,063,654 122,734,865
Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences:
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 146,609,210 154,768,981
Accelerated tax depreciation 333,811,106 156,595,223
Lease arrangement - net - 13,259,120
480,420,316 324,623,324

Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences:
Allowance for expected credit losses (22,481,940) (8,266,439)
Lease arrangement - net (18,313,693)
Provision for gratuity (155,852,548) (193,622,020)
Provision for inventories (75,708,481) -

(272,356,662) (201,888,459)
Deferred tax liabilities 208,063,654 122,734,865
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2024 2023
25.1 Movement of deferred grant is as follows: Note Rupees Rupees
As at January 01, 122,734,865 (34,531,275)
Recognized as deferred tax expense / (income) in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets (15,871,416) (10,908,362)
Accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assets 177,215,883 7,590,341
Lease liabilities (31,572,813) (13,946,977)
Provisions (75,708,481) 74,582,638
Allowance for expected credit losses (14,215,501) 8,014,322
Gratuity 58,114,538 (54,972,867)
97,962,210 10,359,095
220,697,075 (24,172,180)
Recognized as deferred tax expense in unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income:
Gratuity (20,345,066) 25,474,135
Surplus on revaluation on operating fixed assets - 114,269,159
Effect of deferred tax due to change in effective tax rate 7,711,645 7,163,751
(12,633,421) 146,907,045
208,063,654 122,734,865
26 DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred grant 26.1 4,171,514 4,740,137
Gratuity 26.2 399,621,919 524,030,734
403,793,433 528,770,871
26.1 Movement of deferred grant is as follows:
Opening balance as at January 01, 6,916,657 8,232,117
Grant income recognized during the year 38 (1,315,410) (1,315,460)
Closing balance as at December 31, 5,601,247 6,916,657
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 29 (1,429,733) (2,176,520)
Non current portion 4,171,514 4,740,137
26.2 As discussed in Note 6.3, the Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees,

under which benefits are paid on cessation of employment subject to a minimum qualifying period of

service.
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Present value of defined benefit obligation 26.2.1 399,621,919 524,030,734
26.2.1 Movement in the present value of define benefit obligation:
Opening balance as at January 01, 524,030,734 525,066,824
Current service cost 30,487,822 32,542,931
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 78,908,232 72,197,744
Benefits paid during the year (55,378,631) (31,791,657)
Gains on plan curtailment 26.2.9 (224,263,133) -
Charge to other comprehensive income 52,166,835 (68,944,791)
405,951,859 529,071,051
Less: balance due but not paid (6,329,940) (5,040,317)
Closing balance as at 31 December 399,621,919 524,030,734
26.2.2 (Reversal) / expense recognized in statement of profit or loss:
Current service cost 30,487,822 32,542,931
Interest cost 78,908,232 72,197,744
Gains arising on plan curtailment (224,263,133) -
(114,867,079) 104,740,675
26.2.3 Remeasurement gain recognized in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses and (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 35,969,175 (76,584,045)
Experience adjustments 16,197,660 7,639,254
52,166,835 (68,944,791)
26.2.4 Historical information for gratuity plan
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
---------------------- Rupees ------------------

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 399,621,919 524,030,734

525,066,824 546,646,832 525,419,561

Remeasurement
adjustment arising on
plan liabilities

52,166,835 (68,944,791) (46

,524,657)

17,177,141 63,821,894

Remeasurement adjustment
as percentage of
13.05%

outstanding liability -13.74%

-8.86%

3.14%
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The projected unit credit method with the following significant assumptions was used for the valuation
of this scheme:

2024 2023
Discount rate used for interest cost 16.00% p.a. 14.25%p.a.
Discount rate used for year end obligation 12.25% p.a. 16.00% p.a.
Expectedrate of increase in salary 10.50% p.a. 12.00% p.a.
Expected average remaining working life time 6 years 6 years
Mortality rates SLIC SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005

26.2.5 Estimated expense of current service and interest cost on defined benefit obligation to be charged
to statement of profit or loss for the year ending December 31, 2024 amounts to Rs. 30.487 million
and Rs. 78.908 million respectively, while gain arising on plan curtailments amount to Rs. 224.263
million, resulting in a net gain of Rs. 114.867 million to be reflected in Profit and Loss.

26.2.6 Sensitivity analysis

Significant assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit plan obligation are discount
rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Discount rate + 100 bps 131,691,492 492,424,385
Discount rate - 100 bps 149,882,941 559,172,372
Salary increase + 100 bps 150,096,939 560,515,351
Salary increase - 100 bps 131,349,637 490,692,201

26.2.7 The following are the expected payments in future years:

Within next 12 months 31,754,598 47,813,755
Between 2 and 5 years 230,127,665 274,266,108
Between 5 and 10 years 276,288,267 623,645,202
Beyond 10 years 601,635,042 2,998,255,869

Total expected payments

1,139,805,572

3,943,980,934

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 6

years (2023: 6 years).
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26.2.8 Risks on account of defined benefit plans:

Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Group has
assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase
proportionately.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields. A
decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by
anincrease in the value of the current plans’ bond holdings.

26.2.9 Theplancurtailmentarisesasthe gratuity benefitfor non-workeremployeeshave beendiscontinued
with effect from January 01, 2025.

2024 2023
27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees Rupees
Trade creditors 27.1 1,564,774,648 861,809,007
Accrued expenses 308,683,354 382,864,112
Accrued markup 27,178,872 50,775,015
Due to employees 136,398,316 69,229,897
Provision for leave encashment 49,582,690 35,789,997
Payable to central research fund 27.2 49,879,097 35,345,943
Payable to provident fund trust 27.3 17,009,328 10,923,284
Withholding tax payable 49,777,240 35,656,626
Refund liabilities 145,027,808 166,259,017
Workers welfare fund payable 27.4 274,744,077 228,368,351
Workers' profit participation fund 27.5 (1,987,922) 178,811,337

2,621,067,508 2,055,832,586

27.1 These include a balance amounting to Rs. 7.631 million (2023: Nil ) due to Curexa Health (Private)
Limited, a related party on account of purchases made during the year. This also include a balance
amounting to Rs. 2.153 million (2023: Nil ) due to Route 2 Health (Private) Limited, a related party on
account of purchases made during the year.

27.2 Central research fund is charged at 1% of the profit before tax, of pharmaceutical companies and is
deposited to the Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP) for supporting research of public and
national interests.

27.3  Allinvestments out of provident fund have been made in the collective investment schemes, listed
equity and listed debt securities in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies
Act 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.
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2024 2023
27.4 Workers Welfare Fund Payable Note Rupees Rupees
Opening balance as at January 01, 228,368,351 161,403,821
Charge for the year 37 84,067,033 63,655,201
Payment / Adjustment (37,691,307) 3,309,329
Closing balance as at December 31, 274,744,077 228,368,351
27.5 Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Opening balance as at January 01, 178,811,337 (8,534,371)
Charge for the year 37 259,132,924 178,811,337
Amount received from fund - 209,570,389
437,944,261 379,847,355
Paid / adjustment during the year (439,932,183) (201,036,018)
Closing balance as at December 31, (1,987,922) 178,811,337
28 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Advance from local distributors 50,959,054 11,657,504
Advance from institutions 11,724,730 6,918,934
Advance from foreign customer - export 135,330 44,511,011
Advance from toll customer - 101,586
62,819,114 63,189,035
28.1 The aging of contract liabilities is as follows:
Less than or equal to 30 days 54,744,514 61,476,590
31-90days 5,410,424 944,716
91-180 days 321,108 215,739
More than 180 days 2,343,068 551,990
62,819,114 63,189,035

28.2 Contractliabilities represent short term advances received from customers against delivery of goods
in future. Contract liabilities as at the beginning of the year, aggregating to Rs. 63.19 million (2023: Rs.
72.26 million), have been recognized as revenue upon transfer of control. The Company expects that
outstanding contract liabilities will be recognised as revenue within next financial year.
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2024 2023
29. CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees
Lease liabilities 23 65,980,025 273,543,571
Long-term loan - secured 24 128,896,296 66,396,296
Deferred grant 26.1 1,429,733 2,176,520
196,306,054 342,116,387
30 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Meezan Bank Limited 30.1 750,000,000 163,894,091
30.1 Facilities obtained from Meezan Bank Limited comprise of running musharakah amounting to Rs.
750 million (2023: Rs. 500 million) and letter of credit (sight) under Musawamah amounting to Rs.
800 million (2023: Rs. 800 million). The facilities are secured against joint pari passu charge over all
present and future current assets. The rate of profit on running musharak is 1 month KIBOR - 2.50%
(2023:1 month KIBOR + 0.25%). Out of the aggregated facility, export refinance facility amounting to
Rs. 200 million (2023: Rs. 200 million) is available as a sub limit under the same security. This facility
carries profit at the rate of SBP rate plus 1% (2023: SBP rate plus 1%).
31. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

31.1

31.1.1

31.1.2

31.1.3

Contingencies

While finalizing income tax assessments for the tax year 2010, Additional Commissioner Inland
Revenue (ACIR) had made addition on account of impairment loss with aggregate tax impact of Rs.
10 milliononMay 31,2013. The Company had filed anappeal on August 25,2014, before Commission
Inland Revenue [CIR] (Appeals) who had upheld the additions, vide order no. 5/A-1V dated November
12, 2015. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) on December 30, 2015, who deleted the aforesaid additions. However, Federal Board of
Revenue has filed reference before honourable Lahore High Court against the judgment of ATIR.
The case is pending for adjudication. No provision has been recognized by the Company, as the
management on the basis of their legal consultant’s opinion expects a favourable outcome.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has passed orders under section 161/205 in respect of
Tax Years 2015 and 2016 and created a demand of Rs. 2.7 million based on the observation that
the Company has not deducted withholding tax while making payment to certain suppliers. Being
aggrieved, the Company filed appeal before the CIR (Appeals) who upheld the order passed by DCIR.
Against the treatment method out, the Company preferred appeal before Honorable ATIR which
is pending adjudication. Provision has not been recognized by the Company, as the management
expects a favorable outcome.

The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue has passed orders under section 161/205 inrespect of
Tax Years 2017 and created a demand of Rs. 4.1 million based on the observation that the Company
has not deducted withholding tax while making payment to certain suppliers. Being aggrieved, the
Company filed appeal before the CIR (Appeals) who which is pending for adjudication. Provision has
not been recognized by the Company, as the management expects a favorable outcome.
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31.1.4 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an order under section 45B of the Sales Tax Act,
1990 by creating demand of Rs. 4.3 million. The Company has preferred to file an appeal before
Commission Inland Revenue [CIR] (Appeals) against the said order which has been partially decided
in the favor of the Company and demand has been reduced by Rs. 3.73 million. The Company has
preferred appeal against the remaining amount before ATIR, which is pending for adjudication.
Provision has not been recognized by the Company, as the management expects a favorable
outcome.

31.1.5 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an order under section 45B of the Sales Tax Act,
1990 by creating demand of Rs. 10.6 million. The Company has preferred to file an appeal before
ATIR against the said order which is pending for adjudication. Provision has not been recognized by
the Company, as the management expects a favorable outcome.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
31.2 Commitments

The Company has commitments against:

Letter of credit 963,000,541 930,532,695
Bank contracts 270,379,501 149,524,444
ljarah rentals 31.2.1 - 12,127,859
Capital expenditure - 35,583,333

1,233,380,042 1,127,768,331

31.2.1 Future payments under ljarah:

Within one year - 8,085,216
After one year but not more than five years - 4,042,643
31.3 - 12,127,859

31.3 This represents three-year ijarah contract with First Habib Modaraba is for 8 company vehicles,
rentals of which are calculated with reference to 6 month KIBOR + 2% subject to a 10% floor and
20% ceiling. The rate is subject to revision on semi annual basis and in case the rate is not available
at any time, the rental amounts will be calculated on any substitute mode available which is deemed
to be fit by the bank.

31.4  The Company has given post dated cheques of Rs. 8.56 million (2023: Rs. 6.00 million) to Total
Parco Pakistan Limited and Rs 5.5 million (2023: 5.5 million) as security against fuel cards provided
to employees and Rs. 1 million (2023: Rs. 1 million) to Metro cash and carry for the credit limit for
purchasing related to canteen.
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2024 2023
32. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS- NET Note Rupees Rupees
Local sales 32.1 25,533,249,147 20,154,920,505

Export sales

1,947,309,165

1,200,218,964

Toll manufacturing

27,480,558,312
712,472,182

21,355,139,469
616,705,105

Less:

Trade Discounts
Sales tax

Sales return

28,193,030,494

21,971,844,574

4,107,046,135
243,847,447
646,984,890

2,136,572,607
173,253,818
237,763,548

(4,997,878,472)

(2,547,589,973)

32.2 23,195,152,022  19,424,254,601

32.1 Thisincludes revenue from sale of finished goods purchased by the Company amounting to Rs. 1,303
million (2023: Rs. 2,968 million).

2024 2023
32.2 Geographical information Note Rupees Rupees

Revenue from external customers - net

Pakistan 21,247,842,857  18,224,035,635
Afghanistan via an agent 1,450,077,421 750,302,844
United Arab Emirates 142,906,011 142,687,882
France 130,036,251 81,532,250
Kenya 75,467,480 20,528,934
Iraq 40,880,365 45,082,129
Cambodia 12,232,658 15,837,460
Tanzania 10,951,741 39,026,445
Dubai 37,291,828 78,482,636
Sudan 20,612,556 22,102,401
Others 26,852,854 4,635,985

23,195,152,022 19,424,254,601
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32.3 Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the control of the goods and services
is transferred to the customer. The Company makes sales against advances as well as on credit
terms. In case of credit sales, payment is generally due within 30-45 days.

2024 2023
33.  COST OF SALES Note Rupees Rupees

Raw and packing material consumed 8,041,354,832 6,528,510,626
Toll charges 120,361,561 101,548,946
Stores consumed 128,460,037 109,141,883

33.1  8,290,176,430 6,739,201,455
Salaries, wages and benefits 33.2 999,506,427 811,547,497
Fuel and power 354,124,260 244,293,925
Repairs and maintenance 33,352,427 20,992,776
Depreciation 8.1 177,465,641 131,312,351
Amortization 9.2 6,304,470 5,464,541
Factory supplies 23,536,681 6,651,752
Vehicle running and maintenance 138,773,348 103,232,216
Insurance 26,777,097 19,784,150
Printing and stationery 47,501,525 14,440,125
Fee and subscription 79,805,938 32,304,307
Rent, rates and taxes 33.3 53,180,688 35,338,288
Traveling and conveyance 20,827,158 22,445,384
Consultancy and professional charges 10,506,807 4,677,237
Telephone, postage and communication 3,410,446 1,901,565
Training 8,358,537 -
Other direct costs 20,819,648 1,203,043

10,294,427,528

8,194,790,612
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Inventory effect of work in process
Opening 252,216,352 272,204,156
Closing (451,785,182) (252,216,352)
(199,568,830) 19,987,804

Cost of goods manufactured
Inventory effect of finished goods
Opening
Closing

10,094,858,698

8,214,778,416

788,181,310 627,415,587
(661,955,592) (788,181,310)
126,225,718 (160,765,723)

Inventory effect of trading goods

10,221,084,416

8,054,012,693

Opening 143,427,588 553,389,764
Purchases 982,301,332 1,705,815,413
Closing (81,276,281) (143,427,588)
1,044,452,639 2,115,777,589

Cost of goods sold 11,265,537,055  10,169,790,282

33.1 Raw, packing material and store consumed:

Opening stock
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing stock

13

3,717,533,104
7,707,575,334
(3,134,932,008)

2,502,553,383
7,954,181,176
(3,717,533,104)

Consumed during the year

8,290,176,430

6,739,201,455

33.2 Thisincludes the following staff benefits:

Defined benefit plan - gratuity (29,139,313) 34,582,418
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 22,780,435 20,472,877
Provision for compensated leave absences 13,823,744 14,647,215

7,464,866 69,702,510
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33.3  Thisrepresents payment amounting to Rs. 53.18 million (2023: Rs. 35.33 million) in respect of rent of
warehouses. The Company has accounted for this using short term lease exemptions accounting of

IFRS
2024 2023
34. DISTRIBUTION, SELLING AND PROMOTIONAL EXPENSES Note Rupees Rupees
Salaries and benefits 34.1 2,012,008,200 1,711,796,329
Traveling and conveyance 878,342,366 613,520,784
Training, seminars and symposia 377,151,714 491,125,044
Literature, promotion and advertisement material 1,269,521,157 1,263,638,417
Vehicle running and maintenance 324,326,602 353,832,649
Freight 204,483,244 177,412,547
Sample goods 223,681,161 108,370,092
Newspapers and subscriptions 140,984,148 61,582,907
Depreciation 8.1 91,890,320 59,524,867
Amortization 9.2 775,562 122,633
Insurance 46,890,787 52,614,724
Telephone, postage and communication 28,137,273 16,757,126
Commission on settlement 14,471,865 5,825,319
Rent, rates and taxes 34.2 53,131,835 5,699,535
Office supplies 7,642,099 1,137,020
Printing and stationery 2,893,202 3,217,586
Repairs and maintenance 123,696,267 -
Legal and professional charges 2,498,560 11,425,066
ljarah rentals - 7,950,557
Others 5,261,642 352,040

5,807,788,004

4,945,905,242

34.1 This includes following staff benefits:

Defined benefit plan - gratuity (48,460,668) 38,911,493
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 44,182,363 46,579,544
Provision for compensated leave absences 19,084,562 18,625,860

14,806,257 104,116,897

34.2  This represents payment amounting to Rs. 53.13 million (2023: Rs. 5.69 million) in respect of rent of
warehouses. The Company has accounted for this using short term lease exemptions accounting of

IFRS-16.
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2024 2023
35. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES Note Rupees Rupees
Salaries and benefits 35.1 421,140,026 393,120,439
Depreciation 8.1 30,214,180 47,353,900
Amortization 9.2 3,755,798 2,457,623
Vehicle running and maintenance 80,797,090 70,114,010
Donation 35.3 3,613,440 1,580,000
Repairs and maintenance 15,998,355 17,507,855
Newspapers and subscriptions 58,074,434 40,011,841
Telephone, postage and communication 6,704,637 10,256,377
Rent, rates and taxes 1,664,151 -
Traveling and conveyance 18,671,572 24,472,798
Legal and professional charges 45,202,785 22,390,867
Electricity, gas and water 50,946,767 20,769,687
Office supplies 15,723,247 21,509,139
Insurance 7,377,341 4,537,044
Advertisement, seminars and symposia 20,516,204 22,258,066
Printing and stationery 8,593,785 8,210,507
Auditors' remuneration 35.2 4,663,850 4,563,850
Others 2,588,843 2,234,340

796,246,505 713,348,343

35.1 Itincludes the following staff benefits:

Defined benefit plan - gratuity (37,267,098) 31,246,763
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 13,836,414 12,971,109
Provision for compensated leave absences 3,581,904 3,671,160

(19,848,780) 47,889,032

35.2 Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit 2,310,000 2,310,000
Fee for review of half yearly financial information 530,000 526,350
Other certification 887,500 887,500
Review of statement of compliance 240,000 240,000
Out of pocket 696,350 600,000

4,663,850 4,563,850
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35.3 There is no donation to a party exceeding Rs. 500,000 of the Company'’s total amount of donation except
to the three parties that includes donation of Rs. 500,000, Rs. 852,671 and Rs. 1,000,000 to Indus hospital,
Hitase and PPMA Pak Pharma Summit. Further, none of the Directors or their spouses have any interest in the

donee.
2024 2023
36. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES Note Rupees Rupees
Salaries and benefits 36.1 8,696,171 13,112,787
Vehicle repair and maintenance 744,186 1,676,036
Insurance - 50,531
Others 30,625 181,091
9,470,982 15,020,445
36.1 Itincludes the defined contribution plan - provident fund of Rs. 0.26 million (2023: Rs. 0.45 million)
2024 2023
37. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Note Rupees Rupees
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 27.5 259,132,924 178,811,336
Workers' Welfare Fund 27.4 84,067,033 63,655,201
Central Research Fund 50,367,031 38,336,470
Allowance for expected credit losses 14.1 35,273,192 -
Provision against sales tax refundable 19.1 88,092,012 -
Realized loss on sale of short term investments - 3,578,879
Exchange (gain) / loss 18.1 (1,916,009) 42,208,950
515,016,183 326,590,836
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2024 2023
38. OTHERINCOME Note Rupees Rupees
Return on deposits and mark up oninterest bearing accounts 72,261,078 21,011,724
Dividend Income on short-term investment 71,972,605 77,310,177
Unrealized gain on re-measurement of short
term investment to fair value 157,792,965 21,961,479
Realised gain on short term investment 79,159,430 -
Interest on loan to subsidiary 305,142 2,243,055
Deferred Income 26.1 1,315,410 1,315,460
Gain on disposal of operating fixed asset 8.3.2 27,791,169 13,782,266
Liabilities written back - 10,048,111
Scrap sales 17,903,483 2,973,522
Reversal of expected credit losses 14.1 - 29,712,961
Other income 3,757,604 5,100,609
432,258,886 185,459,364
39. FINANCE COST
Finance cost on lease liabilities 23.3 69,727,016 53,266,208
Markup on long term loans 217,671,374 2,704,233
Markup on short term borrowings 95,573,049 76,257,736
Bank charges 10,922,218 4,245,923
393,893,657 136,474,100
40. LEVY
Levy
Final tax 40.1 19,902,052 17,634,232

40.1 Thisrepresents final taxes paid under Section 154A of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 representing levy

in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.
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40.2 Reconciliation of levy charge

Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised

in the statement of profit or loss is as follows:

Current tax liability for the year as per applicable
tax laws

Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws,
representing income tax under IAS 12

Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws,

representing levy in terms of requirements of

2024
Rupees

1,524,386,150

(1,504,484,098)

2023
Rupees

1,014,194,648

(996,560,416)

IFRIC 21/1AS 37 (19,902,052) (17,634,232)
Difference - -
41. TAXATION
Currentincome tax
Current year 1,504,484,098 996,560,416
Prior year (36,390,539) (124,982,930)
1,468,093,559 871,577,486

Deferred tax

Current year 97,962,210 (64,223,543)
Prior year - 74,582,638
97,962,210 10,359,095

1,566,055,769 881,936,581
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41.1 Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

Numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

2024

Rupees

2023

Rupees

Profit before tax

4,839,458,522

3,302,584,717

Tax expense on accounting profit (29% as

per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001) 1,403,442,971 957,749,568
Effect of allowable / not allowable deductions (130,091,163) 215,646,068
Tax credit (975,069) (581,878)
Effect of amounts subject to fixed / final taxes (55,945,602) (496,154,396)
Effect of super tax 386,015,171 255,677,511
Prior year income tax charge (36,390,539) (124,982,930)
Prior year deferred tax charge - 74,582,638
Average tax expense charged to profit or loss 1,566,055,769 881,936,581
Average tax rate charged to profit or loss 32.36% 26.70%

41.2

The aggregate of final tax and income tax amounting to Rs. 1,524.386 million (2023: Rs. 1,014.194

million) represents tax liability of the Company calculated under the relevant provisions of the

Income Tax Ordinance 2001.

42 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company which is based on:

2024 2023
Profit after taxation Rupees 3,253,500,701 2,403,013,904
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number of shares 52,983,363 52,983,363
Earnings per share Rupees 61.41 45.35

42.1 During the year the Company has not issued any bonus shares.
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2024 2023
43 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note Rupees Rupees

Profit before taxation 4,819,556,470 3,302,584,717
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 8.3 299,570,141 238,191,118
Amortization of intangible assets 9.2 10,835,830 8,044,797
(Reversal) / provision for defined benefit obligation 26.2.2 (114,867,079) 104,740,675
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks 13.1 6,517,401 91,159,156
Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund 27.5 259,132,924 178,811,336
Provision for Workers Welfare Fund 27.4 84,067,033 63,655,201
Provision for Central Research Fund 37 50,367,031 38,336,470
Finance cost 39 393,893,657 136,474,100
Allowance / (reversal) for expected credit losses 14.1 35,273,192 (29,712,961)
Provision for sales tax refundable 88,092,012 -
Deferredincome 38 (1,315,410) (1,315,460)
Exchange (gain) / loss - net 37 (1,916,009) 42,208,950
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 38 (27,791,169) (13,782,267)
Liabilities written back 38 - (10,048,111)
Un-realized gain on remeasurement of investments 38 (157,792,965) (21,961,479)
Return on deposits 38 (72,261,078) (21,011,724)
Dividend income on short term investment 38 (71,972,605) (77,310,177)

779,832,906 726,479,625

Cash flow before working capital changes
Working capital changes:

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stockin trade

Trade debts

Advances, trade deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Tax refunds due from the Government
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

5,599,389,376

4,029,064,342

571,409,291
(224,678,871)
26,510,057
(25,965,777)
16,821,726

708,721,444
(369,921)

(969,816,089)
(816,163,164)
396,268,566
16,554,520
78,300,900

250,829,617
(9,074,635)

1,072,447,949

(1,053,100,285)

Cash generated from operations

6,671,837,325

2,975,964,057
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44. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the unconsolidated financial statements for remuneration, allowances
including all benefits to the Chief Executive and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2024 2023
Ch'e.f Executives Ch'ef Executives
Executive Executive
------------ Rupees--------------

Short-term employee benefits
Managerial remuneration 21,875,202 511,989,599 20,066,172 405,566,960
House rent, utilities and medical 7,954,116 266,255,928 10,033,092 216,754,792
Retirement benefits 5,924,228 35,574,052 6,827,328 64,230,585
Bonus 5,734,725 162,927,666 6,690,025 111,602,368

41,488,271 976,747,245 43,616,617 798,154,705
Number of persons 1 198 1 134
44.1 In addition to the above, chief executive and certain other executives have been provided with free

use of the Company maintained cars as per terms of employment. Further, medical expenses are
reimbursed in accordance with the Company'’s policies.

44.2

Managerial remuneration includes Rs. 168.662 million (2023: Rs. 118.29 million) charged in

the statement of profit or loss in respect of bonus to Chief Executive and Executives of the

Company.

44.3
during the year.
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45, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

45.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk, price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management
program focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize
earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders. Risk management is carried out by
the company finance and planning department under policies approved by the senior management.

TheBoard of Directors has overallresponsibility for the establishmentand oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company'’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role
by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Company's exposure to financial risk, the way these risks affects the financial position and
performance and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

(a) Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer
or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of
securities and liquidity in the market. The Company incurs financial liabilities to manage its mar-
ket risk. All such activities are carried out with the approval of the Board.

i)  Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial in-
strument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. This risk exist due to the
Company'’s exposure resulting from outstanding future commercial transactions or re-
ceivables and payables.

The Company is exposed to exchange risk arising from currency exposures mainly with
respect to currencies mentioned below on import of raw material, packing material and
stores and spares and debtors against export sales. The Company is exposed to foreign
exchange risk as at 31 December 2023 as it has financial instruments denominated in cur-
rency other than the functional currency of the Company.
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A foreign exchange risk management policy has been developed and approved by the man-
agement. The policy allows the Company to take currency exposure for limited periods
within predefined limits while open exposures are rigorously monitored.

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in for-
eign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Company'’s profit before

tax.

Receivables - USD

Receivables - AED

Payables - Euro

Payables - USD

Payables - JPY

Bank balance - USD

Cashin hand - Saudi Riyal

Cashinhand - Euro

Cashinhand - CNY

- i ¥4 Highnoon Laboratories Limited

f?) ?:inief |rn_ Effects on profit Effects on profit
gncu before tax 2024 before tax 2023
rency rate
Rupees Rupees
+15% 6,199,980 1,748,998
-15% (6,199,980) (1,748,998)
+15% - 1,553.99
-15% - (1,553.99)
+15% (6,334,390) (29,780,179)
-15% 6,334,390 29,780,179
+15% (80,861,965) (38,345,320)
-15% 80,861,965 38,345,320
+15% - -
-15% - -
+15% 11,205,440 10,349,096
-15% (11,205,440) (10,349,096)
+15% 79,182 80,387
-15% (79,182) (80,387)
+15% 870 58,172
-15% (870) (58,172)
+15% - 30,883
-15% - (30,883)
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(ii)

Reporting date rate
Average rates .
(Bid-Offer average)

Reporting date rate: 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

usD 280.21 254.11 278.55 281.86
Euro 300.79 276.35 290.08 311.50
JPY 1.89 1.85 1.78 1.99
GBP 354.15 315.83 349.71 358.60
AED 76.29 69.20 75.84 76.74
Saudi Riyal 74.65 67.68 74.14 75.16
CNY 38.90 36.10 38.16 39.63

Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Company's in-
terest rate risk arises from lease liabilities, long-term loan, short-term borrowings, cash
at bank and short-term investments. Financial instruments obtained at variable rates ex-
pose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments obtained at fixed
rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk as at reporting date, none of the
Company's financial instruments with fixed rates are measured at fair value. Sensitivity to
interest rate risk arises from mismatch of financial assets and liabilities that mature or re-
price in a given period. The Company analyzes its interest rate exposure on a regular basis
by monitoring interest rate trends to determine whether they should enter into hedging
alternatives.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company'’s interest bearing financial
instruments was:

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
Variable rates instruments
Cash and bank balances - deposit accounts 20 348,101,621 29,650,826
Short-terminvestments - term deposit receipts 18 166,929,713 469,669,677
Loan to subsidiary 17 - 10,000,000
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2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Financial liabilities
Variable rates instruments
Lease liabilities 23 85,239,418 346,006,820
Long-term loan 24 447,716,085 714,112,381
Short-term loan 30 750,000,000 163,894,091
Fixed rates instruments
Lease liabilities 23 50,803,192 182,553,545

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, on the Company'’s profit before tax. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of
floating rate instruments outstanding at reporting dates were outstanding for the whole year.

. Effects on profit | Effects on profit
Changesin
interest rate before tax before tax
2024 2023
Rupees

Lease liabilities +5 (4,261,971) (26,428,018)
-5 4,261,971 26,428,018
Long-term Loan +5 (22,385,804) (35,705,619)
-5 22,385,804 35,705,619
Short-terminvestments - term deposit receipts +5 8,346,486 23,483,484
-5 (8,346,486) (23,483,484)
Loan to subsidiary +5 - 500,000
-5 - (500,000)
Cash and bank balances - deposit accounts +5 72,928,829 1,482,541
-5 (72,928,829) (1,482,541)

- JxZ¥ Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

(iii) Other pricerisk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from inter-
est rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instru-
ments traded in the market.

The Company is exposed to equity price risk, which arises from investments measured
at fair value through profit and loss. The management of the Company monitors the pro-
portion of equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market indices. Material
investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell de-
cisions are approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Fair value senstivity analysis for Company's investment in mutual funds

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
fair values, with all other variables held constant, on the Company'’s profit before tax. This
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of investment in mutual funds instruments
outstanding at reporting dates were outstanding for the whole year.

Chandes in fair Effects on profit | Effects on profit
\Z\Iue before tax before tax
2024 2023
Rupees
Short-terminvestments - +5% 173,596,047 84,956,216
mutual funds -5% (173,596,047) (84,956,216)

(b) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss without taking into account the fair value of
any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged
in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economical, political or other
conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's per-
formance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade receivables, loans and advances,
trade and other deposits, short-term investments, other receivables, loan to subsidiary and
balances with banks. The credit risk on liquid funds such as balances with banks is limited be-
cause the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maxi-
mum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:
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2024 2023

Financial assets at amortized cost: Rupees Rupees

Trade receivables 2,311,740,481 2,120,418,793
Advances to employees against salaries 26,014,292 8,219,698
Trade deposits 48,748,192 49,562,316
Other receivables 148,510,886 15,143,343
Loan to subsidiary - 10,000,000
Short term investments - Term deposit receipts 166,929,713 469,669,677
Bank balances 1,458,576,571 199,680,980

4,160,520,135 2,872,694,807

(i) Tradereceivables

Credit risk related to trade receivables is managed by established procedures and controls
relating to customers credit risk management. Outstanding receivables are regularly
monitored and shipments to foreign customers are covered by letters of credit. The
maximum credit risk exposure at reporting date is carrying value of financial assets stated
above.

These mainly include customers which are counter parties to revenue arrangments. The
Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Trade receivables are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. An impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage different other forms of credit insurance). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written-off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

The Company does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other forms
of credit insurance are considered integral part of trade receivables and considered in the
calculation of impairment.
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Geographical concentration of credit risk is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Pakistan 2,238,484,991 2,141,926,411
Kenya 28,731,369 -
Cambodia 424,992 -
Sudan 11,361 9,605
Afghanistan 89,664,744 855,584
Mauritius 5,370,178 -
Tanzania 6,698,845 -

2,369,386,480

2,142,791,600

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

Trade receivables

Less than or More than
equal to 30 31-90days | 91-180days Total
180 days
days
------------------ Rupees-------------

As at December 31, 2024

Estimated total gross carrying

amount at default 1,687,802,027 518,395,714

102,411,144 60,777,595

2,369,386,480

Expected credit loss 21,600,691 1,043,060 6,010,854 19,891,393 48,545,998
Expected credit loss rate 1.00% 2.00% 5.90% 30.20%
Trade receivables
Less than or More than
equal to 30 31-90days | 91-180days Total
180 days
days
------------------ Rupees-------------

As at December 31, 2023

Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default 1,355,653,926 758,385,831
10,137,620 9,965,190

1.23% 3.05%

Expected credit loss

Expected credit loss rate

19,482,993 9,268,850
1,354,068 915,929
25.27% 99.35%
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(ii)

Financial instruments and balances with banks
Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where
available, or to historical information about counterparty default rates. All counterparties,
with the exception of customers, employees, subsidiary company, and utility companies,
have external credit ratings determined by various credit rating agencies. Credit quality of
customers is assessed by reference to historical defaults rates and present ages.

Counter parties with external credit ratings

These include banking companies and financial institutions, which are counterparties
to bank balances, term deposits receipts and interest accrued. Credit risk is considered
minimal as these counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by
various credit rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these
counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, management does not
expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company.
Following are the credit ratings of counterparties with external credit ratings:

Rating
2024 2023
ig:’r:‘ It_:rnrg Agency Rupees Rupees

Bank balances:
Allied Bank Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 70,929 704,215
Askari Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA 12,479,148 10,887,856
Bank Al Habib Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 18,730 18,730
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 257 -
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 219,654,799 103,310,149
Dubai Islamic Bank A-1+ AA VIS 111,000,449 -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited  A-1+ AA+ PACRA 19,982,973 64,081,062
JS Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA 1,072,189 1,440,181
MCB Bank Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 3,811,028 432,733
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 1,084,491,464 15,723,291
Mobilink Microfinance Bank Limited A-1 A PACRA 2,342,995 2,848,634
Summit Bank A-3 BBB- VIS 25,259 4,620
Standard Chartered Bank A-1+ AAA PACRA 402,382 -
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 3,223,969 229,509

1,458,576,571 199,680,980
Short-term investments - term
deposit receipts
First Habib Modaraba A-1+ AA+ PACRA 159,729,713 469,669,677
Askari Bank Limited - AA+ PACRA 7,200,000 -
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Being investment grade, the Company has assessed expected credit losses for balances
with banks for 12 month period. Based on external credit ratings, the Company has
estimated that allowance for expected credit losses is trivial to the financial statements
and accordingly has not been recognised.

(iii) Other financial assets

Other financial assets mainly comprise of long-term and short-term deposits, other
receivables and advances / loans to employees. The Company has assessed, based on
historical experience, that the expected credit loss associated with these financial assets is
trivial and therefore, no expected credit loss has been recognized on these financial assets.
The counterparties for which external credit ratings were not available have been assessed
by reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information for
any default in meeting obligations.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors
similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant
in relation to the Company's total credit exposure. The Company'’s portfolio of financial
instruments is broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit-
worthy counterparties there-by mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

(iv) Investmentin Mutual Funds

The external credit rating of mutual funds in whose units the Company has invested its
funds is as follows:

Rating
2024 2023
I’c_g:rg Agency Rupees Rupees

Short-term investments - mutual funds

ABL Cash Fund AA+(f)  PACRA 41,029 -
ABL Fixed Rate Plan VIII AA+(f)  PACRA 105,783,000 -
ABL Fixed Rate Plan Xl AA+(f)  PACRA 538,395,881 -
ABL Government Securities Funds B AA+(f)  PACRA 124 -
ABL Special Savings CP2+(f) PACRA - 117,724,267
AL Habib Income Fund AA(f) PACRA 119,084,173 100,055,093
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund AA+(f)  PACRA 520,888,356 51,438,071
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund AA-(f) PACRA - 100,101,725
Atlas Money Market Fund AA+(f)  PACRA - 102,148,457
Faysal Money Market Fund AA(f) PACRA 303,365 262,238
HBL Money Market Fund AA+(f) VIS 618,572 531,713
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Rating 2024 2023
It_:rnrg Agency Rupees Rupees
JS Cash Fund AA+(f)  PACRA 63,251 53,277
Lakson Income Fund A+(f) PACRA 130,231,350 43,855,478
Lakson Money Market Fund AA+(f)  PACRA - 105,612,052
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund AA+(f)  PACRA 215,329,898 86,119,069
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund A+(f) PACRA 122,532,634 103,093,716
NBP Money Market Fund AA(f) PACRA 522,825 315,194
NIT Income Fund AA-(f) PACRA 50,000,000 -
NIT Money Market Fund AAA(f)  PACRA - 103,139,785
NIT-Govt. Bond Fund AA(f) PACRA 575,819,378 -
NIT-Social Impact Fund A+(f) VIS 450,313,164 -
Pak Qatar Income Plan AA-(f)  PACRA 385,598,185 -
UBL Al Amin Shariah Fund AA+(f) VIS 2,944 -
UBL Government Securities Fund AA(f) VIS - 150,136,405
UBL Income opportunity Fund AA-(f) VIS - 509,258,226
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund AA+(f) VIS 130,968 125,279,559
UBL Money Market Fund AA+(f) VIS 256,261,836 -

3,471,920,933  1,699,124,325

The Company estimates the change in fair value of the Company’s investment in mutual
funds is not attributable to the changes in the credit risk of the related mutual funds.

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities.
The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with
a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.
The Company's finance department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping
regular committed credit lines available. The management uses different methods which
assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing the return on investments.
Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected
operational expenses for areasonable period, including the servicing of financial obligation;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
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predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company maintains an unavailed lines
of credit.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.
2024

Carrying Contractual withinlyear | 1to2years | 2to 5 years More than'

amount cash flows years
31 December2024 0000 | =mmmememmemmeeeeeeee- Rupees-----======mmommmmm o
Lease liabilities 136,042,610 166,935,773 82,484,990 50,670,469 33,780,314 -
Long term Loan 447,716,085 632,738,585 214,542,291 186,630,788 231,565,506
Short term borrowings 750,000,000 750,000,000 750,000,000 - - -
Trade and other payables 2,037,035,190 2,037,035,190 2,037,035,190 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 210,193,857 210,193,857 210,193,857 - - -

3,580,987,742 3,796,903,405 3,294,256,328 237,301,257 265,345,820 -
2023

Carrying Contractual within 1year | 1to2years | 2to5years More than

amount cash flows 5years
31December2023 00000 mmmmmmmmmmmmmeeee- Rupees-----=======nmmmmemmmeaaan
Lease liabilities 528,560,365 676,557,267 197,327,913 255,014,554 191,652,430 32,562,370
Long term Loan 714,112,381 1,131,683,352 224,932,197 296,760,657 608,036,279 1,954,219
Short term borrowings 163,894,091 163,894,091 163,894,091 - - -
Trade and other payables 1,364,678,031 1,364,678,031 1,364,678,031 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 138,561,386 138,561,386 138,561,386 - - -
Unpaid dividend 111,299,848 111,299,848 111,299,848 - - -

3,021,106,102 3,586,673,975 2,200,693,466 551,775,211 799,688,709 34,516,589

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts. The contractual cash flows relating
to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest / mark-up
rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of interest / mark-up have been
disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements.
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45.2 Financial instruments by categories

2024
ATFVTPL | Amortized Total
cost
------------ Rupees--------------

Assets as per statement of financial position:
Long term deposits - 24,916,894 24,916,894
Advances - 26,014,292 26,014,292
Loan to employees - 63,899,529 63,899,529
Trade debts - 2,311,740,481 2,311,740,481
Trade deposits - 23,831,298 23,831,298

Otherreceivables 148,510,886 148,510,886
Cash and bank 1,459,206,965 1,459,206,965
Short term Investments 3,471,920,933 166,929,713 3,638,850,646

3,471,920,933 4,225,050,058 7,696,970,991

2023
ATFvTPL | Amortized Total
cost
------------ Rupees--------------

Assets as per statement of financial position:
Long term deposits - 23,943,429 23,943,429
Advances - 8,219,698 8,219,698
Loan to employees - 56,230,067 56,230,067
Loan to subsidiary - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Trade debts - 2,120,418,793 2,120,418,793
Trade deposits - 25,618,887 25,618,887
Other receivables - 15,143,343 15,143,343
Cash and bank - 204,337,732 204,337,732
Short term Investments 1,699,124,325 469,669,677 2,168,794,002

1,699,124,325 2,933,581,626 4,632,705,951
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2024 2023

At amortized cost

------------ Rupees------------
Liabilities as per statement of financial position:
Lease liabilities 136,042,610 528,560,365
Long termloan 447,716,085 714,112,381
Unclaimed dividend 210,193,857 138,561,386
Short term borrowings 750,000,000 163,894,091
Trade and other payables 2,037,035,1950 1,364,678,031

3,580,987,742 2,909,806,254

46.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain the future development ofits business. The Board of Directors monitors thereturn
on capital employed, which the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

() tosafeguardthe entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(ii) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, arrange new lines
of credit or sell assets to reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Company's objectives, policies or processes to capital management
during the year nor the Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital employed.
It includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and accrued
markup.
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The debt - to - equity ratio as at 31 December is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Long termloan 447,716,085 714,112,381
Lease liabilities 136,042,610 528,560,365

Trade and other payables

Add: Short term borrowings

Less: Bank and term - deposits

2,621,067,508

2,055,832,586

3,204,826,203
750,000,000
(1,626,136,678)

3,298,505,332
163,894,091
(204,337,732)

Net debt

Share capital
Revaluation surplus on operating fixed assets

Revenue reserves

2,328,689,525

3,258,061,691

529,833,630
865,425,008
9,825,907,063

529,833,630
899,339,441
8,167,526,233

11,221,165,701

9,596,699,304

Total capital employed

13,549,855,226

12,854,760,995

Gearing ratio 17% 25%
47. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
2024
Long-termloan | Lease liabilities Total
------------ Rupees--------------

As at December 31, 2024

Opening balance 714,112,381 528,560,365 1,242,672,746
Additions - 104,224,550 104,224,550
Cash flows - net (484,067,670)  (566,469,321) (1,050,536,991)
Finance cost 217,671,374 69,727,016 287,398,390
Closing balance 447,716,085 136,042,610 583,758,695
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2023
Long-termloan | Lease liabilities Total
-------------- Rupees--------------

As at December 31, 2023

Opening balance 18,008,677 258,014,081 276,022,758
Additions 700,000,000 438,794,892 1,138,794,892
Cash flows - net (3,896,296) (221,514,816) (225,411,112)
Finance cost - 53,266,208 53,266,208
Closing balance 714,112,381 528,560,365 1,242,672,746

48.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

48.1

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability; or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the unconsolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the unconsolidated financial statements at fair value
onarecurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value measurement using

Quoted price Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable Total
market inputs inputs ota
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Asat December 31,2024  =mmmmmmmeee- Rupees--------------
Short-term investment 3,471,920,933 - - 3,471,920,933
Revalued Property, plant and equipment
Land - freehold - 654,495,000 - 654,495,000
Building on freehold land - - 265,029,000 265,029,000
Plant and machinery - - 892,361,000 892,361,000
Total 3,471,920,933 654,495,000 1,157,390,000 5,283,805,933
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Fair value measurement using

Quoted price Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable Total
market inputs inputs ota
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
As at December 31,2023  mmmmmmmeeeeo Rupees----=-=====----
Short-term investment 1,699,124,325 - - 1,699,124,325
Revalued Property, plant and equipment
Land- freehold - 654,495,000 - 654,495,000
Building on freehold land - - 265,029,000 265,029,000
Plant and machinery - - 892,361,000 892,361,000
Total 1,699,124,325 654,495,000 1,157,390,000 3,511,009,325

Movements of the above mentioned assets and surplus on revaluation of these assets have been
disclosed in Note 8 and Note 22, respectively to these financial statements. There were no transfers
between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year and there were no changes in valuation techniques during
the years.

48.2 Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

The Company obtains independent valuations for its certain classes of property, plant and equipment
(more particularly described below) at least every three years. At the end of each reporting period,
the management updates its assessment of the fair value of each asset mentioned above, taking
into account the most recent independent valuation. The management determines an asset's
value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. Level 2 fair value of land has been derived
using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land in close proximity are adjusted
for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the property. The most significant input
into this valuation approach is price per kanal. Level 3 fair value of building on freehold land has been
determined using a depreciated replacement cost approach, whereby, current cost of construction
of a similar building in a similar location has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation rate to arrive
at present market value. Level 3 fair value of plant and machinery has been determined using a
depreciated replacement cost approach, whereby, the current replacement cost of items of similar
make/origin, capacity and level of technology has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation rate on
account of normal wear and tear.
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024
Description
Rupees

2023

Rupees

Significant unobservable
inputs

Quantitative data / range and
relationship to the fair value

Revalued Property plant and equipment

Land - freehold | 654,495,000

654,495,000

Cost of acquiring a new similar
landconsideringprice perkanal
of immediate neighbourhood
and neighbouring properties
which have been recently
purchased or sold.

Higher, the estimated cost of
acquisition of similar land, higher
the fair value.

Building on
freehold land

265,029,000

265,029,000

Cost of construction of a
new similar building. Suitable
depreciation rate to arrive
at depreciated replacement
value.

The market value has been
determined by using a suitable
depreciation factor on cost of
constructing a similar new building.
Higher, the estimated cost of
construction of a new building,
higher the fair value. Further, higher
the depreciation rate, the lower the
fair value of the building.

Plant and

machinery

892,361,000

892,361,000

Cost of acquisition of similar
plant and machinery with
similar level of technology.
Suitable depreciation rate
to arrive at depreciated
replacement value.

The market value has been
determined by wusing cost of
acquisition of similar plant and
machinery with similar level of
technology and applying a suitable
depreciation factor based on
remaining useful lives of plant and
machinery. The higher the cost
of acquisition of similar plant and
machinery, higher the fair value of
plant and machinery. Further, higher
the depreciation rate, the lower the
fair value of plant and machinery.

48.3 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at their amortized
cost approximate their fair values, largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. The
management assessed that fair value of loans and advances, short term deposits and investments,
interest accrued, trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and other payables and
accrued finance cost approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

49.

BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties of the Company comprise subsidiary, associated companies, companies in which
directors are interested, staff retirement funds and directors and key management personnel (Note 44).
Thetransactions with related parties are carried out under the related party transactions policy approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company. The balances and transactions with related parties and associated

company are as follows:

49.1 Transactions during the year:

2024 2023
Name of related party Relationship Nature of transaction Rupees Rupees
Curexa Health (Pvt) Ltd  Subsidiary Purchases - net 94,816,547 596,285,580
(100% owned subsidiary)  Transfer of solar 11,574,291 -
Payments 83,785,049 608,624,930
Receipts during the year 6,872,574 -
Expenses incurred on behalf 7,189,855 -
Loan repayment received 10,000,000 -
Interest on loan to subsidiary 305,142 2,243,055
Route 2 Health (Pvt) Ltd = Associate Purchases 44,894,204 559,943,451
(Common directorship Payments 42,741,032 516,433,451
and shareholder of 0.45% Dividend paid B 9,156,200
(2023:1.29%))
Pharmatec Investments  Associate Dividend declared 132,487,260 69,822,020
Limited (Common directorship Dividend paid 243,787,108 21,996,752
and shareholder of 8.34%
(2023:8.34%))
Staff Provident Fund Employee benefit fund Contribution for the year 80,799,212 80,482,518
Dividend paid 6,406,500 3,376,300
Employees’ Welfare Trust Employee benefit fund Contribution for the year 3,775,483 4,084,934
Dividend paid 7,743,690 1,331,652
Workers' Profit Employee benefit fund Charge for the year 259,132,924 178,811,336
Participation Fund Contribution paid / adjustment 439,932,183 201,036,018
Amount received from fund - 209,570,389
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49.2 Balance outstanding as at reporting date:

2024 2023
Name of related party Relationship Nature of balances Rupees Rupees

Curexa Health (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary Other receivables 11,574,291 2,575,244

(100% owned subsidiary) Accrued markup receivables - 609,720

Trade and other payables 7,361,340 -

Loan - 10,000,000

Route 2 Health (Pvt) Ltd Associate Payables 2,153,172 -
(Common directorship)

Pharmatec Investments  Associate Unpaid Dividend - 111,299,848
Limited (Common directorship)

Staff Provident Fund Employee benefit fund Trade and other payables 17,009,328 10,923,284

Workers' Profit Employee benefit fund Trade and other payables - 178,811,337

Participation Fund

49.3  No cost has been charged by the Company to Curexa (Private) Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary)
for the marketing and distribution services extended during the year as approved by the Board of

Directors.

49.4  Transactions with key management personnel under the terms of employment are excluded from

related party transactions.

50. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2024 2023
Number of employees at the end of the year 2,263 2,295
Average number of employees during the year 2,279 2,339
51. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged or reclassified wherever necessary, for better and fair
presentation. However no significant rearrangement / reclassification other than those disclosed below
have been made in these unconsolidated financial statements:
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Unconsolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
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Reclassification from Reclassification to Amount (Rupees)

Statement of financial position
Sales tax refundable Other receivables/ sales tax recoverable 107,401,766
Statement of Profit and loss

Taxation Levy 19,902,052

The impact of above reclassifications has also been accounted for in the statement of cashflows.

52. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
2024 2023

Annual production Million units Million units
Packs solids 72.27 68.58
Packs liquids 18.72 16.79
Packs drops 9.45 6.69
Packs suspension 10.02 6.63
Packs devices 0.93 0.56
Packs sachets 0.50 0.37
Packs cream 0.06 0.05
Total units 111.95 99.67
The production capacity of the Company’s plants is indeterminable as these are multi-product plants
involving varying processes of manufacture. The Company'’s production was according to market demand.

53 SEGMENT REPORTING
The chief operating decision maker ( i.e., the Board of Directors) considers the whole business as one
operating segment.

54. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 26" March, 2025 has proposed cash dividend
at the rate of Rs. 40 (2023: Rs. 30) per share and nil bonus shares for the year ended December 31, 2024,
(2023: nil) subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting to be held on 29 April,
2025. These unconsolidated financial statements do not reflect these appropriations.
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55.  SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE

Following information has been disclosed with the reference to disclosure requirements of fourth schedule
of the Companies Act, 2017 relating to all shares Islamic Index.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Statement of financial position -Financing obtained as per Islamic mode:
Short term financing 750,000,000 163,894,091
Long term musharakah 85,239,418 346,006,820
Relationships with banks having Islamic window
Bank Name Region Nature of transactions
First Habib Modaraba Pakistan Long term diminishing Musharakah
Meezan Bank Limited Pakistan Short term financing

56. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE

The Board of Directors of the Company authorized these unconsolidated financial statements for issuance
on 26™March, 2025.

57. GENERAL

The figures in these unconsolidated financial statements are rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless
otherwise stated.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Group Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Directors are pleased to present the Consolidated Financial Statements of Highnoon Laboratories Limited the
(“Holding Company"”) and Curexa Health (Private) Limited its wholly owned Subsidiary company (“the Subsidiary”)
together mentioned as (“the Group”) for the year ended December 31,2024 and a review report on overall
Group performance. The Directors’ Report on Group performance mainly focuses on the subsidiary’s financial
performance and its operational initiatives from the Group's perspective. The contents of the Directors’ report
and Chairman'’s review on the performance and financial position of the holding Company, as applicable, form part
of this report.

2024 2023
KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Rupees in Millions)
Profit before tax 5,032 3,359
Tax 1,644 912
Profit after tax 3,388 2,447
Earning Per Share 63.95 46.20

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Based on the Consolidated audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,2023 basic &
diluted earnings per share is Rupees 63.95 (2023: Rs. 46.20).

THE SUBSIDIARY'S OPERATIONS AND GROUP PERSPECTIVE

The Subsidiary operates a Cephalosporin Plant and currently produces CEPH related products for its Holding
Company. As per IQVIA, our subsidiary Company's flagship brand CEFTRO®, XORBACT® & CEFIA® have achieved
the highest sales revenue of Rs. Rs. 995 million, Rs 509 million & Rs 489 million respectively registering a growth of
49%, 35% and 13%  respectively.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

We're proud to announce the successful completion of several infrastructure improvement projects aimed at
enhancing quality and compliance standards within our operations. Furthermore, as part of our commitment to
environmental sustainability, we have established an effluent water treatment plant to decontaminate consumed
water.

WAY FORWARD

We sincerely appreciate your continued patronage and trust in Highnoon Laboratories Limited. Our enduring
commitment to quality and innovation has fueled our brand'’s reputation, leading to growth that outpaced alland a
future outlook that stands head and shoulders above its competition.

Aligned with our vision of enriching lives and long-term strategies, we are dedicated to becoming a globally recognized,
quality-driven pharmaceutical company. To expand our international footprint, we are actively pursuing accreditation
from aleading global regulatory authority, unlocking new business opportunities.

We are deeply grateful to our employees whose dedication and perseverance has continued to propel us forward, in
the right direction. Together, we look ahead to sustain success and growth

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufiq Ahmed Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director
Lahore

March 26, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Highnoon Laboratories Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidatedfinancial statements of Highnoon Laboratories Limited andits subsidiary
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements including a material accounting policies information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at December 31, 2024, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:
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Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Revenue Recognition

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the
Group reported net revenue of Rs. 24.629 billion,
compared to Rs. 19.766 billion in the previous
year, as disclosed in Note 31 and in accordance
with the accounting policy described in Note 6.7
to the consolidated financial statements.

Given the significance of revenue as a key
performance indicator and the attention required
to ensure the accurate recognition of revenue,
we identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures inrelation to the matter,amongst
others, included the following:

Obtained an understanding of the Group's revenue
recognition processes and internal controls, and
tested their efficacy on a sample basis, including
timing;

Evaluated the appropriateness of the Group's
revenue recognition policies and procedures to
ensure compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicable in
Pakistan;

Conducted sequential testing of sales invoices to
ensure the completeness andaccuracy of recorded
revenue;

Assessed IT general controls and application
controls for effectiveness in processing revenue
transactions;

Performed test of controls on identified controls to
ensure that they are operating effectively;

Performed substantive analytical procedures using
disaggregated data to gain assurance over the
recognized revenue, with a focus on outliers and
unusual trends in light of the external economic
environment;

Performed testing on sales returns to assess the
accuracy of the recognized refund liability. This
included conducting inquiries with management
to understand the reasons for returns, reviewing
supporting documentation, verifying the accuracy
of credit notes issued, and ensuring the correct
application of revised rates on updated invoices.

Reviewed year-end manual adjustments impacting
revenue to identify significant or unusual items,
and examined the underlying documentation;

Tested supporting evidence for a sample of
sales transactions, including sales orders,
invoices, gate passes, delivery challan (customer
acknowledgment) and other detailed procedures;

Performed cut-off procedures on near year-end
sales to ensure revenue has been recorded in the
correct period; and

Assessedthe appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures providedin Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with relevant
accounting standards.
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INVENTORIES

As described in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group's inventories
include items of raw-materials in hand, raw-
materials in transit and raw-materials held
with third party against which the rights and
obligations have been transferred to the Group,
packing materials, stores, spare parts and loose
tools, workin process and the finished gooditems
as atreporting date amountingto Rs. 4.724 billion
as compared to Rs. 4.945 billion which represents
4% decrease as compared to last year.

We identified this area as a key audit matter
because inventories constitute significant
portion of total assets of the Group and
determining an appropriate write down as a
result of net realizable value (NRV) and provision
for slow moving inventories involves significant
management judgment and estimation.

Our audit procedures amongst others included the
following:

e Obtained an understanding of the Group's
processes and design and implementation of
internal controls relating the purchase and
recording on inventory and on a sample basis,
testing the effectiveness of those controls,
particularly in relation to timing and recording on
inventory;

e Observed physical inventory count procedures and
compared on a sample basis, physical count with
inventory sheets;

e We evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls over inventory management
across various stages of production. This included
performing IT audit controls (ITAC) to ensure
that overhead costs were properly allocated, and
inventory was recorded and issued at accurate
moving average rates. We also verified that stock
issuance rates were correctly calculated and that
inventory was appropriately valued;

* Performed substantive analytical procedures
to reconcile stock issuance as per stock
movement records with the amounts recorded
in the trial balances. This involved investigating
any discrepancies, including those related to
interdepartmental issuances, and ensuring that
consumption is accurately reflected in the financial
statements;

e Comparedthe NRV,onasamplebasis, to the cost of
finished goods to assess whether any adjustments
are required to value stocks in accordance with
applicable accounting and reporting standards;

e Performing procedures related to purchases cut-
off to ensure that recorded purchases were of the
relevant period. This help verifying that the costs
associated with inventory were properly allocated
to the correct accounting period.

e Assessed the provision for slow moving stock
as at the year end and assessed whether it is
in accordance with the relevant accounting and
reporting standards; and

e Considered adequacy of the related disclosures
and assessed whether these are in accordance
with the applicable accounting and financial
reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
informationand, indoing so, consider whether the otherinformationis materiallyinconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
couldreasonably be expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

Aspartofanauditinaccordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain
professional skepticismthroughouttheaudit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
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are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023 were audited by another
firm of chartered accountants who had expressed an unmodified opinion thereon vide their report dated April 08,
2024.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sajjad Hussain Gill.

Boof;:wa.;u*

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Lahore Chartered Accountants
March 29, 2025 Engagement Partner: Sajjad Hussain Gill

UDIN: AR202410087geNIVbzrJ
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 3,915,194,250 4,083,565,054
Intangible assets 46,866,785 32,285,579
Goodwill 10 834,230 834,230
Long term deposits 11 25,566,894 24,143,429
Long term advances 12 65,250,481 57,243,399

4,053,712,640 4,198,071,691
Current assets
Inventories 13 4,717,791,824 4,945,663,244
Trade receivables 14 2,423,596,428 2,167,183,163
Advances, trade deposits and prepayments 15 553,381,259 595,157,903
Other receivables 16 137,574,581 119,635,629
Short term investments 17 3,638,850,646 2,168,794,002
Tax refunds due from the Government 18 212,310,027 336,216,115
Cash and bank balances 19 1,493,747,356 212,552,586

13,177,252,121

10,545,202,642

TOTAL ASSETS

17,230,964,761

14,743,274,333

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director

Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital 20 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 20.1 529,833,630 529,833,630
Capital reserve
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax 21 1,077,558,758 1,125,838,302
Revenue reserves
Accumulated profit 10,187,737,871 8,379,976,617
Total Equity 11,795,130,259 10,035,648,549
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 22 70,062,585 255,016,794
Long term loan - secured 23 318,819,789 647,716,085
Deferred tax liabilities - net 24 279,379,302 202,057,707
Deferred liabilities 25 403,793,433 528,770,871

1,072,055,109 1,633,561,457
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 26 2,928,365,523 2,138,233,859
Contract liabilities 27 244,683,677 83,478,528
Unclaimed dividend 210,193,857 138,561,386
Unpaid dividend - 111,299,848
Current portion of long term liabilities 28 196,306,054 342,116,387
Short term borrowings 29 784,230,282 260,374,319

4,363,779,393 3,074,064,327
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,230,964,761 14,743,274,333
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 30

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri

Chief Executive Officer Director

Taufig Ahmed Khan

Ashfaq P. Alidina

Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 31 24,629,506,279 19,766,263,226
Cost of sales 32 (12,111,880,293) (10,368,104,062)
Gross profit 12,517,625,986 9,398,159,164
Distribution, selling and promotional expenses 33 (6,047,007,693) (4,945,905,242)
Administrative and general expenses 34 (930,223,552) (773,700,852)
Research and development expenses 35 (9,470,982) (15,020,445)
Other operating expenses 36 (532,549,199) (335,582,110)

(7,519,251,426)  (6,070,208,649)
Profit from operations 4,998,374,560 3,327,950,515
Otherincome 37 441,506,392 185,197,255
Finance cost 38 (407,381,214) (153,860,484)
Profit before income tax and levy 5,032,499,738 3,359,287,286
Levy 39 (19,930,608) (17,634,232)
Profit before income tax 5,012,569,130 3,341,653,054
Taxation 40 (1,624,053,116) (893,976,887)
Profit for the year 3,388,516,014 2,447,676,167
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 41 46.20 46.67

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri
Chief Executive Officer

Taufig Ahmed Khan
Director

Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 3,388,516,014 2,447,676,167
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 21 - 902,241,178
Related deferred tax on revaluation surplus 24 - (168,006,328)
Effect of deferred tax due to change in effective tax rate 24 (7,711,645) (7,163,751)

(7,711,645) 727,071,099
Remeasurement loss or gain on gratuity - net 25.2.3 (52,166,835) 68,944,791
Related deferred tax 24 20,345,066 (25,474,135)

(31,821,769) 43,470,656

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods: - -
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (39,533,414) 770,541,755

Total comprehensive income for the year

3,348,982,600

3,218,217,922

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri
Chief Executive Officer

Taufig Ahmed Khan
Director

Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 42 6,915,074,491 3,008,166,470
Income tax paid (1,514,788,679)  (1,089,273,542)
Gratuity paid (61,708,571) (36,831,974)
Finance cost paid (432,525,409) (152,990,785)
Workers' Welfare Fund paid (40,736,539) -
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid (443,212,377) 2,577,479
Loan to employees received / (paid) - net 5,374,942 (23,516,658)
Central Research Fund paid (36,449,075) (37,316,458)

(2,524,045,708)  (1,337,351,938)
Net cash generated from operating activities A 4,391,028,783 1,670,814,532
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (247,714,608) (787,602,405)
Purchase of intangible assets (25,417,036) (4,494,980)
Long term deposits - net (973,465) 24,233,160
Short term investments - net (1,391,423,109) (807,945,295)
Return on deposit 72,261,078 21,011,724
Loan repaid by subsidiary -
Realised income on short terminvestment 79,159,430 -
Additions in long-term advances (337,622) 932,678
Dividend income on short term investment 71,972,605 77,310,177
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 8.3.2 97,315,062 191,025,794
Net cash flows used in investing activities B (1,345,157,665)  (1,285,529,147)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lease liabilities 2 (392,517,755) (168,248,340)
Repayment of long-term loan 23.1 (266,396,296) (3,896,296)
Long-term loan received - 700,000,000
Long term advances (payable) - net (450,000) -
Dividend paid during the year (1,629,168,260) (750,148,158)
Net cash flows used in financing activities Cc (2,288,532,311) (222,292,794)
Net foreign exchange difference D - 13,585,346
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) 757,338,807 176,577,937
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (47,821,733) (224,399,670)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19.2 709,517,074 (47,821,733)

The annexed notes from 1 to 57 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri
Chief Executive Officer

Taufig Ahmed Khan
Director

Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Capital
Reserves Revenuereserves
Share Rsevaluation
. urplus on Total
capital operating General Accumulated
fixed assets reserve profit Subtotal
- net of
deferred tax
--- Rupees
Balance as at January 01, 2023 418,840,820 410,144,816 114,000,000 6,712,126,631 6,826,126,631 7,655,112,267
Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity
Issuance of bonus shares @ 10% 41,884,080 - - (41,884,080) (41,884,080) -
Issuance of bonus shares @ 15% 69,108,730 (69,108,730) (69,108,730) -
Final dividend @ Rs. 20 per share for the year
ended 31 December 2022 - - - (837,681,640) (837,681,640) (837,681,640)
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2023
Profit for the year - - - 2,447,676,167 2,447,676,167 2,447,676,167
Other comprehensive income for the year - 727,071,099 - 43,470,656 43,470,656 770,541,755
- 727,071,099 - 2,491,146,823 2,491,146,823 3,218,217,922
Surplus transferred to accumulated profit
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on revaluation
- net of tax - (10,192,404) - 10,192,404 10,192,404 -
Transfer of surplus on revaluation on disposal of
operating fixed assets - net of tax - (1,185,209) - 1,185,209 1,185,209 -
Balance as at December 31,2023 529,833,630 1,125,838,302 114,000,000 8,265,976,617 8,379,976,617 10,035,648,549
Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final dividend @ Rs. 30 per share for the year
ended 31 December 2023 - - - (1,589,500,890) (1,589,500,890) (1,589,500,890)
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2024
Profit for the year - - - 3,388,516,014 3,388,516,014 3,388,516,014
Other comprehensive income for the year - (7,711,645) - (31,821,769) (31,821,769) (39,533,414)
- (7,711,645) - 3,356,694,245 3,356,694,245 3,348,982,600
Surplus transferred to accumulated profit
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on revaluation
- net of tax - (40,567,899) - 40,567,899 40,567,899 -
Transfer of surplus on revaluation on disposal of
operating fixed assets - net of tax - - - - - -
Balance as at December 31, 2024 529,833,630 1,125,838,302 114,000,000 8,265,976,617 8,379,976,617 10,035,648,549

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Highnoon Group (“the Group”) comprises of Highnoon Laboratories Limited (“HNL") (“the Holding
Company"”) and Curexa Health (Private) Limited (“CHL") (“the Subsidiary Company"”).

Highnoon Laboratories Limited (“the Holding Company”) was incorporated in Pakistan under under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017) (“the Act”) and its
shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange since November 1994. The Group is principally engaged in
the manufacture, import, sale and marketing of pharmaceutical and allied consumer products.

The Subsidiary Company was incorporated with the principle object to carry on business as manufacturer,
importer and dealers of all kinds of pharmaceutical.

2. GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS
The registered office of the Group is situated at 17.5 KM, Multan Road, Lahore.

Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Group are as under:

Business Units Geographical Location Address

Manufacturing facility Lahore 17.5 KM, Multan Road, Lahore

Subsidiary registered office / 517- Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind,

Manufacturing facility Lahore Lahore
ffice# 901 Tri ,

Corporate Office Lahore O_ ce# 901 Tricon Corporate Centre

Jail Road, Lahore.

, 202 Anam Empire, Block 7/8 KCHS,

Sales Office Karachi Shahrah e Faisal, Karachi
Sales Office Lahore 14-G, Block L, Gulberg - lll, Lahore

132 Hali Road, W i -1,Pesh
Sales Office Rawalpindi 32 Hali Road, Westridge eshawar

Road, Rawalpindi

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved
accountingandreporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accountingand reporting standards
comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act have been followed.

3.2 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for:

- the measurement of certain items of property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts;
- recognition of employee retirement benefits at present value; and
- certain foreign currency translation adjustments.

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of the Group in which
investment in subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of acquisition method. Standalone financial
statements of the Parent and its Subsidiary are presented separately.

3.3 Basis of consolidation

The Group's consolidated financial statements include the financial statement of the Holding
Company HNL and its subsidiary CHL. The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combination. The consideration transferred is the fair value of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interest issued by the Group, if any. Acquisition
related cost is expensed as incurred. The Group recognizes any non controlling interest in the acquire
atthe non controllinginterest’s proportionate share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired. The
Consolidated financial statement of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary are prepared up to the
same reporting date using consistent accounting policies. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in the acquisition are measured initially at their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Goodwillis initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
value of non- controlling interest using proportionate share method over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this is less than the fair value of the net asset of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognized in statement of profit or loss. After initial recognition, it is
measured at carrying value i.e. cost at the date of acquisition less any accumulated impairment.

The financial statements of CHL have been consolidated on line by line basis. Intra Group balances,
transactions, income and expenses have been eliminated. Assets, liabilities, income and expense
have been consolidated from the date Group acquired the control of the subsidiary till the control
cease to exist. Unrealized gain or loss on intra group transactions are also eliminated but unrealized
losses are however recognized to the extent of impairment, if any.

3.4 Non Controlling interest

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transaction with
parties external to the Group. Disposals of non-controlling interests results in gain or loss for the
Group that are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at reporting date, the
Group does not have any non controlling interest.
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

3.5 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak rupee (Rupee), which is also the
functional currency of the Group.

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

During the year, the Group change its accounting policy of recognizing the portion of income tax paid or
payable for the year under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, not based on the taxable profit of the Company,
as a Levy under IFRIC 21/1AS 37 instead of current income tax for the year under IAS-12.

The management believes that the new policy provides reliable and more relevant information to the users
of the consolidated financial statements.

The change in accounting policy has been implemented, and last year's figures have been reclassified.
However, the change has not been applied retrospectively because its impact on the prior year consolidated
financial statements is immaterial and disclosed in note 40.

The Group has opted approch (b), which state that the final tax not based on taxable profit are recogized as
levy in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

5. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

5.1 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year
ended December 31, 2024

Thefollowing stantdards,amendmentsandinterpretations are effective for the yearended December
31, 2024. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Group's
operations or did not have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Effective date:
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Supplier

January 01, 2024
finance arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - Amendments to clarify how a
seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024

Amendmends to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024

Amendmends to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
Non-current liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 7 ‘'Statement of Cash Flows’
Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

5.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and
interpretations are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date:
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

AmendmentstolFRS 7 ‘Financiallnstruments:Disclosures’- Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendmends to IAS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates’ - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ -
Amendments regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that are
often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs) January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding
nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as
power purchase agreements (PPAs) January 01, 2026

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
January 01, 2026

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and IASs.

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’ has been issued by IASB
effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements’ has been issued by IASB effective
from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures’ has been issued by IASB effective
from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 17 - ‘Insurance contracts’ has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However, SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption of
IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026.
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented in these consolidated
financial statements.

6.1 Leases
Group as lessee

The Group enters into lease arrangements principally in respect of plant and machinery, space for its
operations and vehicles. The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
alease.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities

Atthe commencementdate of thelease, the Grouprecognisesleaseliabilities measuredatthe present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The Group determines the lease term as the
non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease
if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease,
if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control that
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate. The Group has
used it incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases where rate is not readily available.

The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use asset and lease
liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The lease payments associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

6.2 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions
have been reviewed at reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. Where the
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed,
unless the possibility of outflow is remote.
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

6.3 Staffretirement benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all of its permanent employees who
have joined on or before March 19, 2013, under which benefits are paid on cessation of employment
subject to a minimum qualifying period of service. This valuation is carried out by an independent
actuary as at December 31, 2024 using the project unit credit method.

The Holding Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and
discounting that amount. The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The latest valuation was carried out on December 31,
2024.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Holding Company determines the
net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net
defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plan are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Past service costs are
immediately recognized in statement of profit or loss.

6.4  Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, buildings on freehold land and plant and
machinery are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and identified impairment loss. Freehold
land is stated at revalued amount carried out by independent valuers by reference to its current
market price (less any identified impairment loss). Buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery
are stated at revalued amount carried out by independent valuers by reference to current market price
less accumulated depreciation (and any identified impairment loss). Cost in relation to property, plant
and equipment comprises acquisition and other directly attributable costs. Revaluation is carried out
every three years or earlier as necessitated.

Surplus onrevaluation has been recognized by restating gross carrying amounts of respective assets
being revalued, proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due to revaluation. The
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation was also adjusted to equal difference between
gross carryingamounts and the carrying amounts of the assets after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment has been
recognizedinother comprehensiveincome andaccumulatedin equity undertheheadingofrevaluation
surplus. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carryingamount of the
asset charged to the statement of profit or loss, and depreciation based on the asset's original cost is
transferred to retained earnings. Upon disposal, revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets
being sold has been transferred to retained earnings. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred tax.
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment, except freehold land is charged to statement of
profit or loss on the reducing balance method so as to write-off the depreciable amount of an asset
over its remaining estimated useful life after taking into account the impact of their residual value,
if considered significant. The assets’ residual values and useful lives have been reviewed at financial
year end.

6.5 Inventories

Stock in trade

Stock of raw and packing materials, work-in-process and finished goods, except for those in transit,
have been valued by the Group principally at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost in relation
to raw and packing materials has been measured at moving average cost. Work-in-process and
finished goods have been measured by the Group at weighted average cost and cost comprises direct
materials, labour and appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Stock in transit have been stated at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the
reporting date.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts, and loose tools are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method.

6.6 Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose
of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances at banks, short
term investments and outstanding balance of short term running finances.

6.7 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is in the business of providing (a) pharmaceutical products and (b) toll manufacturing
services for pharmaceutical products to other pharmaceutical sector companies. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred which generally
coincides with the delivery of the goods to the customer for local sales at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Export goods
are considered dispatched when bill of lading / airway bill is prepared for shipment to customers. The
Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods before transferring them to the customer. The Group considers whether there are
other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods,
the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Billand hold arrangement

Bill and hold arrangements are those in which the Group bills customer for a product that it retains
physical possession of until it is shipped to the customer. This means that, although the customer
has been billed, delivery is postponed at the request of the customer. In accordance with applicable
accounting and financial reporting framework, the Group has recognized revenue fromits billand hold
arrangements upon fulfilment of all of the following criteria:

- The reason for the bill and hold arrangement is substantive. This means that it has a practical
necessity, such as the customer’s lack of available space for the product or the customer’s request
for delayed delivery.

- TheProductis identified separately as belonging to The customer.
- The product currently is ready for physical transfer to the customer.
- The entity cannot use the product or direct it to another customer.

Accordingly, the Group's customer have taken control of the product, even as the Group has retained
physical possession.

Toll manufacturing

There are contracts with customers to manufacture, on their behalf, the pharmaceutical products
using raw material provided by the customer. The performance obligation is satisfied upon receipt
of the finished goods by the customer and payment is generally due within 45 days from delivery.
No significant financing component exist for these contracts. The Group concluded that it transfers
control over its toll manufacturing services at a point in time, upon receipt of the product by the
customer, because this is when the customer benefits from the Group's toll manufacturing services

Refund liabilities and right to return

The Group's refund liabilities arise from customers’ right of return. A refund liability is the obligation
to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured
at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Group uses
the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned because this method best
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group will not be entitled. The Group updates its
estimates of refund liabilities at the end reporting period. In general, the contracts for sales of goods
provides a customer with a right to return near expiry products. For products that are expected to be
returned, the Group recognizes a provision under refund liability netting off with trade receivables and
a corresponding adjustment in sales return.

6.8 Taxation

a) Current Tax

Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The current tax charge is calculated using the
applicable tax rates or the rates expected to apply to the year's profit if enacted, after considering
available tax credits, rebates, and exemptions, if any. It also includes adjustments, where necessary,
for prior years' tax provisions based on assessments finalized during the year.
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

b) Deferred Tax

For entities subject to normal tax and falls under approach (b), deferred tax is measured using the
enacted or notified tax rate as per the application guidance on "IAS 37/IFRIC 21-1AS 12 — Accounting
for Minimum and Final Taxes". Given the variability of the effective income tax rate, the Company
reassesses its estimates for measuring deferred taxes in future periods, even if the enacted income
tax rate remains unchanged.

6.9 Levy

The amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate is recognized as current income
tax expense for the year in statement of profit or loss. Any excess of expected income tax paid or
payable for the year under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 over the amount designated as current
income tax for the year, is then recognized as a levy.

6.10 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the value of
non- controlling interest using proportionate share method over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. Afterinitialrecognitionitis measured at carryingvaluei.e. at date of acquisition
less any accumulated impairment.

6.11 Financialinstruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company have been initially recognized when the
Company became a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

6.11.1 Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as
disclosed in Note 31 Revenue from contracts with customers.

6.11.2 Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.
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The Company'’s financial assets are measured subsequently at amortized cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held withinabusiness model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, short term loans,
security deposits, trade and otherreceivables and short terminvestments (i.e. Term deposit receipts).

Financial assets — Business model assessment

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

Financial liabilities

The Company has classified all of its financial liabilities at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings
and, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company'’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, long term and short term
borrowings and accrued markup.
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6.11.3 Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its consolidated
statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

Financial liability have been derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss.

6.11.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the netamountis reportedinthe unconsolidated
statement of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

6.11.5 Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognizes expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost. The
Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Loss allowances for financial
assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts
due.
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Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

6.12 Dividend

Dividend to shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved.

6.13 Deferred grants

Deferred grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income
in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at
nominal amounts and released to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal
annual installments.

6.14 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

6.15 Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Pakistani Rupees at the foreign
currency rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange approximating those at the
reporting date. Exchange differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

6.16 Borrowing cost

Finance cost onlong term liabilities / lease liabilities which are specifically obtained for the acquisition
of qualifying assets i.e. assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use, are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective asset. All other interest, mark-up
and expenses are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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6.17 EarningPer share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

6.18 Research and development Cost

The research and development costs are recogned as expenses as they are incurred, including costs
related to salaries, materials, testing, and regulatory approvals. If development activities demonstrate
technical feasibility and the potential to generate future economic benefits, related costs is capitalized
and amortized over their useful life.

7. SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS AND OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
7.1 Significant estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates, associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if revision affects only that
period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to Group's consolidated financial
statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Notes
- Leases 22and6.1
- Staff retirement benefits 25and 6.3
- Expected credit loss 14.1and6.11.5
- Taxation 40and 6.8
- Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 2land 6.4
- Refund liability 26and 6.7
- Estimation of provisions 11&3.5
- Refund liability 30&3.7&11

The Group expects that above mentioned standards will not have any materialimpact on the Group's
financial statements in the period of initial application.
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2024 2023
8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rupees

Operating fixed assets 8.3 2,797,094,339
Right of use assets 8.3 564,445,677
Capital work in progress 8.4 722,025,038
Advances against capital assets -
3,915,194,250 4,083,565,054

8.1 Depreciation charge has been allocated as under:
Cost of sale 32 222,213,852 157,035,637
Distribution, selling and promotional expenses 33 91,890,320 59,524,867
Administrative and general expenses 34 32,569,349 49,512,447
346,673,521 266,072,951

8.2 The last revaluation of land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery has been carried on
December 31, 2023 by M/S Surval (Valuer on the the approved list of Pakistan Banking Association)
which had resulted in a surplus of Rs. 902.24 million over the net carrying value of assets.

2024 2023

8.2.1 Had the assets not beenrevalued, the carrying values would have

been: Rupees Rupees

een:

Land - freehold 355,486,621 41,141,539

Building on freehold land 387,150,305 205,834,115

Plant and machinery 921,425,280 728,028,935

8.2.2 1,664,062,206 975,004,589

8.2.2 Below is the reconciliation of carrying value without impact of

revaluation surplus:

Carrying value of assets: 1,078,840,082 764,495,000

Land - freehold 564,693,782 404,291,000

Building on freehold land 1,501,895,812 1,150,774,000
2,945,429,676  2,319,560,000
(1,077,558,758) (1,125,838,302)
(203,808,712)  (218,717,109)
(1,281,367,470) (1,344,555,411)

1,664,062,206 975,004,589

Plant and machinery
Less: Revaluation surplus

Less: Related deferred tax

Carrying value without revaluation surplus

- JEId Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

8.3.2

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Description Riﬁiéd /—\ccumgla?ed * Written ) Sales Gain Mode of Sale Particulars of
amount Depreciation |Down Value “| Proceeds Purchasers
Rupees

Motor Cars Reg.No Employee Name
Suzuki Alto ABV 592 1,335,000 485,940 849,060 986,806 137,746 As per Group's policy Fazal Akbar
Suzuki Cultus VXR LE-19A-7325 1,745,000 1,202,356 542,644 1,117,555 574,911 As per Group's policy M. Shahab
Suzuki Alto AFM 624 1,368,155 606,366 761,789 965,572 203,783 As per Group's policy Shakir Ali
Suzuki Alto (ACB 471) 1,433,000 758,917 674,083 1,098,574 424,491 As per Group's policy M. Rizwan
Suzuki Alto (ABF 341) 1,433,000 772,674 660,326 981,289 320,963 As per Group's policy Ayaz Khan
Suzuki Cultus LEA-20-6706 1,745,000 1,074,920 670,080 1,141,200 471,120 As per Group's policy Alamzaib Khan
Suzuki Alto AFU 686 1,368,155 593,232 774,923 978,204 203,281 As per Group's policy Jawad Sohail
Suzuki Cultus LEA-20-7488 1,745,000 1,076,161 668,839 1,254,132 585,293 As per Group's policy M.Tahir Mehmood
Suzuki Alto AFU 285 1,368,155 593,232 774,923 974,389 199,466 As per Group's policy Waheed Ahmed
Suzuki Alto AAC970 1,398,000 807,485 590,515 945,821 355,306 As per Group's policy Bagir Fayaz
Suzuki Alto AFR 467 1,335,000 485,940 849,060 914,331 65,271 As per Group's policy M Attiq
Suzuki Alto AFS 195 1,368,155 606,366 761,789 950,943 189,154 As per Group's policy M Ahmad
Suzuki Motor Car ADW 345 1,394,881 726,578 668,303 1,087,348 419,045 Asper Group's policy Hazrat Ali
Suzuki Motor Car ADX 641 1,394,881 590,190 804,691 2,210,000 1,405,309 Market Sale Moin Akram
Suzuki Alto AMW 962 1,986,000 423,680 1,562,320 2,350,000 787,680 Market Sale Muhammad Naeem
Toyota Fortuner Sigma AFD-261 14,188,695 1,770,442 12,418,253 14,800,000 2,381,747 Market Sale Amir Doger
Suzuki Alto AFU 524 1,368,155 521,480 846,675 2,165,000 1,318,325 Market Sale Moin Akram
Suzuki Motor Car ADW 260 1,729,743 731,873 997,870 2,797,000 1,799,130 Market Sale Malik Irfan
Suzuki Alto AFS 468 1,368,155 634,581 733,574 2,121,000 1,387,426 Market Sale Agha Ali Jaffari
Suzuki Cultus AMW 956 2,774,000 850,693 1,923,307 2,757,000 833,693 Market Sale Agha Ali Jaffari
Suzuki Alto ALD 433 1,553,500 566,164 987,336 1,800,000 812,664 Market Sale Reliance Insurance
Suzuki Wagon-R VXL AQK 421 3,432,000 257,400 3,174,600 3,432,000 257,400 Market Sale Naseer Autos
Suzuki Wagon-R VXL AQH 161 3,432,000 257,400 3,174,600 3,432,000 257,400 Market Sale Naseer Autos
Suzuki Wagon-R VXL AQH 862 3,432,000 257,400 3,174,600 3,432,000 257,400 Market Sale Naseer Autos
Toyota Fortuner AKC 705 15,500,000 - 15,500,000 16,700,000 1,200,000 Market Sale Mohsin Gujjar
Suzuki Alto LEB-20-7754 1,398,000 850,431 547,569 1,553,500 1,005,931 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AKQ 391 1,553,500 585,152 968,348 1,553,500 585,152 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AKQ 260 1,553,500 585,152 968,348 1,553,500 585,152 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AKX 676 1,553,500 585,152 968,348 1,553,500 585,152 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto APM 392 2,622,000 579,025 2,042,975 2,622,000 579,025 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto APM 254 2,622,000 579,025 2,042,975 2,622,000 579,025 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto ANV 347 1,986,000 522,980 1,463,020 1,986,000 522,980 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto ALD 620 1,553,500 585,152 968,348 1,553,500 585,152 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AAC 872 1,398,000 840,291 557,709 1,405,500 847,791 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto ADW 613 1,729,743 867,178 862,565 1,744,743 882,178 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto AAK 845 1,398,000 820,011 577,989 1,405,500 827,511 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Cultus AEM 833 1,766,920 837,755 929,165 1,744,743 815,578 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Suzuki Alto ABC 481 1,433,000 819,753 613,247 1,440,500 827,253 Sale First Habib Modaraba
Items having NBV less than
Rs.500,000 each 2,985,700 1,632,281 1,353,419 3,180,702 1,827,283

2024 96,748,993 27,340,808 69,408,185 97,311,352 27,903,167

2023 232,181,125 (54,857,597) 177,323,528 191,025,794 13,702,266
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8.3.3 Particulars ofimmovable assets of the Company are as follows:

Location and address Usage ofimmovable property  Land area(kanal) Coverage area (sqr.ft)

Land: Situated at 17.5 KM
Multan Road Hadbast

Manufacturing facilit 43, 237,402
Mouza Kanjra, Tehsiland District antractuning facfiity 5.6 3
Lahore.
Land: Situated at Plot No.

173-B, 186-B and187-B, Land purchased for new

. . . . 96.0 432,547
Quaid-e-Azam Business Park, Manufacturing facility.
Sheikhupura.
517 - Sundar Industrial Estate,
. Manufacturing facilit 8.0 13,000
Raiwind road Lahore 9 y
8.4 Capital work in progress
Movement in capital work in progress is as follows:
Land Plant and Machinery Others Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 269,416,665 162,666,666 40,855,392 10,295,924 411,752,981 269,061,425 722,025,038 442,024,015
Additions during the year 44,928,417 106,749,999 101,303,393 261,246,172 90,352,559 855,190,626 236,584,369 1,223,186,797
Transferred to owned assets (314,345,082) - (141,700,623) (230,686,704) (325,485,107) (712,499,070) (781,530,812) (943,185,774)
- 269,416,665 458,162 40,855,392 176,620,433 411,752,981 177,078,595 722,025,038
2024 2023
9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees
Intangible assets 9.1 46,866,785 32,285,579
9.1 2024
Cost Accumulated amortization
Book value
Particulars Asat Additions Asat Asat For the Asat asat31 Rate
01 January 31 December| 01 January year 31 December
December
---------------------------------------------------- Rupees -===========mmmm oo oo
Registration and trademark
(9.1.1) 154,434,175 - 154,434,175 154,434,175 - 154,434,175 - 10%
ERP software (9.1.2) 42,066,480 25,417,036 67,483,516 9,780,901 10,835,830 20,616,731 46,866,785 20%

196,500,655 25,417,036 221,917,691 164,215,076 10,835,830 175,050,906 46,866,785

- jt:24 Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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2023
Cost Accumulated amortization
Book value
A A A For th A
Particulars sat Additions sat sat orthe sat asat31 Rate
01 January 31 December| 01 January year 31 December
December
---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ============-mommm oo
Registration and trademark
(9.1.1) 154,434,175 - 154,434,175 154,434,175 - 154,434,175 - 10%
ERP software (18.1.2) 37,571,500 4,494,980 42,066,480 1,736,104 8,044,797 9,780,901 32,285,579 20%

192,005,675 4,494,980 196,500,655 156,170,279 8,044,797 164,215,076 32,285,579

9.1.1 This represents registration and trademarks of brands named as “Tres Orix Forte", “Skilax Drops”
and "Blokium”. These are fully amortized and are still in use.

9.1.2 ERP software represents the cost incurred on the implementation of IT software SAP S/4 HANA and
fee for license paid to Systems Limited for the period of 5 years.

2024 2023

9.2  Amortization charge has been allocated as under: Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sale 32 6,304,470 5,464,541
Distribution, selling and promotional expenses 33 775,562 122,633
Administrative and general expenses 34 3,755,798 2,457,623
10,835,830 8,044,797

10. GOODWILL

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary 10.1 834,230 834,230

10.1  On September 02, 2015, the Holding Company acquired 80% of the shareholding of the Subsidiary
Company for cash consideration. It was acquired to get a quick access to Cephalosporin
drug market in order to diversify the Group's product range and therapeutic presence.

The Group had elected to measure the non controlling interest in the Subsidiary Company using
proportionate share method over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill worked out at the date of acquisition is as follows:
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2015
Rupees
Purchase consideration transferred in cash 44,300,800
Non-controlling interest at acquisition date 10,866,643
55,167,443
Assets Acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 51,815,300
Capital work in progress 3,887,304
Cash and cash equivalents 11,816
Liabilities assumed:
Trade and other payables (115,730)
Directors'loans (1,265,477)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 54,333,213
Goodwill arising on acquisition 834,230
Net cash flow on acquisition of subsidiary company:
Purchase consideration transferred in cash 44,300,800
Less: cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary company (11,816)
Net cash flow on acquisition of subsidiary company 44,288,984

10.2 Acquisition of additional interest in Curexa Health (Private) Limited

Subsequentlyin 2015, HNL also participated in the Subsidiary Group's right issue andits shareholding
increased to 88.39%. In May 2016, the Holding Group acquired an additional 11.61% interest in the
voting shares of Curexa Health (Private) Limited, increasing its ownership interest to 100%. Cash
consideration of Rs. 11 million was paid to the non controlling shareholders. The carrying value of
the net assets of Subsidiary Group (excluding goodwill on the original acquisition) was Rs. 10 million.
Following is a schedule of additional interest acquired in Curexa Health (Private) Limited:

2016
Rupees
Cash consideration paid to non controlling interest 11,077,000
Carrying value of the additional interest in Curexa Health (Private) Limited (10,036,523)
Difference recognized in accumulated profit 1,040,477
2024 2023
11. LONG TERMDEPOSITS Note Rupees Rupees
Bank guarantee margin 1,602,710 1,602,710
Deposits with vendors 11.1 23,964,184 22,540,719
25,566,894 24,143,429

- Jt:4 Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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11.1 Deposits with vendors are non-adjustable and are refundable after the contract with the service
providers are concluded. The impact of initial recognition of long term deposits at fair value under
IFRS 9 is not significant to these consolidated financial statements.

2024 2023
12. LONG TERM ADVANCES Rupees Rupees
Advance for software - under implementation 782,444 -
Loan to employees
Advances to employees against salaries 15 74,896,853 81,927,607
Less: current portion 12.1 (10,428,816) (24,684,208)
64,468,037 57,243,399
65,250,481 57,243,399
63,899,529 56,230,067
12.1 These represent loan given to employees against the purchase of vehicles as per the Company'’s
policy. These loans are for maximum period of 5 years. These loans are secured against the final
settlement amount of employees. The loans carry an effective interest rate of 0% (2023: 0%) per
annum and are repayable in cash in accordance with predefined repayment schedule. Present value
adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ arising in respect
ofloan to employees is considered insignificant by the management at the financial statements level,
hence not recognized.
2024 2023
13.  INVENTORIES Note Rupees Rupees

Raw materials

In hand 2,133,024,020 2,253,413,919
In transit 161,515,778 656,233,366
With third party 158,952,120 133,122,397
2,453,491,918 3,042,769,682
Packing material 841,317,571 781,045,122
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 96,830,205 75,968,438
Work in progress 661,726,187 278,623,344
Finished goods
Trading -inhand 97,630,343 136,324,851
Manufactured 778,946,160 824,607,842
13.2 876,576,503 960,932,693

Less: provision for slow moving and obsolete items

13.1 (212,150,560)

(193,676,035)

4,717,791,824

4,945,663,244
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
13.1 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Opening provision 193,676,035 131,478,395
Charge for the year 85,650,605 93,270,403
Reversal during the year (67,176,080) (31,072,763)
Closing provision 212,150,560 193,676,035

13.2  The finished goods are recorded at lower of cost and net realisable value which has resulted in
impairment loss amounting to Rs. 17.49 million (2023: Rs. 36.3 million) recorded in cost of sales.

2024 2023
14. TRADE RECEIVABLES Note Rupees Rupees
Export Sales 120,550,269 865,189
Local Sales 2,360,697,663 2,188,690,781
2,481,247,932  2,189,555,970
Less: allowance for expected credit losses 14.1 (57,651,504) (22,372,807)
14.2 2,423,596,428 2,167,183,163
14.1 Allowance for expected credit losses:
Opening balance 22,372,807 52,085,768
Charge / (reversal) during the year 37 35,278,697 (29,712,961)
57,651,504 22,372,807
14.2  Tradereceivables become due after 30 to 45 days of the invoice date. Generally, balances outstanding
for more than 360 days are treated as default.
2024 2023
15. ADVANCES, TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Rupees Rupees
Advances to staff
- against expenses 15.1 30,753,110 142,862,432
- against salary 15.2 26,014,292 8,372,019
- current portion of advances against vehicles 12 10,428,816 24,684,208
67,196,218 175,918,659
Advance to suppliers against goods and services 387,827,332 243,532,994
Margin against letter of credit 33,059,431 116,218,545
Trade deposits 23,840,672 25,638,939
Prepayments 41,457,606 33,848,766

553,381,259 595,157,903

- JEEY Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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15.1 Advances to staff provided to meet business expenses are settled as and when the expenses are
incurred.

15.2  Advances to staff are interest free and settled againstimmediate salary. These advances are secured
against final settlement of staff provident fund. Present value adjustment in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ arising in respect of loan to employees is considered
insignificant by the management at the financial statements level, hence not recognized.

2024 2023
16. OTHERRECEIVABLES Note Rupees Rupees
Interest accrued 19,979,979 8,603,306
Sales tax recoverable 111,687,167 107,401,766
Others 5,907,435 3,630,557
137,574,581 119,635,629
17.  SHORT TERMINVESTMENTS
Mutual funds - fair value through profit and loss 17.1 3,471,920,933 1,699,124,325
Term deposit receipts - at amortized cost 17.2 166,929,713 469,669,677

3,638,850,646 2,168,794,002

17.1 Theseinvestments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss:

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,699,124,325 1,193,596,924
Additions during the year 4,383,230,301 2,387,312,516
Redemption during the year (2,847,386,088)  (1,900,167,715)
Realized gain / (loss) on redemption of

investments during the year 37 79,159,430 (3,578,879)
Unrealized gain on remeasurement of

investments during the year 37 157,792,965 21,961,479
Closing fair value of short terminvestment 17.1.1  3,471,920,933 1,699,124,325
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Units Fair Value
2024 2023 2024 2023
17.1.1 Mutual fund wise detail is as follows: Numbers Numbers Rupees Rupees

Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund 4,836,803 519,111 520,888,356 51,438,071
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund - 832,445 - 100,101,725
MCB Cash Management Optimizer 1,934,218 846,453 215,329,898 86,119,069
Faysal Money Market Fund 2,283 2,283 303,365 262,238
NBP Money Market Fund 47,882 31,494 522,825 315,194
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund 10,542,234 9,673,984 122,532,634 103,093,716
UBL Money Market Fund 2,334,503 - 256,261,836 -
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund 1,186 1,233,476 130,968 125,279,559
UBL Government Securities Fund - 1,277,198 - 150,136,405
UBL Income Opportunity Fund - 4,150,410 - 509,258,223
UBL Al Amin Shariah Fund 7 - 2,944 -
NIT Social Impact Fund 40,583,318 - 450,313,164 -
NIT Government Bond Fund 52,329,614 - 575,819,378 -
NIT Income Fund 4,492,565 - 50,000,000 -
NIT Money Market Fund - 10,608,361 - 103,139,785
Pak Qatar Income Plan 3,458,519 - 385,598,185 -
HBL Money Market Fund 5,506 4,669 618,572 531,713
ABL Government Securities Funds B 11 - 124 -
ABL Fixed Rate Plan VIII 10,000,000 - 105,783,000 -
ABL Fixed Rate Plan XIlI 53,148,656 - 538,395,881 -
ABL Special Savings - 10,548,675 - 117,724,267
ABL Cash Fund 3,675 - 41,029 -
Atlas Money Market Fund - 199,611 - 102,148,457
JS Cash Fund 515 515 63,251 53,277
AL Habib Income Fund 1,069,540 980,325 119,084,173 100,055,094
Lakson Money Market Fund - 1,015,046 - 105,612,054
Lakson Income Fund 1,154,350 408,898 130,231,350 43,855,478

185,945,385 42,332,954 3,471,920,953 1,699,124,325

17.2

ranging from 11.25% to 21% (2023: 16% - 22%) with maturity up to August 2025.

- JEl} Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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2024 2023
18. TAXREFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT Note Rupees Rupees
Sales tax refundable - net 254,004,772 269,564,741
Provision against sales tax refundable 18.1 (88,092,012) -
165,912,760 269,564,741
Income tax refundable - net 46,397,267 66,651,374
212,310,027 336,216,115
18.1 Provision against sales tax refundable
Opening balance - -
Charge for the year 88,092,012 -
88,092,012 -
19. CASHAND BANKBALANCES
Cashin hand
Balance with banks 633,770 4,907,461
Current accounts
-Local currency 1,035,370,000 101,172,443
-Foreign currency 75,337,262 68,930,604
Saving accounts 19.1 382,406,324 37,542,078
1,493,113,586 207,645,125
1,493,747,356 212,552,586

19.1 These represents savings accounts which carries average profit at the rate of ranging from 9.21% to

20.10% (2023: 7.51% to 20.51%).

19.2 Cashand cash equivalents

The above figures of cash and bank balances reconcile to the amount of cash and cash equivalents
shown in the statement of cashflows at the end of financial year as follows:

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances 1,493,747,356 212,552,586

Short - term borrowings 29 (784,230,282) (260,374,319)

Cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cashflows 709,517,074 (47,821,733)

AnnualReport 2024 F8



Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
20. SHARE CAPITAL Note Rupees Rupees
Authorized share capital
100,000,000 (2023: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
20.1 Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
5,905,000 (2022: 5,905,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 59,050,000 59,050,000
95,000 (2022: 95,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10
each issued for consideration other than cash 20.1.1 950,000 950,000
46,983,363 (2022: 35,884,082) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each issued as bonus shares 469,833,630 469,833,630
529,833,630 529,833,630

20.1.1 This represents the issuance of shares against the transfer of plant and machinery and other assets.

20.2 Reconciliation of issued share capital:

2024 2023 2024 2023
Number Number Rupees Rupees
Balance as at January 01, 2024 52,983,363 5,000,000 529,833,630 50,000,000
Bonus shared of Rs. 10 each as
at 01 January - 36,884,082 - 368,840,820
Issuance of bonus shares of Rs. 10 each - 11,099,281 - 110,992,810
Balance as at December 31, 2024 52,983,363 52,983,363 529,833,630 529,833,630

20.3 Allordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Group's residual assets. Holders of these shares are
entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general
meetings of the Group. The shareholders of the Group do not have any agreements for voting rights,
board selection, rights of first refusal, and block voting.

- JEXd Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
21. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON OPERATING FIXED ASSETS Rupees Rupees

Opening balance of gross surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets 1,344,555,411 459,875,058
Addition during the year - 902,241,178
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets relating to
disposal of plant and machinery - transferred to
unappropriated profits - (1,634,068)
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on revaluation of

(40,567,899) (10,192,404)

(22,620,042) (5,734,353)
fixed assets - transferred to unappropriated profits (63,187,941) (15,926,757)

Less related deferred tax liability on:

1,281,367,470

1,344,555,411

Balance at the beginning of the year 218,717,109 49,730,242

Related deferred tax on additions during the year - 168,006,328

Effect of deferred tax due to change in effective tax rate 7,711,645 7,163,751

Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets relating to

disposal of plant and machinery - transferred to

unappropriated profits - (448,859)

Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on revaluation

of operating fixed assets - transferred to unappropriated profits (22,620,042) (5,734,353)
203,808,712 218,717,109

Closing balance of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

1,077,558,758

1,125,838,302

21.1 This represents surplus arising on revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant
and machinery. This has been adjusted by incremental depreciation arising due to revaluation, net of
deferred tax. The latest revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery
was carried out on December 31, 2023 by M/S Surval (Valuer on the approved list of Pakistan Banking
Association) which resulted in a surplus of Rs. 902 million. The surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment is not available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section
241 of the Companies Act, 2017. For details of related fair value determination, refer to Note 47.2 of
these financial statements.
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2024 2023
22. LEASE LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees
Present value of lease payments 136,042,610 528,560,365
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 28 (65,980,025) (273,543,571)
70,062,585 255,016,794

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

2024
Rupees
Building Vehicles hlzlaacnr:i:;]?y Total
As at 1 January 182,553,545 233,374,726 112,632,094 528,560,365
Additions - 67,224,550 37,000,000 104,224,550
Accretion of interest 16,533,888 43,593,946 9,599,182 69,727,016
Payments (148,284,241) (292,253,804) (125,931,276) (566,469,321)
As at 31 December 50,803,192 51,939,418 33,300,000 136,042,610
2023
Rupees
Building Vehicles ;Iaacn;i:;dy Total
As at 1 January 124,841,368 41,497,713 91,675,000 258,014,081
Additions 90,267,333 235,895,465 112,632,094 438,794,892
Accretion of interest 13,193,742 29,770,022 10,302,444 53,266,208
Payments (45,748,898) (73,788,474) (101,977,444) (221,514,816)
As at 31 December 182,553,545 233,374,726 112,632,094 528,560,365

- JEZY Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
22.1 Maturity analysis of lease liabilities: Note Rupees Rupees
Within one year 82,484,990 197,327,913
After one year but not more than five years 84,450,783 446,666,984
More than five years - 32,562,370
Finance cost (30,893,163) (147,996,902)
Total lease liabilities 136,042,610 528,560,365
22.2 Salient features of the leases are as follows:
- Discounting factor 8.94% -23.84%  8.94% -23.65%
- Lease term 24to 120 Months 24 to 120 Months
22.3 Amountrecognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities 38 69,727,016 53,266,208
Expenses related to short term leases 107,976,674 41,037,823
Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 177,703,690 94,304,031
23. LONG TERM LOAN - SECURED
Long-term loan 23.1 447,716,085 714,112,381
Less: Current portion of long-term loan 28 (128,896,296) (66,396,296)
318,819,789 647,716,085
23.1 The movement of long-term loanis as follows:
Opening balance as at January 01, 23.1.2 714,112,381 18,008,677
Loan obtained during the year 23.1.1 - 700,000,000
Payment during the year (266,396,296) (3,896,296)
447,716,085 714,112,381
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (128,896,296) (66,396,296)
Closing balance as at 31 December 318,819,789 647,716,085
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23.1.1 The loans include two facilities of amounting to Rs. 200 million and Rs. 500 million with maturity date
of October 23,2028 and June 05, 2028 were obtained during 2023 from Meezan Bank Limited to meet
the long term financing and carries markup at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 0.1% per annum, repayable
in 16 equal quarterly instalments commenced after a grace period of one year. However the facility of
Rs. 200 million has been early settled during the year. This facility is secured against first pari passu
charge over all present and future plant and machinery.

23.1.2 Thisincludesloan obtained from MCB Bank Limited with maturity date of June 10, 2029 under facility
for setting up solar based power project under SBP financing scheme for renewable energy having
sanctioned limit of Rs. 50 million (2023: Rs. 50 million) and carries markup at the rate of 2% + 0.5%
per annum payable quarterly (2023: 2% + 0.5%) whereas principal is repayable in 27 equal quarterly
instalments starting from December 10, 2022. This facility is secured against lien on mutual funds
up to Rs. 67 million placed in MCB Investment Management Limited. The loan has been measured
at its fair value in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) using effective interest rate of 3M
KIBOR at respective draw down date. The difference between fair value of loan and loan proceeds
has been recognised as deferred grant as per requirements of IAS 20 (Accounting for Government
grants and disclosure of Government assistance) and as per circular 11/2020 issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

23.1.3 Facilities obtained from Meezan Bank Limited comprise of letters of credit (sight/ usance) individually
amounting to Rs. 500 million (2023: Rs. 500 million), Trust receipt finance amounting to Rs. 500
million (2023: Rs. 500 million) and DOC delivered against acceptance amounting to Rs. 500 million
(2023: Rs. 500 million)

2024 2023
24. DEFERRED TAXLIABILITIES Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax liabilities - net 279,379,302 202,057,707
Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences:
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 199,416,168 213,443,379
Accelerated tax depreciation 359,398,409 178,519,195
Lease arrangement - net - 13,259,120
558,814,577 405,221,694
Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences:
Allowance for expected credit losses (22,481,940) (8,266,439)
Lease arrangement - net (18,313,693) -
Provision for gratuity (155,852,548) (193,622,020)
Provision for inventories (80,936,094) (1,760,047)
Unused tax losses and tax credits (1,851,000) 484,519
(279,435,275) (203,163,987)
Deferred tax liabilities 279,379,302 202,057,707

- JE Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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2024 2023
24.1 Movement of deferred grant is as follows: Note Rupees Rupees
As at January 01, 202,057,707 (4,894,894)
Recognized as deferred tax expense / (income) in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets (21,738,856) (11,456,943)
Accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assets 180,879,214 4,506,356
Lease liabilities (31,572,813) (13,946,977)
Provisions (79,176,047) 76,015,496
Allowance for expected credit losses (14,215,501) 8,014,322
Gratuity 58,114,538 (54,972,867)
Unused tax losses and tax credits (2,335,519) (1,851,000)
89,955,016 6,308,387
Recognized as deferred tax expense / (income) in
statement of comprehensive income:
Gratuity (20,345,066) 25,474,135
Surplus on revaluation on operating fixed assets - 168,006,328
Effect of deferred tax due to change in effective tax rate 7,711,645 7,163,751
(12,633,421) 200,644,214
279,379,302 202,057,707
25. DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred Grant 25.1 4,171,514 4,740,137
Gratuity 25.2 399,621,919 524,030,734
403,793,433 528,770,871
25.1 Movement of deferred grant is as follows:
Opening balance as at 01 January 6,916,657 8,232,117
Grant income recognized during the year 37 (1,315,410) (1,315,460)
Closing balance as at December 31, 5,601,247 6,916,657
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 28 (1,429,733) (2,176,520)
Non-current portion 4,171,514 4,740,137
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25.2 As discussed in Note 6.3, the Group operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees, under
which benefits are paid on cessation of employment subject to a minimum qualifying period of
service.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Present value of defined benefit obligation 25.2.1 399,621,919 524,030,734
25.2.1 Movement in the present value of define benefit obligation:
Opening balance as at January 01, 524,030,734 525,066,824
Current service cost 30,487,822 32,542,931
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 78,908,232 72,197,744
Benefits paid during the year (55,378,631) (31,791,657)
Gains on plan curtailment (224,263,133) (68,944,791)
Charge to other comprehensive income 52,166,835
405,951,859 529,071,051
Less: balance due but not paid (6,329,940) (5,040,317)
Liability as at 31 December 399,621,919 524,030,734
25.2.2 (Reversal) / expense recognized in cosolidated
statement of profit or loss:
Current service cost 30,487,822 32,542,931
Interest cost 78,908,232 72,197,744
Gains and losses arising on plan curtailments (224,263,133) -
(114,867,079) 104,740,675
25.2.3 Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses and (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 35,969,175 (76,584,045)
Experience adjustments 16,197,660 7,639,254
52,166,835 (68,944,791)

- JELY  Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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25.2.4 Historical information for gratuity plan

Present value of defined
benefit obligation

399,621,919 524,030,734

525,066,824 546,646,832 525,419,561

Remeasurement
adjustment arising on
plan liabilities

52,166,835 (68,944,791) (46,524,657)

17,177,141 63,821,894

Remeasurement adjustment
as percentage of
outstanding liability 13.05%

-8.86%

3.14%

12.15%

The projected unit credit method with the following significant assumptions was used for the valuation

of this scheme:

2024 2023
- Discount rate used for interest cost 16.00% p.a. 14.25% p.a.
- Discount rate used for year end obligation 12.25% p.a. 16.00% p.a.
- Expectedrate of increase in salary 10.50% p.a. 12.00% p.a.
- Expected average remaining working life time 6 years 6 years
- Mortality rates SLIC SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005

25.2.5 Estimated expense of current service and interest cost on defined benefit obligation to be charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ending December 31, 2024 amounts to Rs.
30.487 million and Rs. 78.908 million respectively, while gain arising on plan curtailments amount to
Rs. 224.263 million, resulting in a net gain of Rs. 114.867 million to be reflected in profit and loss.

Annual Report 2024  EE] -



Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

25.2.6 Sensitivity analysis

Significant assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and
expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while

holding all other assumptions constant

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Discount rate + 100 bps 131,691,492 492,424,385
Discount rate - 100 bps 149,882,941 559,172,372
Salary increase + 100 bps 150,096,939 560,515,351
Salary increase - 100 bps 131,349,637 490,692,201
25.2.7 The following are the expected payments in future years:
Within next 12 months 31,754,598 47,813,755
Between 2 and 5 years 230,127,665 274,266,108
Between 5 and 10 years 276,288,267 623,645,202
Beyond 10 years 601,635,042 2,998,255,869

Total expected payments

1,139,805,572

3,943,980,934

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 6

years (2023: 6 years).

25.2.8 Risks on account of defined benefit plans:

Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Group has
assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase
proportionately.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields. A
decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by
anincrease in the value of the current plans’ bond holdings.

25.2.9 Theplancurtailmentarisesasthe gratuity benefit fornon-workeremployeeshave beendiscontinued
with effect from January 01, 2025.
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2024 2023
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees Rupees
Trade creditors 26.1 1,815,244,837 909,032,561
Accrued expenses 332,282,744 402,039,311
Accrued markup 31,372,004 55,607,963
Due to employees 136,398,316 69,229,897
Provision for leave encashment 49,582,690 35,789,997
Refund liabilities 145,027,808 167,387,845
Payable to Central Research Fund 26.2 52,057,254 35,961,141
Payable to Provident Fund Trust 26.3 18,195,248 11,862,140
Sales tax payable 3,949,383 -
Withholding tax payable 55,884,021 37,001,482
Workers Welfare Fund Payable 26.4 279,577,263 232,464,953
Workers' Profit Participation Fund payable 26.5 8,793,955 181,856,569

2,928,365,523

2,138,233,859

26.1

26.2

26.3

This also include a balance amounting to Rs. 2.153 million (2023: Nil ) due to Route 2 Health (Private)
Limited, a related party on account of purchases made during the year.

Central research fund is charged at 1% of the profit before tax, of pharmaceutical companies and is
deposited to the Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP) for supporting research of public and
national interests.

All investments out of provident fund have been made in the collective investment schemes, listed
equity and listed debt securities in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies

Act 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2024 2023

26.4 Workers Welfare Fund Payable Rupees Rupees
Opening balance as at January 01, 232,464,953 164,365,925
Charge for the year 88,083,811 64,789,699
Payment / Adjustment (40,971,501) 3,309,329
Closing balance as at December 31, 279,577,263 232,464,953
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2024 2023
26.5 Workers' Profit Participation Fund Rupees Rupees
Opening balance as at January 01, 181,856,569 (3,454,826)
Charge for the year 269,914,801 181,856,568
Interest charge on late payment 429,012 877,348
Amount received from fund - 209,570,390
452,200,382 388,849,480
Paid / adjustment during the year (443,406,427) (206,992,911)
Closing balance as at December 31, 8,793,955 181,856,569
27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Advance from local distributors 220,308,109 31,946,997
Advance from institutions 11,724,730 6,918,934
Advance from foreign customer - export 135,330 44,511,011
Advance from toll customer - 101,586
Provision against refund liabilities 12,515,508 -
244,683,677 83,478,528
27.1 The ageing of contract liabilities is as follows:
Less than or equal to 30 days 236,609,077 81,766,083
31-90days 5,410,424 944,716
91-180days 321,108 215,739
More than 180 days 2,343,068 551,990
244,683,677 83,478,528

27.2 Contractliabilities represent short-termadvancesreceived from customers against delivery of goods
in future. Contract liabilities as at the beginning of the year, aggregating to Rs. 83.48 million (2023: Rs.
72.26 million), have been recognized as revenue upon transfer of control. The Group expects that
outstanding contract liabilities will be recognised as revenue within next financial year.
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2024 2023

28. CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees
Lease liabilities 22 65,980,025 273,543,571
Long-termloan - secured 23 128,896,296 66,396,296
Deferred grant 25.1 1,429,733 2,176,520
196,306,054 342,116,387

2024 2023

29. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Note Rupees Rupees
Short term borrowings from commercial banks 29.1and 29.2 784,230,282 188,106,578
Finance against trust receipts - 72,267,741
784,230,282 260,374,319

29.1

29.2

Facilities obtained from Meezan Bank Limited comprise of running musharakah amounting to Rs. 750
million (2023: Rs. 500 million) and letter of credit (sight) under Musawamah amounting to Rs. 800
million (2023: Rs. 800 million). The facilities are secured against first joint pari passu charge over all
present and future current assets. The rate of profit on running musharak is 1 month KIBOR - 2.50%
(2023: 1 month KIBOR + 0.25%). Out of the aggregated facility, export refinance facility amounting to
Rs. 200 million (2023: Rs. 200 million) is available as a sub limit under the same security. This facility
carries profit at the rate of SBP rate plus 1% (2023: SBP rate plus 1%)

Facilities from commercial banks amount to Rs. 554 million (2023: 254 million). The facilities carry
markup at the rate of 1 to 6 months Kibor plus 0.3% to 2% (2023: 3 month Kibor plus 2%) p.a. The
facilities are secured against hypothecation charge on present and future current assets of the
Group. Further, usance letters of credit facilities are also available from banks.
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30. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
30.1 Contingencies

31.1.1 While finalizing income tax assessments for the tax year 2010, Additional Commissioner Inland
Revenue (ACIR) had made addition on account of impairment loss with aggregate tax impact of Rs.
10 million on May 31, 2013. The Group had filed an appeal on August 25, 2014, before Commission
Inland Revenue [CIR] (Appeals) who had upheld the additions, vide order no. 5/A-1V dated November
12,2015. Being aggrieved, the Group filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
on December 30, 2015, who deleted the aforesaid additions. However, Federal Board of Revenue
has filed reference before honourable Lahore High Court against the judgment of ATIR. The case is
pending for adjudication. No provision has been recognized by the Group, as the management on
the basis of their legal consultant'’s opinion expects a favourable outcome.

31.1.2 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has passed orders under section 161/205 in respect of
Tax Years 2015 and 2016 and created a demand of Rs. 2.7 million based on the observation that
the Company has not deducted withholding tax while making payment to certain suppliers. Being
aggrieved, the Company filed appeal before the CIR (Appeals) who upheld the order passed by DCIR.
Against the treatment method out, the Company preferred appeal before Honorable ATIR which
is pending adjudication. Provision has not been recognized by the Company, as the management
expects a favorable outcome.

31.1.3 The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue has passed orders under section 161/205 inrespect of
Tax Years 2017 and created a demand of Rs. 4.1 million based on the observation that the Company
has not deducted withholding tax while making payment to certain suppliers. Being aggrieved, the
Company filed appeal before the CIR (Appeals) who which is pending for adjudication. Provision has
not been recognized by the Company, as the management expects a favorable outcome.

31.1.4 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an order under section 45B of the Sales Tax Act,
1990 by creating demand of Rs. 4.3 million. The Company has preferred to file an appeal before
Commission Inland Revenue [CIR] (Appeals) against the said order which has been partially decided
in the favor of the Company and demand has been reduced by Rs. 3.73 million. The Company has
preferred appeal against the remaining amount before ATIR, which is pending for adjudication.
Provision has not been recognized by the Company, as the management expects a favorable
outcome.

31.1.5 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an order under section 45B of the Sales Tax Act,
1990 by creating demand of Rs. 10.6 million. The Company has preferred to file an appeal before
ATIR against the said order which is pending for adjudication. Provision has not been recognized by
the Company, as the management expects a favorable outcome.

30.1.6 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) had issued an amended assessment order u/s
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain additions to the income resulting in
tax liability of Rs. 8.208 million. Being aggrieved with the order of ACIR the Group filed an appeal
before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), Lahore, which is still pending for adjudication. No
provision has been recognized by the Group as management expect a favourable outcome in this
regard.
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30.1.7 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) had issued an order u/s 161 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 and created a demand of Rs. 20.026 million, being withholding tax for the
year. Aggrieved with the order of ACIR the company filed an appeal before Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal, which is still pending for adjudication. No provision has been recognized by the Group as
management expect a favourable outcome in this regard.

2024 2023
30.2 Commitments Note Rupees Rupees
The Group has commitments against:
Letter of contracts 1,032,325,783 939,252,969
ljarah rentals 30.2.1 - 12,127,859
Bank contracts 270,379,501 149,524,444
Capital expenditure - 35,583,333

1,302,705,284 1,136,488,605

30.2.1 Future payments under ljarah:

Within one year - 8,085,216
After one year but not more than five years - 4,042,643
30.3 - 12,127,859

30.3 This represents three-year ijarah contract with First Habib Modaraba is for 8 Group vehicles, rentals
of which are calculated with reference to 6 month KIBOR + 2% subject to a 10% floor and 20% ceiling.
Therateis subject to revision on semiannual basis and in case the rate is not available at any time, the
rental amounts will be calculated on any substitute mode available which is deemed to be fit by the
bank.

30.4 The Group has given post dated cheques of Rs. 8.56 million (2023: Rs. 6.00 million) to Total Parco
Pakistan Limited and Rs. 5.5 million (2023: 5.5 million) as security against fuel cards provided
to employees and Rs. 1 million (2023: Rs. 1 million) to Metro cash and carry for the credit limit for
purchasing related to canteen.
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2024 2023
31. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS- NET Note Rupees Rupees
Local sales 31.1 27,527,721,282 20,516,939,633

Export sales

1,950,164,791

1,200,218,964

Toll manufacturing

29,477,886,073
712,472,182

21,717,158,597
616,705,105

Less:

Trade Discounts

Sales tax

Sales return

30,190,358,255

22,333,863,702

4,638,751,109
263,729,297
658,371,570

2,146,119,090
182,589,010
238,892,376

(5,560,851,976)

(2,567,600,476)

31.2

24,629,506,279

19,766,263,226

31.1 Thisincludes revenue from sale of finished goods purchased by the Company amounting toRs. 1,303
million (2023: Rs. 2,968 million).

2024 2023
31.2 Geographical information Rupees Rupees

Revenue from external customers - net

Pakistan 22,679,541,488  18,566,044,260
Afghanistan via an agent 1,452,933,047 750,302,844
United Arab Emirates 142,906,011 142,687,882
France 130,036,251 81,532,250
Kenya 75,467,480 20,528,934
Iraq 40,880,365 45,082,129
Cambodia 12,232,658 15,837,460
Tanzania 10,951,741 39,026,445
Dubai 37,291,828 78,482,636
Sudan 20,612,556 22,102,401
Others 26,852,854 4,635,985

24,629,506,279

19,766,263,226
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31.3 Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the control of the goods and services
is transferred to the customer. The Company makes sales against advances as well as on credit
terms. In case of credit sales, payment is generally due within 30-45 days.

2024 2023
32. COST OF SALES Note Rupees Rupees

Raw and packing material consumed 8,924,582,019 7,135,343,318
Toll charges 120,361,561 101,548,946
Stores consumed 158,714,001 125,595,251

32.1 9,203,657,581 7,362,487,515
Salaries, wages and benefits 32.2 1,092,451,285 895,907,948
Fuel and power 398,477,481 277,089,158
Repairs and maintenance 47,458,053 34,682,794
Depreciation 8.1 222,213,852 157,035,637
Factory supplies 23,536,681 6,651,752
Vehicle running and maintenance 157,147,337 121,189,026
Insurance 30,900,789 22,099,466
Printing and stationery 51,275,652 16,259,898
Fee and subscription 82,622,743 35,597,432
Rent, rates and taxes 32.3 54,080,688 35,523,336
Traveling and conveyance 21,481,308 22,927,231
Consultancy and professional charges 12,667,553 5,510,935
Telephone, postage and communication 3,410,446 1,901,565
Staff welfare and entertainment 6,530,418 4,783,960
Freight expenses 2,980,432 1,442,820
Staff training and development 8,976,592 -
Amortization of intangible assets 6,304,470 5,464,541
Other direct costs 20,819,648 1,199,980
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Inventory effect of work in process
Opening 278,623,344 294,334,778
Closing (661,726,187) (278,623,344)
(383,102,843) 15,711,434

Cost of goods manufactured
Inventory effect of finished goods
Opening
Closing

11,063,890,166

9,023,466,428

824,607,842 636,746,913
(778,946,160) (824,607,842)
45,661,682 (187,860,929)

Inventory effect of trading goods

11,109,551,848

8,835,605,499

Opening 136,324,851 553,389,764

Purchases 963,633,937 1,115,433,650

Closing 13 (97,630,343) (136,324,851)

1,002,328,445 1,532,498,563

Cost of goods sold 12,111,880,293 10,368,104,062
32.1 Raw, packing material and store consumed:

Opening stock 3,899,783,242 2,658,074,506

Add: Purchases during the year 8,695,514,033 8,604,196,251

Less: Closing stock 13 (3,391,639,694)  (3,899,783,242)

Consumed during the year

9,203,657,581

7,362,487,515

32.2 Thisincludes the following staff benefits:

Defined benefit plan - gratuity (29,139,313) 34,582,419
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 25,835,419 23,291,515
Provision for compensated leave absences 13,823,744 15,546,841

10,519,850 73,420,775

32.3  Thisrepresents payment amounting to Rs. 53.18 million (2023: Rs. 35.33 million) in respect of rent of
warehouses. The Company has accounted for this using short term lease exemptions accounting of

IFRS
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2024 2023
33.  DISTRIBUTION, SELLING AND PROMOTIONAL EXPENSES Note Rupees Rupees
Salaries and benefits 33.1 2,016,200,669 1,711,796,329
Traveling and conveyance 878,367,161 613,520,784
Training, seminars and symposia 377,151,714 491,125,044
Literature, promotion and advertisement material 1,269,521,157 1,263,638,417
Vehicle running and maintenance 325,124,586 353,832,649
Freight 226,867,018 177,412,547
Sample goods 435,143,442 108,370,092
Newspapers and subscriptions 140,984,148 61,582,907
Depreciation 8.1 91,890,320 59,524,867
Insurance 46,890,787 52,614,724
Telephone, postage and communication 28,137,273 16,757,126
Commission on sales 14,471,865 5,825,319
Rent, rates and taxes 33.2 53,131,835 5,699,535
Office supplies 7,642,099 1,137,020
Printing and stationery 2,949,125 3,217,586
Repairs and maintenance 123,696,267 -
Others 5,261,642 352,040
Staff welfare and entertainment 302,463 -
Amortization 9.2 775,562 122,633
Legal and professional charges 2,498,560 11,425,066
ljarah rentals - 7,950,557

6,047,007,693

4,945,905,242

33.1 Thisincludes following staff benefits:

Defined benefit plan - gratuity (48,460,668) 38,911,493
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 41,793,828 41,793,828
Provision for compensated leave absences 15,845,841 15,845,841

9,179,001 96,551,162
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33.2  This represents payment amounting to Rs. 53.13 million (2023: Rs. 5.69 million) in respect of rent
of warehouses. The Group has accounted for this using short term lease exemptions accounting of

IFRS-16.
2024 2023
34. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES Note Rupees Rupees
Salaries and benefits 34.1 493,067,535 432,330,362
Depreciation 8.1 32,569,349 49,512,447
Amortization 9.2 3,755,798 2,457,623
Vehicle running and maintenance 97,678,847 77,323,726
Donation 34.2 3,613,440 1,580,000
Repairs and maintenance 20,455,754 18,618,104
Newspapers and subscriptions 60,627,356 42,304,047
Telephone, postage and communication 7,581,810 11,159,862
Rent, rates and taxes 1,664,151 -
Traveling and conveyance 32,513,710 25,405,567
Legal and professional charges 45,981,222 23,189,479
Electricity, gas and water 58,888,770 21,484,109
Office supplies 15,723,247 21,509,139
Insurance 8,383,324 5,317,276
Advertisement, seminars and symposia 20,516,204 22,258,066
Printing and stationery 9,225,750 8,657,784
Auditors' remuneration 34.3 5,563,850 5,260,850
Others 2,588,843 2,234,340
Staff welfare and entertainment 9,591,084 3,048,571
Staff training and development 233,508 49,500
930,223,552 773,700,852
34.1 Itincludes the following staff benefits:
Defined benefit plan - gratuity (37,267,098) 31,246,763
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 16,120,439 13,981,843
Provision for compensated leave absences 2,211,788 2,211,788
(18,934,871) 47,440,394
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34.1 Thereisnodonationto a party exceeding Rs. 500,000 of the Group's total amount of donation except
to the three parties that includes donation of Rs. 500,000, Rs. 852,671 and Rs. 1,000,000 to Indus
hospital, Hitase and PPMA Pak Pharma Summit. Further, none of the Directors or their spouses have
any interest in the donee.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
34.3 Auditors' remuneration

BDO Ebrahim & Co. - Holding Company auditor

Statutory audit 2,310,000 2,310,000
Other certification 530,000 526,350
Fee for review of half yearly financial information 887,500 887,500
Review of statement of compliance of code of corporate governance 240,000 240,000
Out of pocket 696,350 600,000
Mazars M.F. & Co. - Subsidiary Company auditor

Statutory audit 781,200 605,000
Out of pocket 118,800 92,000

5,563,850 5,260,850

35. RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 35.1 8,696,171 13,112,787
Vehicle repair and maintenance 744,186 1,676,036
Insurance - 50,531
Others 30,625 181,091

9,470,982 15,020,445

35.1 ltincludes the defined contribution plan - provident fund of Rs. 0.26 million (2023: Rs. 0.45 million)
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2024 2023
36. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Note Rupees Rupees
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 26.5 269,914,801 181,856,568
Workers' Welfare Fund 26.4 88,083,811 64,789,699
Central Research Fund 26.2 52,545,188 38,951,668
Allowance for expected credit losses 14.1 35,278,697 -
Provision for sales tax refundable 18.1 88,092,012 -
Realized (gain) / loss on sale of
short-terminvestment 17.1 (1,365,310) 46,405,296
Exchange loss - unrealised - 335,582,110
532,549,199 335,582,110
2024 2023
37. OTHERINCOME Note Rupees Rupees
Return on deposits and mark on interest bearing accounts 79,385,190 22,114,828
Dividend Income on short-term investment 71,972,605 77,310,177
Unrealized gain on re-measurement of short
term investment to fair value 10.1 157,792,965 21,961,479
Realised gain on sale of short-term investment 79,159,430 -
Deferred income 25.1 1,315,410 1,315,460
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 8.3.2 27,903,169 13,824,141
Liabilities written back - 10,048,111
Scrap sales 20,094,383 3,748,572
Reversal of expected credit losses 14.1 125,636 29,712,961
Otherincome 3,757,604 5,161,526
441,506,392 185,197,255
38. FINANCE COSTS
Finance cost on lease liabilities 22.3 69,727,016 53,266,208
Mark-up on Long-term loans 217,671,374 2,704,233
Bank charges 12,350,984 4,652,630
Mark-up on short term borrowings 107,202,828 92,360,065
Interest on Workers' (Profit) Participation Fund 429,012 877,348
407,381,214 153,860,484
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2024 2023
39. LEVY Note Rupees Rupees
Levy
Final tax 39.1 19,930,608 17,634,232
39.1 Thisrepresents final taxes paid under Section 154A of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 representing levy
in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37.
39.2 Reconciliation of levy charge
Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised
in the statement of profit or loss is as follows:
2024 2023
Current tax liability for the year as per applicable Rupees Rupees
tax laws 1,524,386,150  1,014,194,648
Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws,
representing income tax under IAS 12 (1,504,484,098) (996,560,416)
Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws,
representing levy in terms of requirements of
IFRIC 21/1AS 37 (19,902,052) (17,634,232)
Difference - -
40. TAXATION
Current income tax:
Charge for the year 1,578,850,973 1,030,847,906
Prior year (47,088,392) (125,545,174)

Deferred tax:

1,531,762,581

905,302,732

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 92,290,535 (52,756,509)
Effect of deferred tax due to change in effective tax rate - (15,517,742)
Prior year - 74,582,638
92,290,535 6,308,387

1,624,053,116 911,611,119
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40.1

Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

Numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

2024

Rupees

2023

Rupees

Profit before tax

5,032,499,738

3,359,287,286

Tax expense on accounting profit (29%

as per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001) 1,459,424,924 974,193,313
Effect of allowable / not allowable deductions (111,706,241) 213,655,873
Tax Credit (2,826,069) (2,432,878)
Effect of amounts subject to fixed / final taxes (55,945,602) (478,520,164)
Effect of Super tax 386,015,171 255,677,511
Prior year income tax charge (47,088,392) (125,545,174)
Prior year deferred tax charge (3,820,675) 74,582,638
Average tax expense charged to profit or loss 1,624,053,116 911,611,119
Average tax rate charged to profit or loss 32.27% 27.14%

40.2 The aggregate of final tax and income tax amounting to Rs. 1,598.753 million (2023: Rs. 1,048.482
million) represents tax liability of the Group calculated under the relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Ordinance 2001.

41. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company which is based on:

2024 2023
Profit after taxation Rupees 3,388,516,014 2,447,676,167
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number of shares 52,983,363 52,983,363
Earnings per share Rupees 63.95 46.20

- 3Ly Highnoon Laboratories Limited



Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
42. CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note Rupees Rupees

Profit before taxation 5,012,569,130 3,359,287,286
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 8.1 346,673,521 266,072,951
Amortization of intangible assets 9.2 10,835,830 8,044,797
(Reversal) / provision for defined benefit obligation 25.2.2 (114,867,079) 104,740,675
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks 13.1 18,474,525 93,270,403
Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund 36 269,914,801 181,856,568
Provision for Workers Welfare Fund 36 88,083,811 64,789,699
Provision for Central Research Fund 36 52,545,188 38,951,668
Provision for sales tax refundable 38 88,092,012 -
Finance cost 37 407,686,357 153,853,857
Allowance / (reversal) for expected credit losses 35,153,061 (29,712,961)
Deferredincome 37 (1,315,410) (1,315,460)
Exchange (gain) / loss - net 37 (1,365,310) 42,208,950
Gain on disposal of property,plant and equipment 37 (27,903,168) (13,824,141)
Liabilities written back 37 - (10,048,111)
Un-realized gain on remeasurement of investments 17.1 (157,792,965) (21,961,479)
Return on deposits 37 (72,261,078) (21,011,724)
Dividend income on short term investment 37 (71,972,605) (77,310,177)

869,981,491 778,605,515

Cash flow before working capital changes
Working capital changes:

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Inventories

Trade debts

Advances, trade deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Tax refund due from the Government
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

5,882,550,621

4,137,892,801

207,064,439
(290,326,651)
28,857,877
(14,760,615)
16,821,726
924,790,773
160,076,321

(1,027,866,082)
(846,612,655)
384,984,392
19,138,438
78,300,900
249,984,990
12,343,686

1,032,523,870

(1,129,726,331)

Cash generated from operations

6,915,074,491

3,008,166,470
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43. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the consolidated financial statements for remuneration, allowances
including all benefits to the Chief Executive and Executives of the Group are as follows:

2024 2023

Chlef Director Executives Chlef Director | Executives
Executive Executive

Short-term employee benefits
Managerial remuneration 21,875,202 10,559,520 534,975,293 20,066,172 10,602,080 428,265,832

House allowance, utilities

and Medical 7,954,116 3,840,480 275,717,541 10,033,092 3,197,920 224,534,834
Retirement benefits 5,924,228 799,247 37,131,172 6,827,328 665,967 65,285,512
Bonus 5,734,725 4,200,000 167,280,493 6,690,025 5,331,165 113,829,617

41,488,271 19,399,247 1,015,104,499 43,616,617 19,797,132 831,915,795
Number of persons 1 1 201 1 1 137

43.1 In addition to the above, chief executive and certain other executives have been provided with
free use of the Group maintained cars as per terms of employment. Further, medical expenses are
reimbursed in accordance with the Group's policies.

43.2  Managerial remuneration includes Rs. 173.015 million (2023: Rs. 118.29 million) charged in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in respect of bonus to Chief Executive and Executives of the
Group.

43.3 No meeting fee or other remuneration was paid to an Independent and Non-Executive Directors
during the year.

43.4  Thedirectoris related to the Group's subsidiary.
44.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

44,1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk, price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
program focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize
earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders. Risk management is carried out by
the Group finance and planning department under policies approved by the senior management.
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The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the
Group's risk management policies.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to develop adisciplined and constructive control environmentin which allemployees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role
by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Group's exposure to financial risk, the way these risks affects the financial position and
performance and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

(a) Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer
or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of
securities and liquidity in the market. The Group incurs financial liabilities to manage its market
risk. All such activities are carried out with the approval of the Board.

i)  Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial in-
strument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. This risk exist due to the
Group's exposure resulting from outstanding future commercial transactions or receiv-
ables and payables.

The Group is exposed to exchangerisk arising from currency exposures mainly with respect
to currencies mentioned below on import of raw material, packing material and stores and
spares and debtors against export sales. The Group's is exposed to foreign exchange risk
asat 31 December 2023 as it has financial instruments denominated in currency other than
the functional currency of the Group.

Aforeign exchange risk management policy has been developed and approved by the man-
agement. The policy allows the Group to take currency exposure for limited periods within
predefined limits while open exposures are rigorously monitored.

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in for-
eign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax.
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. "Effects on profit "Effects on profit
Changesin
FC Rate before Tax before Tax
2024" 2023"
Rupees Rupees

Receivables - USD +15% 6,199,980 1,748,998
-15% (6,199,980) (1,748,998)
Receivables - AED +15% - 1,554
-15% - (1,554)
Payables - Euro +15% 6,334,390 29,780,179
-15% (6,334,390) (29,780,179)
Payables - USD +15% 80,861,965 38,345,320
-15% (80,861,965) (38,345,320)
Bank balance - USD +15% 11,205,440 10,349,096
-15% (11,205,440) (10,349,096)
Cashin hand - Saudi Riyal +15% 79,293 80,387
Cashin hand - Euro +15% 870 58,172
Cashinhand - CNY +15% 29,736 30,883

Average rates Reporting date rate

Reporting date rate: 2024 2023 2024 2023

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

usD 280.21 254.11 278.55 281.86
Euro 300.79 276.35 290.08 311.50
JPY 1.89 1.85 1.78 1.99
AED 76.29 69.2 75.84 76.74
GBP 354.15 315.83 349.71 358.60
Saudi Riyal 74.65 67.68 74.14 75.16
CNY 38.9 36.1 38.16 39.63
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(ii)

Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Group's interest
rate risk arises from lease liabilities, long-term loan, short-term borrowings, cash at bank
and short-term investments. Financial instruments obtained at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments obtained at fixed rate expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk as at reporting date, none of the Group's financial
instruments with fixed rates are measured at fair value. Sensitivity to interest rate risk aris-
es from mismatch of financial assets and liabilities that mature or reprice in a given period.
The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on aregular basis by monitoringinterestrate
trends to determine whether they should enter into hedging alternatives.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial in-
struments was:

Notes 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Financial assets
Variable rates instruments
Cash and bank balances
- deposit accounts 19 382,406,324 37,542,078
Short-terminvestments
- term deposit receipts 17 166,929,713 469,669,677
Financial liabilities
Variable rates instruments
Lease liabilities 22 136,042,610 -
Long-term loan 23 447,716,085 714,112,381
Short-termloan 29 784,230,282 260,374,319
Fixed rates instruments
Lease liabilities 22 50,803,192 -

Annual Report 2024 k] -



Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in in-
terest rates, with all other variables held constant, on the Group's profit before tax. This
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of floating rate instruments outstanding at re-
porting dates were outstanding for the whole year.

. "Effects on profit | "Effects on profit
Changesin
interest rate before tax before tax
2024" 2023"
Percentage Rupees Rupees
Lease liabilities +5 (6,802,131) -
-5 6,802,131 -
Long-term Loan +5 22,385,804 35,705,619
-5 (22,385,804) (35,705,619)
Short-terminvestments - term +5 8,346,486 23,483,484
deposit receipts -5 (8,346,486) (23,483,484)
Cash and bank balances - +5 19,120,316 1,877,104
deposit accounts -5 (19,120,316) (1,877,104)

(iii) Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the indi-
vidual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk, which arises from investments measured at fair
value through profit and loss. The management of the Group monitors the proportion of
equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments
within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are
approved by the Board of Directors of the Group.

Fair value senstivity analysis for Group's investment in mutual funds

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in fair
values, with all other variables held constant, on the Group's profit before tax. This analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of investment in mutual funds instruments outstanding
at reporting dates were outstanding for the whole year.
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. "Effects on profit | "Effects on profit
Changesin
Fair Value before tax before tax
2024" 2023"
Rupees
Short-terminvestments - +5% 173,596,047 84,956,216
mutual funds -5% (173,596,047) (84,956,216)

(b) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss without taking into account the fair value of
any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged
in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economical, political or other
conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's perfor-
mance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk of the Group arises principally from the trade receivables, loans and advances, trade
and other deposits, short-term investments, other receivables, and balances with banks. The
credit risk on liquid funds such as balances with banks is limited because the counter parties are
banks with reasonably high credit ratings.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maxi-
mum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2024 2023

Financial assets at amortized cost: Rupees Rupees

Trade receivables 2,481,247,932 2,189,555,970
Advances to employees against salaries 26,014,292 8,372,019
Trade deposits 49,407,566 49,782,368
Other receivables 137,574,581 12,233,863
Short-terminvestments - Term deposit receipts 166,929,713 469,669,677
Bank balances 1,493,113,586 207,645,125

4,354,287,670 2,937,259,022

(i) Trade receivables

Creditrisk related to trade receivables is managed by established procedures and controls
relating to customers credit risk management. Outstanding receivables are regularly
monitored and shipments to foreign customers are covered by letters of credit. The
maximum credit risk exposure at reporting date is carrying value of financial assets stated
above.
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These mainly include customers which are counter parties to revenue arrangments. The
Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses
alifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Trade receivables are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Animpairment analysis is performed
at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage different other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written-off if
past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

The Group does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance are considered integral part of trade receivables and considered in the

calculation of impairment.

Geographical concentration of credit risk is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Pakistan 2,350,346,443 2,188,690,781
Kenya 28,731,369 -
Cambodia 424,992 -
Mauritius 11,361 -
Tanzania 89,664,744 -
Sudan 5,370,178 9,605
Afghanistan 6,698,845 855,584

2,481,247,932

2,189,555,970

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade
receivables using a provision matrix:

Trade receivables

Less thanor
equal to 30
days

30-60days

61-90 days

Total

As at December 31, 2024

Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default
Expected credit loss

Expected credit loss rate
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1,799,663,479 518,395,714
21,606,196
1.20%

10,143,061
1.96%

102,411,144 60,777,595

6,010,854 19,891,393

5.87%

32.73%

2,481,247,932
57,651,504




Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Trade receivables

<30days 30-60days | 61-90days >90 days Total
------------------ Rupees-------------
31 December 2023
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default 1,402,418,296 758,385,831 19,482,993 9,268,850 2,189,555,970
Expected credit loss 10,137,620 9,965,190 1,354,068 915,929 22,372,807
Expected credit loss rate 0.72% 1.31% 6.95% 9.88%

(ii) Financial instruments and balances with banks
Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where
available, or to historical information about counterparty default rates. All counterparties,
with the exception of customers, employees and utility companies, have external credit
ratings determined by various credit ratingagencies. Credit quality of customersisassessed
by reference to historical defaults rates and present ages.

Counter parties with external credit ratings

Theseinclude bankingcompanies andfinancialinstitutions, whichare counterparties tobank
balances, term deposits receipts and interest accrued. Credit risk is considered minimal as
these counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various credit
rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and
considering their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance
by these counterparties on their obligations to the Group. Following are the credit ratings
of counterparties with external credit ratings:
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Rating
2024 2023
i;‘?r;t L—::‘rg Agency Rupees Rupees

Bank balances:
Allied Bank Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 70,929 704,215
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA PACRA 6,086 6,086
Askari Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA 12,479,148 || 10,887,856
Bank Al Habib Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 18,730 18,730
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 257 -
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 219,721,606 ||103,376,956
Dubai Islamic Bank A-1+ AA VIS 111,000,449 -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA 19,982,973 || 64,081,062
JS Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA 1,230,608 || 1,440,181
MCB Bank Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 3,811,028 432,733
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 1,118,797,167 || 23,614,543
Mobilink Microfinance Bank Limited A-1 A PACRA 2,342,995 2,848,634
Summit Bank A-3 BBB- VIS 25,259 4,620
Standard Chartered Bank A-1+ AAA PACRA 402,382 -

3,223,969 229,509

1,493,113,586 207,645,125

Short-terminvestments
Askari Bank Limited - AA+ PACRA 7,200,000 -
First Habib Modaraba A-1+ AA+ PACRA-VIS 159,729,713 469,669,677

Being investment grade, the Group has assessed expected credit losses for balances with
banks for 12 month period. Based on external credit ratings, the Group has estimated that
allowance for expected credit losses is trivial to the financial statements and accordingly
has not been recognised.

(iii) Other financial assets

Other financial assets mainly comprise of long-term and short-term deposits, other
receivables and advances/loans to employees. The Group has assessed, based on historical
experience, that the expected credit loss associated with these financial assets is trivial
and therefore, no expected credit loss has been recognized on these financial assets. The
counterparties for which external credit ratings were not available have been assessed by
reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information for any
default in meeting obligations.
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(iv)

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors
similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in
relation to the Group's total credit exposure. The Group's portfolio of financial instruments
is broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit-worthy
counterparties there-by mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

Investment in Mutual Funds

The external credit rating of mutual funds in whose units the Group has invested its funds is

as follows:

Short-term investments - mutual funds
ABL Cash Fund

ABL Fixed Rate Plan VIl

ABL Fixed Rate Plan XII

ABL Government Securities Funds B
ABL Special Savings

AL Habib Income Fund

Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund

Atlas Money Market Fund

Faysal Money Market Fund

HBL Money Market Fund

JS Cash Fund

Lakson Income Fund

HBL Money Market Fund

JS Cash Fund

Lakson Income Fund

Rating
2024 2023

It_;)rnrg Agency Rupees Rupees
AA+(f)  PACRA 41,029 -
AA+(f)  PACRA 105,783,000 -
AA+(f)  PACRA 538,395,881 -
AA+(f)  PACRA 124 -
CP2+(f) PACRA - 117,724,267
AA(f) PACRA 119,084,173 100,055,093
AA+(f) PACRA 520,888,356 51,438,071
AA-(f)  PACRA - 100,101,725
AA+(f)  PACRA - 102,148,457
AA(f) PACRA 303,365 262,238
AA+(f) VIS 618,572 531,713
AA+(f) PACRA 63,251 53,277
A+(f) PACRA 130,231,350 43,855,478
AA+(f) VIS 531,713 9,955,869
AA+(f)  PACRA 53,277 9,650
A+(f) VIS 43,855,478 -
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Rating 2024 2023
ts:g Agency Rupees Rupees
Lakson Money Market Fund AA+(f) PACRA - 105,612,052
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund AA+(f) PACRA 215,329,898 86,119,069
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund A+(f) PACRA 122,532,634 103,093,716
NBP Money Market Fund AA(f)  PACRA 522,825 315,194
NIT Income Fund AA-(f) PACRA 50,000,000 -
NIT Money Market Fund AAA(f) PACRA - 103,139,785
NIT-Govt. Bond Fund AA(f)  PACRA 575,819,378 -
NIT-Social Impact Fund A+(f) VIS 450,313,164 -
Pak Qatar Income Plan AA-(f) PACRA 385,598,185 -
UBL Al Amin Shariah Fund AA+(f) VIS 2,944 -
UBL Government Securities Fund AA(f) VIS - 150,136,405
UBL Income opportunity Fund AA-(f) VIS - 509,258,226
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund AA+(f) VIS 130,968 125,279,559
UBL Money Market Fund AA+(f) VIS 256,261,836 -

3,471,920,933  1,699,124,325

The Group estimates the change in fair value of the Group's investment in mutual funds is
not attributable to the changes in the credit risk of the related mutual funds.

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. The
Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view
to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The
Group's finance department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping regular
committed credit lines available. The management uses different methods which assists it
in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing the return on investments. Typically
the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expensesforareasonable period,including the servicing of financial obligation; this excludes
the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such
as natural disasters. In addition, the Group maintains an unavailed lines of credit.
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The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.
Carrying Contractusl within 1year | 1to2years | 2to5years More than 5
amount cash flows years
AsatDecember 31,2024 = mmmmmmomemmomemee- Rupees--------=----=--cmomomomoe
Lease liabilities 136,042,610 676,557,267 197,327,913 255,014,554 191,652,430 32,562,370
Long-term loan 447,716,085 1,131,683,352 224,932,197 296,760,657 608,036,279 1,954,219
Short term borrowings 784,230,282 784,230,282 784,230,282 - - -
Trade and other payables 2,315,297,901 2,315,297,901 2,315,297,901 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 210,193,857 210,193,857 210,193,857 - - -
Unpaid dividend - - - - - -
3,893,480,735 5,117,962,659 3,731,982,150 551,775,211 799,688,709 34,516,589
2:’;}:}:3 igg:?lgfzzl within 1year | 1to2years | 2to5years M;) ryee;?:n
31 December2023 ~ mmmmmmmmmomoooooe- Rupees--------------------omomme
Lease liabilities 528,560,365 676,557,267 197,327,913 255,014,554 191,652,430 32,562,370
Long-term Loan 714,112,381 1,131,683,352 224,932,197 296,760,657 608,036,279 1,954,219
Short term borrowings 260,374,319 260,374,319 260,374,319 - - -
Trade and other payables 1,435,909,732 1,435,909,732 1,435,909,732 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 138,561,386 138,561,386 138,561,386 - - -
Unpaid dividend 111,299,848 111,299,848 111,299,848 - - -

3,188,818,031 3,754,385,904 2,368,405,395 551,775,211 799,688,709 34,516,589

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts. The contractual cash flows relating
to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest / mark-up
rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of interest / mark-up have been
disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements.
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44.2 Financial instruments by categories

2024
AT FVTPL Amortized Total
cost
------------ Rupees-----=---=-----

Assets as per consolidated statement of financial position:
Long-term deposits - 25,566,894 25,566,894
Loan to employees 65,250,481 65,250,481
Advances - 26,014,292 26,014,292
Trade debts - 2,423,596,428 2,423,596,428
Trade deposits - 23,840,672 23,840,672
Other receivables - 137,574,581 137,574,581
Cash and bank - 1,493,747,356 1,493,747,356
Short-term Investments 3,471,920,933 166,929,713 3,638,850,646

3,471,920,933 4,362,520,417 7,834,441,350

2023
ATFyTPL | Amortized Total
cost
------------ Rupees--------------

Assets as per consolidated statement of financial position:
Long-term deposits - 24,143,429 24,143,429
Loan to employees - 57,243,399 57,243,399
Advances 8,372,019 8,372,019
Trade debts - 2,167,183,163 2,167,183,163
Trade deposits - 25,638,939 25,638,939
Other receivables - 12,233,863 12,233,863
Cash and bank - 212,552,586 212,552,586

Short-term Investments 469,669,677 2,168,794,002

1,699,124,325 2,977,037,075 4,676,161,400
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2024 2023

At amortized cost

------------ Rupees------------
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of financial position:
Lease liabilities 136,042,610 528,560,365
Long-term Loan 447,716,085 714,112,381
Unclaimed dividend 210,193,857 138,561,386
Short term borrowings 784,230,282 260,374,319
Trade and other payables 2,315,297,901 1,435,909,732

3,893,480,735 3,077,518,183

45.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the
return on capital employed, which the Group defines as operating income divided by total capital employed.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

- tosafeguardthe entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

- toprovide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may, for example,
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, arrange new lines of credit or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Group's objectives, policies or processes to capital management
during the year nor the Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital employed.
It includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and accrued
markup.
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The debt - to - equity ratio as at 31 December is as follows

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Long-term loan 447,716,085 714,112,381
Lease liabilities 136,042,610 528,560,365

Trade and other payables

Add: Short term borrowings

Less: Cash and short-term deposits

2,315,297,901

2,055,832,586

2,899,056,596
784,230,282
(1,493,747,356)

3,298,505,332
260,374,319
(204,337,732)

Net debt

Share capital
Revaluation surplus on operating fixed assets

Revenue reserves

2,189,539,522

3,354,541,919

529,833,630
1,077,558,758
10,187,737,871

529,833,630
899,339,441
8,167,526,233

11,795,130,259

9,596,699,304

Total capital employed

13,984,669,781

12,951,241,223

Gearing ratio

16%

26%

46. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-termloan | Lease liabilities Total
Asat December 31,2024  mmmmmmmmmem Rupees-------===----
Opening balance 714,112,381 528,560,365 1,242,672,746
Additions during the year - 104,224,550 104,224,550
Cash flows - net (266,396,296)  (566,469,321) (832,865,617)
Finance cost - 69,727,016 69,727,016
Closing balance 447,716,085 136,042,610 583,758,695
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Long-termloan | Lease liabilities Total
As at December 31,2023  mememeeeeeeeeeeo Rupees--------------
Opening balance 18,008,677 258,014,081 276,022,758
Additions during the year 700,000,000 438,794,892  1,138,794,892
Cash flows - net (3,896,296)  (221,514,816) (225,411,112)
Finance cost - 53,266,208 53,266,208
Closing balance 714,112,381 528,560,365 1,242,672,746

47.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
47.1 Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability; or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
bestinterest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

- Level 3—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements at fair value
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Fair value measurement using
Quoted price Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable Total

market inputs inputs ota

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
31 December2024  memememeeeeeee- Rupees--------------
Short-terminvestment 3,471,920,933 - 3,471,920,933
Revalued Property, plant and equipment
Land-freehold - 764,495,000 - 764,495,000
Building on freehold land - - 404,291,000 404,291,000
Plant and machinery - - 1,150,774,000 1,150,774,000

Total 3,471,920,933 764,495,000 1,555,065,000 5,791,480,933

Fair value measurement using
Quoted price Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable Total

market inputs inputs ota

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
31December2023  mmmmmeeeeee- Rupees--------------
Short-term investment 1,699,124,325 - 1,699,124,325
Revalued Property, plant and equipment:
Land- freehold - 764,495,000 - 764,495,000
Building on freehold land - 404,291,000 404,291,000

Plant and machinery -

1,150,774,000

1,150,774,000

Total 1,699,124,325

764,495,000 1,555,065,000

4,018,684,325

Movements of the above mentioned assets and surplus on revaluation of these assets have been
disclosed in Note 8 and Note 21, respectively to these financial statements. There were no transfers
between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year and there were no changes in valuation techniques during
the years.
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47.2 Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

The Group obtains independent valuations for its certain classes of property, plant and equipment
(more particularly described below) at least every three years. At the end of each reporting period,
the management updates its assessment of the fair value of each asset mentioned above, taking
into account the most recent independent valuation. The management determines an asset's
value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. Level 2 fair value of land has been derived
using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land in close proximity are adjusted
for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the property. The most significant input
into this valuation approach is price per kanal. Level 3 fair value of building on freehold land has been
determined using a depreciated replacement cost approach, whereby, current cost of construction
of a similar building in a similar location has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation rate to arrive
at present market value. Level 3 fair value of plant and machinery has been determined using a
depreciated replacement cost approach, whereby, the current replacement cost of items of similar
make/origin, capacity and level of technology has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation rate on
account of normal wear and tear.

2024 2023

Significant unobservable
inputs

Quantitative data / range and

Description relationship to the fair value

Rupees Rupees

Revalued Property plant and equipment

Land - freehold Cost ofacquiring a new similar | Higher, the estimated cost of

764,495,000| 764,495,000 | landconsideringpriceperkanal | acquisition of similar land, higher

of immediate neighbourhood | the fair value.
and neighbouring properties
which have been recently
purchased or sold.
Cost of construction of a|The market value has been
new similar building. Suitable | determined by using a suitable
depreciation rate to arrive | depreciation factor on cost of

Building on 404,291,000 404,291,000 | ot depreciated replacement | constructing a similar new building.

value. Higher, the estimated cost of
construction of a new building,

higher the fair value. Further, higher

freehold land

the depreciation rate, the lower the
fair value of the building.

Plant and

machinery

1,150,774,000

1,150,774,000

Cost of acquisition of similar
plant and machinery with
similar level of technology.
Suitable depreciation rate
to arrive at depreciated
replacement value.

The market value has been
determined by using cost of
acquisition of similar plant and
machinery with similar level of
technology and applying a suitable
depreciation factor based on
remaining useful lives of plant and
machinery. The higher the cost
of acquisition of similar plant and
machinery, higher the fair value of
plant and machinery. Further, higher
the depreciation rate, the lower the
fair value of plant and machinery.
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47.3 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities measured at their amortized
cost approximate their fair values, largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. The
management assessed that fair value of loans and advances, short term deposits and investments,
interest accrued, trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and other payables and
accrued finance cost approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

48. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties of the Group comprise associated companies, companies in which directors are
interested, staff retirement funds and directors and key management personnel (Note 43). Balances and
transactions with related parties and associated Group are as follows:

48.1 Transactions during the year:

2024 2023
Undertaking Relationship Nature of transaction Rupees Rupees

Route 2 Health (Pvt) Ltd Associate Purchases 44,894,204 559,899,883

(Common directorship and Payments 42,741,032 516,433,451

shareholder of 0.45% (2023:1.29%)) Dividend paid - 9,156,200
Pharmatec Associate Dividend declared 132,487,260 69,822,020
Investments Limited (Common directorship and Dividend paid 243,787,108 21,996,752

shareholder of 8.34% (2023:8.34%))
Staff Provident Fund Employee benefit fund Contribution for the year 86,207,346 84,835,509

Dividend paid 6,406,500 3,376,300
Workers' Profit Employee benefit fund Charge for the year 269,914,801 181,856,568
Participation Fund
Employees’ Welfare Trust Employee benefit fund Contribution for the year 3,775,483 4,084,934
Dividend paid 7,743,690 1,331,652
48.2 Balance outstanding as at reporting date:
2024 2023
Name of related party Relationship Nature of transaction Rupees Rupees

Pharmatec Associate Payables 2,153,172
Investments Limited And Prepayments - 111,299,848
Staff Provident Fund Employee benefit funds Trade and other payables 18,195,248 11,862,140
Workers' Profit Employee benefit funds Trade and other payables 8,793,955 181,856,569

Participation Fund
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48.3 Transactions with key management personnel under the terms of employment are excluded from
related party transactions.

49. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2024 2023
Number of employees at the end of the year 2,376 2,396
Average number of employees during the year 2,386 2,440

50. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged or reclassified wherever necessary, for better and fair
presentation. However no significant rearrangement / reclassification other than those disclosed below
have been made in these consolidated financial statements:

Amount
Reclassification from Reclassification to
(Rupees)
Statement of financial position
Sales tax refundable Other receivables/ sales tax recoverable 107,401,766
Statement of Profit and loss
Taxation Levy 19,902,052

The impact of above reclassifications has also been accounted for in the statement of cashflows.

51. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

2024 2023

Annual production Million units Million units
Packs solids 72.27 72.19
Packs liquids 18.72 17.67
Packs drops 9.45 7.04
Packs suspension 10.02 6.98
Packs devices 0.93 0.59
Packs sachets 0.50 0.39
Packs cream 0.06 0.05

111.95 104.91

The production capacity of the Group's plants is indeterminable as these are multi-product plants involving
varying processes of manufacture. The Group's production was according to market demand.

52. SEGMENT REPORTING

The chief operating decision maker ( i.e., the Board of Directors) considers the whole business as one
operating segment.
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53. EVENTSAFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors of the Group in its meeting held on 26" March, 2025 has proposed cash dividend at
therate of Rs. 40 (2023: Rs. 30) per share and nil bonus shares for the year ended December 31, 2024, (2023:
nil) subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting to be held on 29* April, 2025.
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect these appropriations.

54. SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE

Following information has been disclosed with the reference to disclosure requirements of fourth schedule
of the Companies Act, 2017 relating to all shares Islamic Index.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Statement of financial position -Financing obtained as per Islamic mode:
Short term financing 784,230,282 188,106,578
Long term musharakah 85,239,418 346,006,820
Relationships with banks having Islamic window
Bank Name Region Nature of transactions
First Habib Modaraba Pakistan Long term diminishing Musharakah
Meezan Bank Limited Pakistan Short term financing

55.  The Group has maintained separate provident fund. The investment out of provident fund is made in
accordance with the requirments of Section 218 of Companies Act, 2017.

56. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE
The Board of Directors of the Group authorized these consolidated financial statements for issuance on
26" March, 2025.

57. GENERAL

The figures in these consolidated financial statements are rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless
otherwise stated.

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan Ashfaq P. Alidina
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 42" Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of Highnoon Laboratories Limited will
be held on Tuesday, 29t April, 2025,at 11:00a.m. at the
Company's Registered Office; 17.5 Kilometer, Multan
Road, Lahore, and via video link facility to transact the
following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To confirm minutes of the last Extra Ordinery General
Meeting held on Monday, 02" September 2024.

To receive, consider and adopt the Chairman'’s Review
Report, Reports of Directors and Auditors together with
Audited Annual Separate and Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31t
December, 2024.

To approve the payment of final cash dividend of Rs. 40
persharei.e. @ 400 % for the year ended 31%* December
, 2024, as recommended by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

To appoint Company's Auditors and to fix their
remuneration. The members are hereby notified that
the Board and the Audit Committee have recommended
the appointment of BDO Ebrahim & Co.Chartered
Accountants as auditors of the Company for the
financial year ending 31t December 2025.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.

To consider, ratify and approve the transactions carried
out withrelated parties during financial year ended 31st
December, 2024 under the authority of the special
resolution passed in the Annual General Meeting held
on 29th April, 2024 and to authorize the Chief Executive
Officer to approve all the transactions with the related
parties carried out or to be carried out during the
financial year ending 31st December, 2025 and till the
next Annual General Meeting and if thought fit, to pass,
with or without modification, resolutions as Special
Resolutions as proposed in the Statement of Material
Facts.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification, a resolution as a Special Resolution, as
proposed in the statement of material facts attached
with this notice, to substitute the Article 79 & 79 A of
the Articles of Association of the Company.

- k&l Highnoon Laboratories Limited

OTHER BUSINESS

7. Todiscuss any other business with the permission of
the Chair.

Attachedto this Noticeis a statement of material facts
along with draft resolutions proposed to be passed as
special resolutions in relation to the aforesaid special
businesses, as required under Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017.

*No gifts will be distributed in the meeting.

By order of the Board

Bagar Hasan Lahore
Senior General Counsel & 07 April 2025
Company Secretary

Notes:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from 22nd April, 2025 to 29th April, 2025 (both
daysinclusive). Transfers received in order at the office
of our Share Registrar, Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings
Arcade, 1K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the
close of business on 21st April, 2025 will be treated in
time to determine the entitlement and to attend, speak
and vote at AGM.

2. PARTICIPATIONIN THE AGM THROUGH VIDEO LINK
FACILITY

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) through its Circular No. 4 dated February 15,
2021 and circular No. 6 dated March 03, 2021 has
directed listed companies to arrange participation of
shareholdersin Annual General Meeting through Video
Link Facility in addition to allow physical attendance by
the members. The members who are willing to attend
and participate inthe AGM can do so through video-link
via smartphones, computers, tablets, etc. Toattend the
AGM through video-link, members are requested to get
their following particulars registered by sending an
email or WhatsApp at the number/address given below,
at least 48 hours before the time of the AGM, and
download video-link from https/zoom.us/download.



Name Folio/CDC Account No.

CNICNo

Cell phone Email

Signature of Member

WhatsApp

Email

0344-4445334

investor.relations@highnoon.com.pk

Upon receipt of requests, the video-link login
credentials will be shared with the interested
shareholders on their email addresses or WhatsApp
messages. The members can send their comments/
suggestionsrelated to the agendaitems of the meeting
through the above-mentioned means.

. ATTENDING THE AGM AND APPOINTMENT OF

PROXIES

AllCDC accountholders shallauthenticate their identity
by showing the original CNIC at the time of attending
the meeting. Inthe case of a corporate entity, a certified
copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors / valid
Power of Attorney having the name and specimen
signature of the nominee should be produced at the
time of the meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting
may appoint another member as a proxy to attend and
vote instead of him. The instrument of proxy must be
received at the Registered Office of the Company, 17.5
K.M. Multan Road, Lahore not less than 48 hours before
the time of holding the meeting. Members are advised
toimmediately intimate any change in their address to
our Share Registrar Corplink (Pvt.) Limited. Members
may download and print the proxy form from the
Company's website.

WITHHOLDING TAXON DIVIDEND

To enable the Company to make a tax deductiononthe
amount of cash dividend at the respective rates of filer
and non filer, all shareholders who are filers of tax return
are advised to make sure that their names are entered
in the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the
website of FBR. Corporate shareholders having CDC
accounts are required to have their NTN updated with
their respective participants, whereas corporate
physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN
certificate to our Share Registrars Corplink (Pvt.) Ltd.
The FBRvide its clarificationletterno 1(54) Exp / 2014-
132872-R of September 25, 2014 has clarified that
holders of shares held in joint accounts will be treated
individually as filers or non-filers and tax will be deducted
according to the proportionate holding of each
shareholder.

ELECTRONICDIVIDEND MANDATE AND CNIC

In compliance with S.RO. 1145(l) 2017 of SECP and
Section 242 of the Companies Act 2017, itis mandatory
to make payment of any cash dividend through
electronic mode by directly crediting the dividend
amountin the shareholder’s designated bank account.
The shareholders who have not yet provided details of
theirbank accountare once again requested to provide
the details giving Name of designated Bank, Branch
Name and Address, Title of Account and IBAN No. along
with a valid copy of CNIC. CDC shareholders are
requested to have their bank account details updated
with their respective participants and physical
shareholders send the details to the Company or our
Share Registrar Corplink (Pvt.) Ltd. Please mention the
Company name and Folio No. while sending the details
of the Bank Account.

In compliance with a regulatory requirement, the
dividend will not be paid to the shareholders whose
CNIC Nos. are not available with the Company.
Shareholders who have not yet provided a copy of their
CNIC are requested to provide the same to our Share
Registrar Corplink (Pvt.) Limited at the earliest.

ELECTRONIC VOTING

In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot)
Regulation, 2018, (the “"Regulations”) the right to vote
through electronic voting facility and voting by post
shall be provided to members of every listed company
for,inter alia, allbusinesses classified as special business
under the Companies Act, 2017 in the manner and
subject to conditions contained in the Regulations.

Detail of E-Voting facility will be shared through e-mail
with those members of the company who have valid cell
numbers / e-mail addresses available in the Register of
Members of the Company by the end of business on
April 21, 2025 by Corplink (Pvt.) Limited being the
e-voting service provider.

Identity of the members intending to cast vote through
e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic
signature or authentication for login.

Members shall cast vote online from April 26,2025 from
9.00 a.m. until April 28,2025 until 5:00 p.m. Voting shall
close on April 28, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Once the vote on
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the resolution has been casted by a Member, he/she shall

not be allowed to change it subsequently.

7. PROCEDURE FOR VOTING THROUGH POSTAL

BALLOT

Members may alternatively opt for voting through
postal ballot. For convenience of the members, Ballot
Paper is annexed to this notice and the same is also
available onthe Company's website [https://highnoon-
labs.com/] to download.

The members must ensure that the duly filled and
signed ballot paper, along with a copy of Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the
Chairman of the meeting through post at the Company's
registered address, 17.5 kms, Multan Road, Lahore or
email atinvestor.relations@highnoon.com.pk one day
before the AGM, i.e., April 28, 2025 before 5:00 p.m. A
postal ballot received after this time / date shall not be
consideredfor voting. The signature on the Ballot Paper
shall match with signature on the CNIC.

CONSENT FOR VIDEO CONFERENCING FACILITY

Accordingto Section 132(2) of the Companies Act 2017,
ifthe Company receives consent from members holding
in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a
geographical location, to participate in the meeting
through video conference at least 7 days before the
date of the meeting, the Company will arrange video
conference facility in that city subject to availability of
such facility in that city.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Members are hereby informed that according to SECP
SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8,2014, and under
Section 223(6) of the Companies Act 2017, circulation
of Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual
General Meeting has been allowed in electronic format
through QR Code. In compliance with the above
requirements, QR Code of the Annual Report 2024 are
being emailed to the members who have opted to
receive suchcommunicationinelectronic format. Other
members who wish to receive the Annual Report 2024
in electronic form may apply as per the format provided
on the Company’s website. The members who have
provided consent to receive the Annual Report through
email can subsequently request a hard copy which shall
be provided free of cost within seven days. Members are
alsorequestedtointimate any changeintheirregistered
email addresses on time, to ensure effective
communication by the Company.
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10.

Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31,2024 along with Directors’ and Auditors’
Report of the Company have also been placed on the
Company's website, i.e. www.highnoon-labs.com.

QR Code for Annual Report 2024:

REPLACEMENT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CDC
ACCOUNT

Members, who hold physical shares, are advised to
convert their shares into electronic form in terms of
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017.



Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of
the Companies Act, 2017.

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining
to the special business to be transacted in the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on 29th
April, 2025.

Item 5 of the Agenda: Approval & Authorization of
Related Party Transactions

To consider and if deemed fit, ratify and approve (as the
case may be), the following resolution, as special
resolutions, with respect torelated party transactions/
arrangements conducted, in terms of Section 207 and/
or 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 (to the extent
applicable), with or without modification:

Purpose:

In order to obtain the requisite permissions and
approvals under Section 207 and / or 208 of the
Companies Act 2017 and to apprise the members of the
Company with the related parties’ transactions being
carried out and to ensure compliance with the applicable
law. The transactions for the Year 2024 have been
specified under Note 49 of the financial statements,
have been provided hereunder:

Undertaking Relation Nature of Transaction 2024 2023
Route 2 health (Pvt) Limited |Associate |Purchases 44,894,204 559,943,451
Route 2 health (Pvt) Limited |Associate Payments 42,741,032 516,433,451
Route 2 health (Pvt) Limited |Associate Dividend Paid - 9,156,200
Route 2 health (Pvt) Limited |Associate Payables 2,153,172 -
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited | Subsidiary |Purchases-net 94,816,547 596,285,580
CurexaHealth (Pvt) Limited | Subsidiary | Transfer of solar 11,574,291 -
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited Subsidiary | Payments 83,785,049 608,624,930
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited Subsidiary Receipts duringthe Year 6,872,574 -
CurexaHealth (Pvt) Limited | Subsidiary |Expensesincurred onbehalf 7,189,855 -
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited | Subsidiary |Loanpaymentreceived 10,000,000 -
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited | Subsidiary |Interestonloanto subsidary 305,142 2,243,055
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited | Subsidiary | Otherreceivables 11,574,291 2,575,244
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited | Subsidiary | Accured markup receivable - 609,720
Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited | Subsidiary | Trade and Other payables 7,361,340 -

Related party transactions carried out with Route 2
Health (Pvt) Limited and Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited
(wholly owned subsidiary) in the ordinary course of
business, these transactions were executed during the
financial year ended December 31st, 2024 under the
authority of the Special Resolution passedin the Annual
General Meeting held on 29th April, 2024. All related
party transactions were presented before the Board of
Directors for their review and consideration as
recommended by the Board Audit Committee on
quarterly basis pursuant to Clause 15 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

Accordingly, these transactions are being placed before
the members of the Company for their approval
pursuant to the aforesaid special resolution.

The following resolution is proposed to be passed as
Special Resolution with or without any modification:

“Resolved that the transactions carried out in the
ordinary course of business with Route 2 Health (Pvt)
Limited and Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited (wholly owned
subsidiary) during the financial year ended December
31st, 2024 be and are hereby ratified, approved and
confirmed.”

Further, The Company shall continue to carry out
transactions with the related parties in its ordinary
course of business during the year ending December
31st, 2025 and till the date of next Annual General
Meeting.

The shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive
Officer to approve transactions with Route 2 Health
(Pvt) Limited and Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary during the financial year ending
December 31st, 2025 and till the date of next annual
general meeting. However, these transactions shall be
placed before the shareholders in the next Annual
General Meeting for their approval/ratification.
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The following resolution is proposed to be passed as
Special Resolution with or without modification:

"“Resolved that, The Company be and is hereby
authorizedto carry out transactions with Route 2 Health
(Pvt) Limited and Curexa Health (Pvt) Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary), related parties as and when required
during the year endingDecember 31st, 2025 and till the
date of next Annual General Meeting without any
limitation on amounts of transaction and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to undertake the transactions to be
conducted with the Related Parties and take all
necessary steps and to sign/execute any purchase
order/document on behalf of the Company as may be
required and to authorize any other officer of the
Company todo soin order toimplement this resolution.

Resolved further that these transactions shallbe placed
before the shareholders in the next Annual General
Meeting for their ratification/approval.”

Item 06 of the Agenda: Toamend the Article79 & 79 A
of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Inorder to allow the Board of Directors of the Company
to approve meeting fee to be paid to directors as per
industry norms and practices, and acquisition of
minimum qualification shares as per Companies Act
2017, the Board of Directors of the Company has
recommended to substitute the Article 79 & 79A of the
Articles of Association of the Company accordingly.

Comparative Analysis

Existing Article 79 of the Articles of Association

79. The remuneration of a Director other than regular paid

director for his services shall be such sum as may be
fixed by the Directors, but not exceeding Rs. 500/- for
each meeting attended by him. No such remuneration
shall be paid to the Chief Executive Officer and other
Directors who work whole time on remuneration for the
Company.

79 A. The qualification of a Director shall be holding of

shares in the company of the nominal value of Rs. 5,000
(Five thousand only) at least in his own name relax able
in the case of directors representing interest holding
shares of requisite value.

Proposed Article 79 of the Articles of Association

79. The remuneration of a Director other than regular paid

director for his services shall be such sum as may be
fixed by the Directors, for each meeting attended by
him. No such remuneration shall be paid to the Chief
Executive Officer and other Directors who work whole
time onremuneration for the Company.
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79A. The director must be a member provided that this

clause shall not apply in the case of a person
representinga member whichis not a natural person,a
whole time director whois an employee of the company,
a Chief Executive Officer or a person representing a
creditor or other special interests by virtue of
contractual arrangements.

Reason for Amendmentin Articles of Association:

In order to allow the Board of Directors of the Company
to approve meeting fee to be paid to directors as per
industry norms and practices, and acquisition of
minimum qualification shares as per Companies Act
2017, for which the alterationin Article 79 & 79 A of the
Articles of Association of the Company has been
recommended for approval of members.

Interest of directors

The Directors of the Company have nointerest, directly
or indirectly, in this Special Business and/or Special
Resolution exceptin their capacities as directors / Chief
Executive Officer / shareholders.

The following resolutionis proposed to be passed:

“Resolved that pursuant to the applicable provisions of
the Companies act, 2017, Article 79 & 79 A of the
existing Articles of Association of the Company be and
is hereby substituted to read as follows:

79. Theremuneration of a Director other than regular paid

director for his services shall be such sum as may be
fixed by the Directors, for each meeting attended by
him. No such remuneration shall be paid to the Chief
Executive Officer and other Directors who work whole
time onremuneration for the Company.

79 A. The director must be a member provided that this

clause shall not apply in the case of a person
representinga member which is not a natural person,a
whole time director who is an employee of the company,
achiefexecutive orapersonrepresentinga creditor or
other special interests by virtue of contractual
arrangements.

Further resolved that the Chief Executive Officer and
/ orany Directorand/ or Company Secretary and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company be and are hereby
singly authorized to do all acts, deeds and things and
take all steps and necessary actions ancillary and
incidental including filing of requisite documents and
returns as may be required with the Registrar of
Companies and complying with all other regulatory
requirements so as to effectuate the alteration of
Articles of Association of the Company and
implementing this special resolution.



Further resolved that the aforesaid alteration in the
Articles of Association of the Company shall be subject
to any amendment, modification, addition or deletion
as may berequired, and suchamendment, modification,
addition or deletion shall not require fresh approval of
members.”

Statement of the Board of Directors

We, the members of the Board of Directors of the
Company hereby confirm that the proposed
amendment in Articles of Association of the Company
is in line with the applicable provisions of the laws and
regulatory framework.

Availability of Relevant Documents and Inspection

A copy each of the existing and amended Articles of
Association identifying the changes proposed therein
bearing the initial of the company secretary for
identification purposes is attached herewith. A copy
thereof and the documents pertaining to proposed
special resolution are available for inspection at the
registered office of the Company from 9.00a.m. to 5.00
p.m. on any working day, up to the last working day
before the date of the extraordinary general meeting.
The same shall also be available for inspection by the
members in the extraordinary general meeting
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FORM OF PROXY FOLIONO./

CDCA/CNO.
I/We
of District beinga
member of HHGHNOON LABORATORIES LIMITED and
holder of ordinary shares, entitled to vote hereby appoint
Mr. of or failing him

Mr. of

as my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at
REGISTERED OFFICE, 17.5 K.M. MULTAN ROAD, LAHORE on APRIL 29, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. and at any adjournment
thereof.

As witness under my/our hand(s) this day of. 2025.

Witness:

(Member's Signature)

01

02 Affix Revenue
Stamp of Rs.50/-

Date:

Place:

Note:

1. This Form of Proxy duly completedin all respects, in order to be effective, must be submitted, at the Company's Registered
Office at 17.5 K.M., Multan Road, Lahore not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. A Proxy must be a
member of the company. Signature should agree with the specimen registered with the Company

2. TheProxy Form should be signed by two witnesses, mentioning their name address and CNIC number. Attested copy of the
CNIC or the passport of beneficial owner and the proxy shall be furnished with the Proxy Form. Proxy shall produce his original
CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting.

3. Incase of corporate entity, the board of directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted
along-with proxy to the Company.
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POSTAGE STAMP
I The Company Secretary I
HIGHNOON LABORATORIES LIMITED
I 17.5 Kilometer, Multan Road, I
I Lahore - 53700, Pakistan I
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BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

For poll at the Annual General Meeting of Highnoon Laboratories Limited to be held on Tuesday, April 29, 2025
at the Company’s Registered Office: 17.5 Kilometer, Multan Road, Lahore,

Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent:
corporate.affairs@highnoon.com,pk

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Folio No. / CDC Participant / Investor ID with sub-account No

Number of shares held

CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. (in case of foreigner) (Copy to be attached)

Additional Information and enclosures
(In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and Federal
Government.)

Name of Authorized Signatory:

CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. (In case of foreigner) of Authorized
Signatory - (Copy to be attached)

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying my/our
assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (V) mark in the appropriate box below

No.of ordinary | I/We assent to |t/oV¥Eedlssent
Sr. No.| Nature and Description of resolutions shares for which | the Resolutions .
votes cast (FOR) Resolutions
(AGAINST)

1. Special Resolution as per Agenda # 5

To consider, ratify and approve the transactions
carried out with related parties during financial
year ended 31st December, 2024 under the
authority of the special resolution passed in
the annual general meeting held on 29th April,
2024 and to authorize the Chief Executive
Officer to approve all the transactions with the
related parties carried out or to be carried out
during the financial year ending 31st December,
2025 and till the next Annual General Meeting
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, resolutions as Special Resolutions
2. Special Resolution as per Agenda # 6

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification, a resolution as a Special
Resolution, to substitute the Article 79 & 79 A
of the Articles of Association of the Company

Signature of shareholder(s)

Place:
Date:
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Highnoon

Address: 17.5 KM, Multan Road,
Lahore - 53700, Pakistan.

UAN : +92(42) 111-000-465

Phone : +92(42)37510023-27

Fax : +92(42) 37510037

Email : info@highnoon.com.pk

Web : www.highnoon-labs.com



